
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL

Date & Time - Tuesday, 7 November 2017 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel:

Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), G R Aley, J R Astill, M D Booth (Vice-Chairman), 
C J T H Brewis, T A Carter, R Clark, G K Dark, P C Foyster, R Grocock, J L King, 
J D McLean, A M Newton, M D Seymour and A C Tennant

Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may be appointed only 
from members who are not on the Cabinet.  Substitutions apply for individual 
meetings only. 

Quorum: 5

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:   30 October 2017



A G E N D A

1 Apologies for absence. 

2 Declaration of Interests. - 
Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without 
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item, 
except where a councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation.

3 Chief Executive update on progress of the Council - 
The Chief Executive, Anna Graves will be in attendance

4 Crime & Disorder Update - 
To provide an update to Panel members on Community Safety and its 
delivery at county and local level (report of the Executive Director of 
Place and the Portfolio Holder for Communities and Facilities enclosed).

The Portfolio Holder for Communities and Facilities and the Portfolio 
Holder for Strategy, Governance and Transformation will be in 
attendance for this item.

(Pages 
1 - 210)

5 Minutes - 
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the Performance Monitoring 
Panel meeting held on 5 September 2017 (copy enclosed) .

(Pages 
211 - 
216)

6 Questions asked under Standing Order 6 

7 Tracking of Recommendations - 
To consider responses of the Cabinet to reports of the Panel.

8 Items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 

9 Key Decision Plan - 
To note the current Key Decision Plan (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
217 - 
222)

10 Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group – update on 
progress of recommendations - 
To provide members with an update on the recommendations (report of 
the Executive Director Place enclosed).

(Pages 
223 - 
232)

11 Re-Letting of Void Properties Task Group - 
To provide the Panel with an update on progress against the Task 
Group’s recommendations (report of the Executive Director Place 
enclosed).

(Pages 
233 - 
236)

12 Quarter 2 2017-18 Performance Overview - 
To provide an update on Council performance for the period 1 July 2017
to 30 September 2017 (report of the Executive Director Strategy and 
Governance enclosed).

(Pages 
237 - 
268)



13 Constitution amendments - 
To consider a number of amendments to the Constitution (report of the 
Executive Manager Governance enclosed).

(Pages 
269 - 
286)

14 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme - 
To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel 
(report of the Executive Manager Governance enclosed).

(Pages 
287 - 
304)

15 Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent - 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Portfolio Holder for Communities and Facilities and/or Executive Director of 
Place

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 7 November 2017

(Author: Dee Bedford, Community Safety and Enforcement Manager)

Subject: Crime and Disorder Update

Purpose: To provide an update to panel members on Community Safety and its 
delivery at county and local level.

Recommendation(s): 

1) That the content of the report be noted

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Performance Monitoring Panel request six monthly updates. This report will focus on 
community safety and how it is being delivered through the structured tiers within the 
county focusing on key activities of the Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership 
(LCSP), the East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership (ELCSP) and local action 
and initiatives.

1.2 Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership (LCSP)

1.2.1 The LCSP produces an annual report to capture the progress that it has made against its 
priorities during the year (anti-social behaviour and hate crime, domestic abuse, reducing 
offending, serious and organised crime, sexual offences and substance misuse), please 
see Appendix A. You will note from the report that there have been a number of key 
successes including an improved response to vulnerable victims of anti social behaviour 
(ASB) and that a Dual Diagnosis strategy has been written and a group has been formed 
(including mental health and substance misuse services) to work out the most effective 
pathway for referral and working mechanisms in order to deliver suitable services to 
clients. 

1.2.2 The LCSP report provides an update against the delivery plans for each priority. Attached 
to this report are the Delivery Plans for each priority area, please see Appendices B to G, 
which allow you to have an overview of the work that has been completed but also allows 
you to easily identify a particular area of interest. 

1.2.3 The LCSP produce community safety newsletters which are distributed to partnership 
members and are useful snapshots updating the partnership on progress being made 
against the priorities. Appendices H, I and J are the last three newsletters to be produced. 
If members would like to receive the newsletters then please contact Dee Bedford on 
dee.bedford@sholland.gov.uk and your name will be added to the circulation list.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

mailto:dee.bedford@sholland.gov.uk


1.2.4 A key success out of the partnership is the Ask for Angela poster campaign, please see 
Appendix K. It is a simple campaign that was part of a wider domestic abuse and sexual 
violence campaign #nomore. The poster was placed in bars and clubs and and advised 
that if anyone was on a date and didn’t feel safe they can ‘ask for Angela’ at the bar and 
the staff are trained to help get them home safely. The campaign has seen success not 
only within Lincolnshire but also major cities such as London as well as being 
implemented in Australia and America.

1.2.5 A new way to monitor alcohol abstinence following an individual being sentenced went live 
in Lincolnshire on 5th June. Focusing on the East of Lincolnshire, the Alcohol Abstinence 
Monitoring Requirement (AAMR) pilot, please see Appendix L, funded by the Police and 
Crime Commissioner, has 24 tags within Lincolnshire. The target for the pilot is to deliver 
74 tags in a 24 month period. To date seven tags are live in the county; one female and 
six males, 3 are white European and 4 identified as white British, 5 in Boston Borough and 
2 in South Holland; all have gone through Boston Magistrates Court. Eligibility for the 
scheme involves alcohol being a key trigger for offending. To date two offences are for 
driving, two are public order offences and three are common assaults. There have been 
no tags imposed for domestic abuse. Feedback to the partnership has been that 
compliance has been excellent for the seven mentioned above. Relationships are quite 
strong for those where English is not their first language but data extraction has been a 
real challenge in the more rural areas as this is done via Wi-Fi but strategies are now in 
place.

1.2.6 The LCSP has a statutory duty to obtain the views of people who live and work in the 
area, to inform the priority setting process. In 2016 the LCSP ran a countywide survey, 
using the questions previously used by the East Lincolnshire Community Safety 
Partnership as a basis. The response to the survey was not as high as desired (858 
across the whole of Lincolnshire), and the majority of the respondents resided in the East 
of the county (Boston Borough, East Lindsey and South Holland). Upon reviewing the 
attached report at the LCSP meeting in February 2017, please see Appendix M, members 
voiced several concerns about the survey including: The lack of responses to the survey; 
Actual versus perceived issues; The type of questions being asked and Lack of 
representation from minority groups. In light of these concerns, the LCSP asked for the 
survey to be incorporated into the LCSP review (‘health check’). An update on the health 
check will be given at a future meeting when work is complete. The county Safer 
Communities team are actively working across the partnership on a strategic assessment 
to inform future priorities.

1.3 East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership (ELCSP)

1.3.1 A key project currently being delivered by the ELCSP is a campaign to tackle fly-tipping 
and increase the awareness around ‘duty of care’.  The ‘Most People’ campaign was 
launched on Monday 16th October 2017 using real images from local fly-tips to capture 
people’s attention. The designs for the campaign can be seen in Appendix N. The 
campaign will use as many free methods of communication available to the local 
authorities and is being supporting by the councils corporate communications team.  The 
campaign will aim to generate media interest through an invitation to attend a local fly-tip 
clear up and with newspaper advertising. It will run for an eight week period with a 
constant stream of information being sent out via social media and a dedicated hashtag 
#dontflytiplincs. In addition signage will be used in fly tipping areas to warn people that the 
site may be under surveillance to deter repeat offenders. The main aim of the campaign is 
to ensure that residents are aware that they are responsible for the correct disposal of 
their unwanted items and that if they pass them onto a third party to dispose of, and are 
subsequently fly-tipped, they could be prosecuted.  The campaign encourages residents 
to check that people taking away their items have a waste carrier license.

Page 2



1.4 South Holland

1.4.1 Since the Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) was introduced in Spalding, 30 
individuals have been spoken to regarding street drinking, all of which have complied with 
the request to surrender their alcohol. Eight individuals have received follow up warning 
letters regarding this. The two main areas for street drinking currently are Riverside Walk 
and Victoria Street car park. The council has issued one warning letter following a report 
of urinating in the street but have not received any reports of littering, spitting or 
defecating within the PSPO.

1.4.2 To help reduce anti-social behaviour across the district Activate days have continued this 
year with five events taking place in August. Activate is an initiative designed to 
encourage young people aged 8-19 to engage in a variety of positive diversionary 
activities, both sports and arts. The project has been running since 2013 and all events 
are free to attend and take part in. For further details of the initiative please see Appendix 
O.

1.4.3 The council have supported the following key campaigns since April;

 National Walking month in May
 Mental Health awareness week 8th -14th May
 Dementia awareness week14th-20th May
 National Bike week12th-18th  June
 Great Get Together campaign June
 Bin it your way campaign September
 Hate Crime Awareness week14th -21st October 
 ‘Most People’ Flytipping campaign October 

The following campaigns will be supported until March where the campaigns that are 
supported will be reviewed to ensure that they fit with our corporate priorities;

 Alcohol awareness week14th – 20th November
 International Restorative Justice Week 20-27th November 
 Loan Shark awareness week December
 Sexual Violence and Abuse Awareness #nomore February
 National Physical Activity Day April

1.5   Hate Crime

1.5.1 The Council is signed up to the county wide Hate Crime Strategy which can be viewed on 
South Holland District Council’s website http://www.sholland.gov.uk/article/5801/Hate-
Crime . It identifies, coordinates and leads on all aspects of work to tackle and reduce 
hate crime. It covers all partners who together make up the Lincolnshire Community 
Safety Partnership (LCSP) as well as wider community partners. The Council is a centre 
for signposting to Stop Hate UK and staff have been provided with training however work 
continues to support staff in understanding and identifying hate crime within the district 
and a new e-learning package is being reviewed which can be rolled out to all staff. Hate 
Crime Awareness week which started on 14th October also helped launch a county wide 
Hate Crime Survey. I would encourage all members to complete the survey by visiting 
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lincolnshire-community-safety-partnership/131674.article

Page 3

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/article/5801/Hate-Crime
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/article/5801/Hate-Crime
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lincolnshire-community-safety-partnership/131674.article


1.6 Anti-Social Behaviour

1.6.1 Between April and September this year the Anti-Social Behaviour Officer dealt with 28 
new cases. The current case load for the ASB officer is 26 cases which include 
predominantly neighbour disputes and young people causing anti-social behaviour. There 
are a number of complex cases that involve safeguarding concerns along with mental 
health and domestic abuse. 

1.6.2 Since April, the ASB officer has issued 28 level one warning letters, 6 level two warning 
letters and issued 3 Acceptable Behaviour Contracts (ABC’s). This evidences the 
importance of early, low level intervention as only around 10% of those issued with a 
warning went on to receive an ABC. Two of the three ABC’s relate to the same neighbour 
dispute. To date there has only been one breach of a contract which has resulted in a 
warning. Should the behaviour continue, consideration will be given to applying to the 
courts for an injunction.  

1.6.3 The summer saw a significant increase in anti-social behaviour incidents within one of the 
districts smaller towns. A multi-agency response was needed which was coordinated 
through the council and Lincolnshire Police. Enforcement action was taken where reports 
were received and individuals identified; an Activate day was arranged in August to 
provide diversionary activities and an initiative called Street Smart was used for the first 
time in the district. The initiative was support by the Parish Council who had a 
representative attend on the day.

1.6.4 Street Smart is an initiative targeted at young people who are identified as being involved 
in anti-social behaviour. It is to make them aware of the consequences of their behaviour 
whilst empowering them to make a mends for their wrong doing through reparation. On 
this occasion it was litter picking within the locality. Once they have completed the 
reparation stage of the project, they must not come to the attention of any agencies for a 
set period of time and if they comply with these guidelines they receive a reward of their 
choice.

1.6.5 The close working with the Parish Council meant that there was an increase in reports as 
the Parish Council was able to encourage local residents to report. In order to support 
Parish Council’s, the council is designing a leaflet to be handed out to local residents as 
and when needed. The Council will also be delivering training to Parish Council’s on anti-
social behaviour and how they can further help their local communities.

1.6.6 The council is grateful for the encouragement councillors give to members of the public to 
report incidents.  It is always better if the report comes from the member of the public 
direct, however, we can, if they are unable to report an incident or refuse to do so, 
consider taking action if the report comes from a member of the council.   In the latter 
instance we will only be able to provide limited feedback to the councillor as they are not 
the direct victim and we must comply with our obligations under the Data Protection Act in 
respect of the victim themselves and the perpetrator.  

1.6.7 The current anti-social behaviour case management system, although a multi-agency   
system, is no longer fit for purpose. It does not give the user the ability to extract 
information to identify hot spot locations or repeat victims or identify types of behaviour 
such as street drinking, neighbour nuisance and verbal abuse to help establish patterns 
and therefore target resources. The council is supporting a procurement of new system 
which is due to go live in February 2018. Updates on the new system can be provided at 
future meetings.

Page 4



1.6.8 The council work in line with the County wide anti-social behaviour strategy which can be 
found at http://www.sholland.gov.uk/article/3367/Anti-Social-Behaviour. Following the 
creation of the new Community Safety and Enforcement team, work is underway to review 
the SHDC ASB Policy to ensure all staff are compliant.

1.7 Joint Diversionary Panels

1.7.1 Joint Diversionary Panels have recently been introduced within Lincolnshire. They are a 
joint Police and Youth Offending Service initiative, looking at pre-court disposals. The aim 
is to reduce the number of first time entrants by looking at youth conditional cautions. The 
panel are looking at widening their remit to include ASB and initial discussions have taken 
place in relation to local authorities being able to refer in and also be a part of panel itself. 
The Panels are still in their infancy and so it is too soon to evaluate their impact. Any 
evaluations will be provided in future reports. 

1.8 CCTV 

1.8.1 The South Holland CCTV system has 24 cameras installed in Crowland, Holbeach and 
Spalding. 

1.8.2 In Quarter 1 and 2 of 17/18 there have been 94 incidents, 29 requests for evidence and 
the system has supported 16 arrests.   CCTV continues to monitor a variety of community 
safety incidents.  Full details of these are in Appendices P to S.  The top four incidents for 
this year so far are; 18.1% theft – shopping or retail, 12.8% public order / disturbance, 
11.7% anti-social behaviour, 9.6% missing persons/ concern for welfare. 

1.8.3 The main link between South Holland and the Boston control room has been replaced by 
high speed fibre link and this has resolved the earlier camera control concerns.  Boston 
Borough Council have brought in a new contractor for the maintenance of the cameras 
and an improved service and response to faults and maintenance has already been seen.

1.8.4 A CCTV operator who previously worked using the old system based in Spalding and now 
works in the new CCTV control room was asked about her experience of the change.  She 
reported that the major improvements from an operator’s perspective are;
• The clarity of images even when zooming in to recorded images.  Previously, 

number plates for example were nearly impossible to read.
• The ease of panning and movement. 
• The ability to switch between cameras quickly and also to have several cameras on 

a single screen, which can be extremely advantageous when monitoring an 
incident.

• Easier downloading and production of evidence disks with correct audit trails.
• 24/7 monitoring by trained, professional staff.
• The cameras are now professionally monitored and operators liaise with police, 

Shopwatch and Street Pastors using different radio systems. 

1.8.5 A full annual report for the CCTV system will be produced.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Do Nothing

2.2 Note the contents of this report

Page 5

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/article/3367/Anti-Social-Behaviour


3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 It is recommended that the content of this report is noted and that members of the PMP 
have an awareness that the council are working effectively with key partners to meet our 
duty under section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 1998.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The report will raise awareness to the members of the panel of the council’s actions 
towards meeting out duty under section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

4.2 It will increase understanding and awareness around the various tiers in place within the 
county to tackle community safety issues and concerns.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1   Corporate Priorities

5.1.1 The contents of this report supports two of our corporate priorities. The first being ‘To  
develop safer, stronger and more independent communities whilst protecting the most 
vulnerable' and the second, ‘To have pride in South Holland by supporting the district and 
residents to develop and thrive’

5.2 Crime and Disorder 

5.2.1 The council has a statutory duty under section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to ensure 
that it does all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in its area. This report 
evidences that we comply with the Act.

5.3   Reputation 

5.3.1 It is important for the reputation of the council that there is a commitment to appropriately 
and effectively deal with community safety issues.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 Services are provided for all those living, working and visiting the district.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 LCSP Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership

7.2 ELCSP East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership

7.3 ASB Anti Social Behaviour

7.4   AAMR Alcohol Abstinence Monitoring Requirement

7.5   ABC’s Acceptable Behaviour Contracts

Page 6



Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Dee Bedford, Community Safety and Enforcement Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 764457
Email: dee.bedford@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A LCSP Annual Report
Appendix B 2015-18 ASB Delivery Plan
Appendix C 2015-18 Hate Crime Delivery Plan
Appendix D 2015-18 Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan
Appendix E 2015-18 Reducing Offending Delivery Plan
Appendix F 2015-18 Substance Misuse Delivery Plan
Appendix G Year 3 Sexual Violence Delivery Plan
Appendix H LCSP E-Bulletin Jan 2017
Appendix I LCSP E-Bulletin Jun 2017
Appendix J LCSP E-Bulletin Oct 2017
Appendix K LCSP Ask for Angela Poster Campaign
Appendix L AAMR Partner Briefing Paper
Appendix M LCSP Community Safety Survey Results
Appendix N Most People Flytipping Campaign
Appendix O Activate Case Study 2017
Appendix P SHDC arrest stats - April 17 - Sep 17
Appendix Q SHDC incident stats - April 17 - Sep 17
Appendix R SHDC Performance Stats April 17 - Sep 2017
Appendix S CCTV Images

Page 7

file:///G:/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Lincolnshire 

Community Safety 

Partnership 

 

Annual Report 

2016/17 

 

 

 

 

  

Appendix A

Page 9



2 
 

   

Contents 
 

 

Foreword 3   

 

Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership 4 

 

Strategic Priority Setting Process 5 

 

Priority Updates 6 

 

Anti-Social Behaviour and Hate Crime 6 

 

Domestic Abuse 9 

 

Reducing Offending 11 

 

Serious and Organised Crime  12 

 

Sexual Offences  13 

 

Substance Misuse 15 

 

 

 

  

Page 10



3 
 

    

Foreword 
 

 

 

 

 

As a partnership we work effectively in pooling our resources and jointly 

responding to our identified priorities.  As the report highlights, we have 

achieved some significant progress over the past year.  Whilst we are proud of 

our achievements there is, however, always room for improvement and new 

challenges we have to face.  We are therefore committed to continuing our 

work as the Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership and retaining 

Lincolnshire as a safe place to live, work and visit. 

 

Pete Moore 

Chair of the Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership 

  

Welcome to the 2016/17 Annual Report of the Lincolnshire 

Community Safety Partnership.  The report aims to capture 

the progress we have made against our priorities (anti-social 

behaviour & hate crime, domestic abuse, reducing offending, 

serious and organised crime, sexual offences and substance 

misuse) during the year.   

Page 11



4 
 

Lincolnshire Community Safety 

Partnership 
 

 

Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) were introduced as a result of the 

Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to tackle crime, anti-social behaviour and 

substance misuse in the local area.  Since that date, there have been 

numerous changes to the structure and responsibilities of CSPs through 

various pieces of legislation.  The Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership 

(LCSP) meets the statutory requirements as the informally merged partnership 

for the county.  Its statutory responsibilities are to: 

 Identify county-wide community safety priorities that arise from the 

strategic assessment and that require escalating to the county level. 

 Implement ways of co-ordination across the county to address priorities. 

 Jointly work with responsible authorities to contribute to reducing crime, 

disorder and substance misuse through closer partnership working across 

the county. 

 Conduct Domestic Homicide Reviews as required. 

The LCSP is made up of 14 voting members; each of the seven district 

councils, the county council, the Police & Crime Commissioner, Police, Clinical 

Commissioning Groups, National Probation Service, Community Rehabilitation 

Company and Fire & Rescue.  There are in addition a number of partners 

around the table including Chairs of the 6 Strategic Management Boards, 

Magistrates Court, Her Majesty's Prison and Probation Service (HMPPS) and the 

Prisons in Lincolnshire.  

 

Wider Structures 

It is recognised that there are wider relationships with bodies with overlapping 

agendas.  These bodies include; Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children's Board, 

Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board, Health & Wellbeing Board and MAPPA 

(Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements).  Over the past couple of years, 

work has been undertaken to ensure that these relationships are fully 

embedded, communication is effective and there is no duplication of effort. 

 

 

Page 12



5 
 

Strategic Priority Setting Process 
 

 

The Lincolnshire Strategic Assessment was completed in January 2015. The 

assessment drew on data held by a number of partners and also included 

horizon scanning of emerging issues with input from a wide range of 

stakeholders. 

The Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership began collecting information 

for the 2015/18 Strategic Assessment in June 2014 at a consultation event at 

the Lincolnshire Show. The aim of the consultation was to seek the public’s 

views to assess if the partnerships current priorities for community safety 

reflected that of the publics, or if alternatives were apparent. A total of 1,391 

people took part in the voting.  

In November 2014 information was gathered from key stakeholders, 

community safety partner agencies and all 7 district councils on current 

performance, analysis of performance and emerging risks, threats and 

challenges from a local perspective.  

The information obtained was evaluated and presented at a partnership event 

in January 2015 with the aim to determine priorities for the period 2015/18. It 

included representation from a wide variety of Lincolnshire organisations, 

including officers and elected members from the county council and all the 

district councils, police, health and criminal justice agencies, fire and rescue, 

and the business sector.  

The following priorities were agreed: 

 Anti-Social Behaviour and Hate Crime 

 Domestic Abuse 

 Reducing Offending 

 Serious and Organised Crime  

 Sexual Violence  

 Substance Misuse  

For each priority a Strategic Management Board (SMB) was established and a 

delivery plan has since been developed. 

 

 

 

Page 13



6 
 

Priority Update 
 

 

As introduced in the Foreword, the purpose of this report is to capture the 

progress we have made against our 2015/18 priorities. The remainder of this 

document, where appropriate, provides an update against the delivery plan 

created for each priority area.  The activities in the delivery plans were group 

under a number of outcomes; it is these outcomes that provide the headings 

below. 

 

Anti-Social Behaviour & Hate Crime  
 

 

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR 

Improve response to vulnerable victims of anti-social behaviour: 

 Performance monitoring for the Anti-Social Behaviour Risk Assessment 

Conference (ASBRAC) commenced in April 2017 to measure compliance 

with operating procedures and allow for the identification of issues or 

concerns.  

  

 Quarterly meetings have been established between the County Anti-Social 

Behaviour Co-ordinator and the Victim Support Complex Case Worker to 

ensure effective delivery of the Mosaic Service for vulnerable victims of 

anti-social behaviour and hate crime.  

 

 Mental Health Awareness Training has been delivered to Anti-Social 

Behaviour Practitioners across Police, Local Authorities and Registered 

Housing Providers to improve understanding of mental health service 

providers and how to respond to victims and perpetrators presenting with a 

mental health problem.  

 

The use of the new powers and tools introduced by the Anti-Social 

Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 are embedded within partner 

organisations: 

 The Community Remedy document has been encompassed in the 

Community Resolutions delivered by Restorative Solutions (commissioned 

by the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner).  

Page 14



7 
 

 

 Local Authorities access to legal support has been resolved through the 

employment of a new solicitor with vast knowledge of anti-social behaviour 

legislation. This has resulted in a series of successful applications for Anti-

Social Behaviour Civil Injunctions and Closure Orders.  

 

Provide a balanced response to perpetrators of anti-social behaviour 

based around rehabilitation and enforcement: 

 Restorative Conferencing (delivered by Restorative Solutions) has been 

fully embedded into anti-social behaviour practices in response to 

neighbour disputes, with positive outcomes as a result.  

 

 Quarterly meetings have been established between Restorative Solutions 

and the County ASB Co-ordinator to monitor the use of Restorative 

Conferencing, which will continue in 2017/18. 

 

 Anti-Social Behaviour partners have re-established links with Positive 

Futures and the Youth Hub to allow for effective use of diversionary 

activities to help tackle anti-social behaviour.   

 

Encourage a problem solving approach to identified locations affected 

by anti-social behaviour: 

 Anti-social behaviour practitioners are utilising Sentinel to manage anti-

social behaviour hot spot locations using a multi-agency response.  

 

 

HATE CRIME 

Achieve a better understanding of Hate Crime and Hate Incidents in 

Lincolnshire: 

 Partners have signed up to a revised version of the county-wide Hate Crime 

strategy, demonstrating a commitment to providing a countywide response 

to Hate Crime in Lincolnshire.  

 

 The Hate Crime Delivery Group has agreed to conduct a countywide Hate 

Crime Survey as a means of gaining a better understanding of Hate Crime 

victims in Lincolnshire. This is due to commence in September 2017, for 

evaluation in January 2018.  

Page 15



8 
 

 

Increased awareness of Hate Crime and Hate Incidents: 

 A communication strategy that takes into account the access needs of all 

groups in the community has been implemented and shared with partners. 

 

 A series of county-wide Hate Crime Awareness campaigns have been 

delivered during 2016/2017 such as a countywide media campaign including 

a press release and video clip for social media for Hate Crime Awareness 

Week (October 2016). 

 

 Just Lincolnshire has delivered Hate Crime Awareness training to frontline 

staff across all 7 district councils.  

 

Increased confidence in reporting Hate Crime and Hate Incidents: 

 A clear signposting process across Lincolnshire for reports of Hate Crime 

and Hate Incidents has been developed. 

 

Tailored support and advice for victims of Hate Crime and Mate Crime: 

 Operation Revive (delivered by Lincolnshire Police Volunteers) continues to 

be a success. Volunteers recently won the High Sheriffs Award, which 

recognises their commitment to supporting vulnerable victims of Hate Crime 

and Mate Crime.  

 

 Measures are underway to improve referral pathways to victim support for 

victims of Hate Crime.  

 

Reduction in the risk from Hate Crime and Hate Incidents to victims, 

perpetrators and communities: 

 Between 1st April 2016 and 31st March 2017 49 inputs have been delivered 

in schools, colleges and youth organisations with 964 students indicating an 

increased knowledge of Hate Crime and equality following the input. 

 

 Restorative Solutions have agreed that Community Resolutions can be used 

in response to Hate Incidents and Hate Crimes. Hate Crime referrals to be 

monitored from April 2017. 

Page 16



9 
 

   

Domestic Abuse 
 

 

In response to the National Statement of Expectations for Violence Against 

Women and Girls set out recently by the Home Office, the DASMB agreed to 

revise its delivery plan to focus on the five key elements as outlined below. 

 

Ensure the victim is at the centre of service delivery: 

 Work has begun to map and then produce an online directory of services 

for victims. 

 

 The domestic abuse protocol was launched in May 2016. The protocol 

contains information to educate practitioners about safety planning and 

positive steps that can be taken to ensure the immediate safety of the 

victims and dependents. 

 

 The DA survivor form is live and being promoted by all agencies. Survivor 

feedback is shared by all agencies on a quarterly basis at the delivery 

group. An annual report will be produced and taken to the SMB. 

 

 DA outreach services are currently being re-commissioned and the 

feedback as highlighted above forms part of the evidence base that informs 

strategic needs analysis. 

 

Have a clear focus on perpetrators: 

 LPFT have delivered an event for practitioners in relation to mental health 

services available from LPFT. 

 

 A MARAC operating protocol e-learning package is currently under 

development. 

 

 The partnership awaits the result of existing funding bids linked to work 

with perpetrators. 

 

 The ARC team are currently identifying a cohort of DA perpetrators to work 

with in an integrated rehabilitative way. 

 

Page 17



10 
 

Have a strategic approach to commissioning and quality assurance: 

 The current commissioning of outreach services for the three year contract 

will be based upon evidence and feedback and is being jointly 

commissioned with public health. 

 

 The VAWG commissioning tools have been considered within this process. 

 

 A tri-board assurance and performance group has been set up with adults 

and children's safeguarding to provide quality assurance and feedback on 

structure performance and process. 

 

 

Ensure we are locally-led and we safeguard individuals at every point: 

 21 sessions of the DA risk/MARAC training have been delivered. 

 50 % of all MARAC referrals originate from partners other than the police. 
 

 On-line DA training is mandatory for all LCC employees. 
 

 An internal DA group ensures the workforce are protected and supported. 
 

 

Raise awareness of domestic abuse and involve local communities to 

design and deliver solutions: 

 Training has been delivered to teachers to help them incorporate 

preventing abuse in lessons and identify, encourage and respond to 

domestic abuse disclosures. Resources allowing teachers to deliver 

workshops to students have been developed. DA input to all 

students/pupils forms part of the wider "stay safe" plan. 

 

 A DA communications plan for Lincolnshire has been taken to the SMB for 

evaluation. 

 

 DASMB are focusing on how to increase reporting and awareness of DA 

issues, the language used and communication methods. 

 

 

 

Page 18



11 
 

   

Reducing Offending 
 

 

The Reducing Offending Strategic Management Board has been refreshed since 

the last Annual Report. Membership has been reviewed and a revised delivery 

plan has been implemented, along with a new Reducing Offending Strategy.  

 

Develop effective partnership working to reduce and prevent those 

most complex individuals from reoffending: 

 Assisting Rehabilitation through Collaboration (ARC) has been launched in 

Lincolnshire to provide a joint-agency approach to tackling the most 

complex offenders by ensuring they have access to timely and appropriate 

interventions that meet their identified needs, that contribute to their 

rehabilitation and reduce the risk of offending. Despite the project being in 

its infancy it has achieved some very positive results.  

 

 Lincolnshire has been provided with government funding to introduce the 

Social Impact Bond (SIB) as a means to secure long term housing solutions 

for rough sleepers in Lincolnshire. Looking at other broader issues around 

homelessness such as drug or alcohol misuse and mental health. SIB will 

be launched in September 2017.  

 

Implement an effective, proportionate response to young offenders: 

 Work is underway to implement Joint Diversionary Panels as a means to 

prevent reoffending by young people and reduce the number of first time 

entrants to the Youth Justice System. The panel will include representatives 

from the Youth Offending Service, Police and Children's Services.  

 

Develop an effective transition process for young people entering 

adulthood whilst subject to Criminal Justice Services: 

 Action in respect of this outcome has yet to commence.  

 

 

Page 19



12 
 

Effective delivery of the AAMR Sobriety tagging in Lincolnshire to 

effectively tackle alcohol related offences: 

 An Alcohol Abstinence Monitoring Pilot has commenced in Lincolnshire, 

which forms part of a wider pilot commissioned by the Office of Police and 

Crime Commissioners for Humberside, Lincolnshire and North Yorkshire. 

The pilot seeks to better address the issue of alcohol related offending and 

reoffending, particularly in cases where there is violence. Rehabilitative 

interventions will be delivered alongside an Alcohol Abstinence Monitoring 

Requirement. This Requirement provides an enforced period of sobriety 

during which there is a greater opportunity to engage an individual in 

rehabilitative interventions with the aim of delivering improved outcomes 

and reductions in reoffending. The pilot commenced in June 2017 and will 

operate for 2 years.  

 

   

Serious and Organised Crime  
 

 

 We identified an emerging issue in relation to a national threat known as 

'County Lines'.  This was identified as a cross cutting issue impacting on 

both the Serious and Organised Crime Strategic Management Board and the 

Substance Misuse Strategic Management Board.  County Lines involves 

gangs from other areas utilising mainly the rail network to travel into 

Lincolnshire from other metropolitan areas.  Once in the county they 

befriend vulnerable substance misusers and eventually take over their 

property and establish one phone line (the line) in which to deal drugs 

from.  This is a national trend identified by the National Crime Agency and 

involves the use of gangs, weapons and violence and can include elements 

of exploitation (sexual and other) to take over existing drug supply and 

establish new drug networks, operated by the use of a single phone 

line.  Thus far in the county all lines have been identified and disrupted 

leading to some prosecutions, however the threat remains.  To tackle this 

issue we have established a multi-agency task and finish group.  The first 

part of this work has focused on raising awareness of county lines, how to 

identify concerns and who to report intelligence to.  A number of frontline 

staff have been trained and intelligence briefings are being developed and 

shared with appropriate staff.      

 

 

Page 20



13 
 

 We have identified Modern Day Slavery as a priority for the SMB and have 

established a partnership delivery group for this.  We are in the process of 

establishing a Delivery Plan for this, taking into account learning from Op 

Pottery.   

 

 

 

Sexual Offences  
 

 

Prevent sexual violence and abuse: 

 The #NOMORE Campaign was developed which includes the 'Ask for Angela' 

Scheme. The #NOMORE campaign has been used to engage with university 

students and the general public. 'Ask for Angela' has since gone global.  

 

 A sexual violence policy for sex entertainment venues to adhere to has been 

developed. The coordinator, along with Police Licensing, has engaged with 

district licensing and lap dancing venues in Lincoln and Boston to implement 

the policy. Boston venues have agreed but Lincoln venues so far have been 

more difficult. 

 

 A piece of analytical work with particular focus on cyber enabled, alcohol 

related and date rape/drug related sexual violence has been commissioned 

and completed by Safer Communities. It will enable us to understand the 

picture in the county.  

 

 Trust House has started to provide education sessions to year 11+ pupils on 

consent using a workshop called 'Is this Rape?' 

 

 

Provide quality services: 

 The SMB and DG have engaged with Circles, who provide perpetrators with 

support and accountability to reduce reoffending, to ensure efforts are not 

just victim focussed.   

 

 A data capture form was created to better understand sexual violence in the 

county and the services being accessed. It will be used to inform future 

commissioning and understand the picture of service use in the county. 

Support services have started to complete the form. 

Page 21



14 
 

 

 Mapping of services in the county has been carried out and a service grid 

was put together by the delivery group in order to help services identify 

what support is out there.  

 

Pursue perpetrators: 

 Anonymous Data capture forms for incidents not formally reported to the 

police have been produced to enable services to provide perpetrator 

information intelligence to the police.  

 

 A partnership campaign was produced to encourage reporting of information 

on perpetrators in the county either to the police or via crime-stoppers.  

 

 National Ugly Mugs training has been provided to services across the 

county. 

 

 

Partnership working: 

 SV SMB is now established and making progress. 

 

 A SV delivery group has been formed with partners across the county. 

 

 The SV delivery group have established a pathway through to services, it 

was decided a website: www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/nomore would be better 

than a phone line. 

 

 The #NOMORE brand has been created to raise awareness. All partners 

have participated in the #NOMORE campaign. 

 

 The Alcohol Licensing group was set up to look at the issues around serving 

those who are already drunk. This has since disbanded as the Licensing 

meeting was considered a sufficient forum to raise issues. The police have 

been tasked now with implementing regular checks to gather evidence 

before we progress with this area.  

 

 

 

Page 22

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/nomore


15 
 

 

Substance Misuse 
 

 

Promoting responsible drinking: 

 Op Quicksand was trialled in Lincoln and whilst initially it demonstrated 
positive outcomes soon the process was diluted. A refresh of the scheme is 

required.  
 

 A partnership awareness diary has been created and activity was carried out 
for Alcohol Awareness Week and Dry January. 

 

 

Reduce alcohol and drug related crime and anti-social behaviour: 

 The Blue Light Outreach project was created in the county using funding 

from LCC and the PCC. 

 

 The District itemiser has been brought out in to the community of East 

Lindsey for frequent activity. 

 

 To reduce underage alcohol sales, test purchasing activity is being carried 

out by Trading Standards.  

 

 The Chamber of Commerce has been commissioned to set up PubWatch 

schemes across the county. 

 

 Cardiff model data was looked at and it was decided that it was not robust 

enough to provide any support for current activity in the county.  

 

 A community alcohol partnership (CAP) was successfully established in 

Boston. 

 

 

Deliver high quality alcohol and drug treatment systems: 

 A new drug and alcohol misuse service has been commissioned for the 
county taking it from two providers to one. 

  

 Blue Light training was commissioned by LCC for all front line staff in the 
county. 15 sessions in total have been delivered across the county. 

 

Page 23



16 
 

 A pilot programme with prisoners was launched and proved successful. It is 

now being rolled out for future inmates. 

 
 A Dual Diagnosis strategy has been written and a group has been formed 

(including mental health and substance misuse services) to work out the 
most effective pathway for referral and working mechanisms in order to 

deliver suitable services to clients.  
 

 A review of treatment pathways has taken place and continues to be 
reviewed by Addaction as they take over the contract. 

 
 The process of establishing a recovery working group and innovation fund 

committee has begun. 

 

 

Drug and alcohol prevention: 

 Prevention education for secondary school pupils in the county has been 

commissioned by the coordinator. 

 Local campaigns for Alcohol Awareness Week and Dry January were 

developed and carried out.  

 

Page 24



                            Appendix B

Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership

Community Safety Agreement 

Appendix 2 - Anti-Social Behaviour Delivery Plan 2015-18

P
age 25



2
April 2017

Contents

Introduction.....................................................................................................................................................................2

Summary of Strategy ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..4

Overarching Outcome ...............................................................................................................................................................5

Sub Outcomes (inc. measures and key tasks )………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………6

Resources ................................................................................................................................................................................20

Risks.........................................................................................................................................................................................21

P
age 26



3
April 2017

Introduction

This document supports the 2015-18 Community Safety Agreement for Lincolnshire.  As reported in the Community Safety Agreement, 
following the completion of a Strategic Assessment process and priority setting event, the Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership have 
agreed to focus on the following priorities:

 Anti-Social Behaviour and Hate Crime
 Domestic Abuse
 Reducing Offending
 Serious and Organised Crime
 Sexual Violence
 Substance Misuse

In putting together this delivery plan, the Anti-Social Behaviour and Hate Crime Strategic Management Board have taken in to account the 
findings and recommendations of the County Strategic Assessment and considered the following brief, used by the Lincolnshire Community 
Safety Partnership when determining the priorities:

 Do we add value as a partnership?
 Do we, together, make a difference?
 Do we recognise and tackle the emerging?
 Do we tackle ‘cause' and prevent more?
 Do we increase effectiveness and efficiency?

As such, the delivery plan does not capture existing activity but those tasks which will drive sustainable change for the better in tackling anti-
social behaviour for Lincolnshire.

This is a 'live' delivery plan and will be updated regularly by the Anti-Social Behaviour and Hate Crime Strategic Management Board over the 
course of the 2015-18 period.

P
age 27



4
April 2017

Summary of Strategy:

Year One

 Improve the case management of vulnerable and repeat victims of anti-social behaviour.
 Train frontline staff to better understand mental illness, disability and personality disorders.  
 Ensure countywide procedures to tackle anti-social behaviour are being employed across all partner agencies.
 Understand the needs of perpetrators of anti-social behaviour.
 Identify anti-social behaviour priority locations. 

Year Two

 Understand the effectiveness of anti-social behaviour victim case management.
 Improved understanding, amongst professionals, on how to access mental health services and support in Lincolnshire.  
 Evaluate the use of the new powers and tools to tackle anti-social behaviour across Lincolnshire. 
 Provide a tailored approach to perpetrators of anti-social behaviour, using all the support and enforcement tools available to find the 

best solution.   
 Deliver a targeted response to anti-social behaviour priority locations. 

Year Three

 Deliver a robust, partnership response to vulnerable victims of anti-social behaviour. 
 Provide a standardised approach for Police, Local Authorities and Registered Providers when dealing with anti-social behaviour cases 

with a mental health dimension. 

P
age 28



5
April 2017

Overarching Outcome: Lincolnshire experiences less anti-social behaviour

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4Indicator Source Previous 
Year(s)

2016/17

Commentary

5,980

5,112 5,897 4,558 4,420

2015/16

5,269 5,846 4,732 4,454

2014/15

Reduction in Police 
recorded ASB incidents

Community 
Safety 

Analysts – 
NSPIS 

Command & 
Control

2017/18

2016/17
19,987

2015/16
20,301

2014/15
21,232

5,766 6,372 4,704

                  

4,390

Q1 2017/18 - ASB has increased by 17% 
compared to the same quarter last year. All areas 
have seen the increase. Begging & vagrancy, 
nuisance neighbours, shouting and swearing and 
trespass have all increase where other types of 
ASB have not.

P
age 29



6
April 2017

Boston South Holland East Lindsey Lincoln West Lindsey North Kesteven South Kesteven
2017/18

Q1 597 555 1,118 1,506 681 580 946
Q2

Q3

Q4

2016/17

Q1 546 504 1,039 1,265 539 456 763
Q2 624 590 1,206 1,382 588 608 903

Q3 437 400 816 1,181 556 425 744
Q4 381 380 843 1,100 579 390 747
2015/16

Q1 555 542 1,073 1,259 532 528 781
Q2 742 545 1,189 1,298 656 522 875
Q3 497 465 814 1,331 519 383 717
Q4 455 451 807 1,215 481 409 636

Sub Outcomes:

1. Improved response to vulnerable victims of anti-social behaviour. 
2. The use of the new powers and tools introduced by the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 are embedded within 

partner organisations.  
3. Provide a balanced response to perpetrators of anti-social behaviour based around rehabilitation and enforcement.
4. Encourage a problem solving approach to identified locations affected by anti-social behaviour.  

P
age 30



7
April 2017

Outcome 1: Improve response to vulnerable victims of anti-social behaviour 

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Progress Update
Start End

Year 1
1.0 Implement the Duplicate Names function on Sentinel. Sentinel 

Administrator/Configuration 
Group April 2015 May 2015

Complete - function 
installed on 3/12/15

1.1 Implement a solution to Complex Triggers on Sentinel.   Sentinel 
Administrator/Configuration 

Group April 2015 May 2015

Complete - Sentinel 
Version 2.7 to be 
implemented. 

1.2 Partnership to review the use of Sentinel prior to annual 
contract renewal in September 2015.  

ASB Delivery Group/ASB 
SMB

April 2015 September 
2015

Complete – Review 
undertaken.  Project Board 
established to consider 
future ASB case 
management. 

1.3 Implement performance monitoring of partnership case 
management activity to share with the ASB SMB and ASB 
Delivery Group.    

Safer Communities 
Commissioning Team July 2015 January 

2016

Complete - performance 
data shared with partners 
every quarter. 

1.4 Establish a process to monitor and evaluate the 
effectiveness of VoiceAbility Anti-Social Behaviour 
Advocacy Support Service, including partnership referral 
rate. 

Safer Communities 
Commissioning Team July 2015 August 

2015

Complete – evaluation of 
service undertaken. 

1.5 Improve awareness for frontline staff to better identify 
early signs of mental illness, disability and personality 
disorders. 

County ASB Co-ordinator May 2015 July 2015

Complete – training 
delivered in May 2015. 

1.6 Improve awareness for frontline staff to better identify 
victims of domestic abuse (linked to cases of anti-social 
behaviour). 

County ASB Co-
ordinator/Natalie White October 

2015
November 

2015

Complete – Training 
delivered on 22/10/15 and 
19/11/15.

P
age 31



8
April 2017

Year 2
2.0 Implement a vulnerable/repeat weekly briefing process. Safer Communities 

Commissioning Team 
June 2016 September 

2016

Yet to commence. 
Awaiting the 
implementation of a new 
ASB Information and Case 
Management. 

2.1 Identify a suitable solution to current ASB Information and 
Case Management issues. 

Project Board April 2016 September 
2016

Complete – Following a 
series of partnership 
workshops the ASB SMB 
agreed a new information 
and case management 
system is required.  

2.2 Deliver ASB Case Management Training (including risk 
assessments) to ASB Practitioners and Neighbourhood 
Policing Teams.  County ASB Co-ordinator

June 2016 September 
2016

Complete – Case 
Management Action Plan 
Guidance has been 
produced and shared with 
partners. ASB SMB agreed 
no further training is 
required at present.

2.3 Review the effectiveness of the ASB Victim Support 
Service provided by Victim Support. 

Alison Cathie (Victim 
Support) and County ASB 

Co-ordinator. 

September 
2016 March 2017

Complete - Quarterly 
meetings set up between 
VS and the County ASB Co-
ordinator to monitor 
referral numbers, customer 
satisfaction and discuss any 
issues as and when they 
arise.  
Referral sources vary from 
police, council, housing 
associations, self and ADT.

P
age 32



9
April 2017

Q1 2016/17 - 31 
Q2 2016/17 – 36
Q3 2016/17 – 24
Q4 2016/17 -  17

2.4 Implement Performance monitoring for the Anti-Social 
Behaviour Risk Assessment Conference (ASBRAC).

County ASB Co-ordinator
April 2016 March 2017

Complete – performance 
monitoring to commence 
from 3rd April 2017. 

2.5 Establish a clear, simple referral route into mental health 
services – via Single Point of Access.  

County ASB Co-ordinator

April 2016 March 2017

Mental Health Awareness 
Training delivered to ASB 
Practitioners across Police, 
Local Authorities and RSL’s. 
Further work to be 
undertaken (see task 3.2 
below). 

Year 3
3.0 Produce a business case for future ASB Information and 

Case Management.
C/I Simon Outen 

Jan 2017 April/May 
2017

Local Authority Chief 
Executive commitment for 
continued funding sought 
for a new system; along 
with financial support from 
the PCC.  

3.1 Implement a new ASB Information and Case Management 
System. 

C/I Simon Outen
May 2017 Jan 2018

Tender application in 
production – led by Safer 
Communities. 

3.2 Develop an information sharing pathway between ASB 
Practitioners and mental health professionals for low and 
medium cases of ASB. 

County ASB Co-ordinator 

April 2017 March 2018

New process implemented 
for information sharing at 
ASBRAC level. Further work 
required to improve 
information sharing for 
lower level cases of ASB. 

P
age 33



10
April 2017

3.3 Monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of ASBRAC to 
manage vulnerable victims of anti-social behaviour. County ASB Co-ordinator 

April 2016 March 2018

First quarter performance 
data received. Safer 
Communities Analysts 
propose using this 
information to form part of 
an annual evaluation of the 
ASBRAC. 

Measures:

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4Indicator Source Previous 
Year(s)

2016/17

Commentary

No data 

2015/16

No data

2014/15

INDICATOR DISCHARGED
Proportion of repeat victims 
managed on Sentinel

Community 
Safety 

Analysts
TBC

No data 
 

No data source available. Revised ASB 
Weekly Briefing  

Proportion non-victim based open 
cases on Sentinel which contain an 
update within the last 28 days and 

Community 
Safety 

Analysts 2017/18

2017/18

Q1 2017/18 – snapshot at 13th June 

P
age 34



11
April 2017

61.6%

2016/17

59.2% 71.4% Not 
available 

Not 
available 

2015/16

No data 38.2% 48.6% 76.8%

2014/15

action plan. 

2016/17

2015/16

N/A

No data No data No data No data 

2017. 

Unfortunately, due to reduced 
analytical capacity in Q3 and Q4 2016-
17, no snapshot of performance was 
taken. It has not been possible to 
determine performance retrospectively 
because of the way data is structured 
on Sentinel.

2017/18

41.1%

2016/17

33.3% 48.9% Not 
available 

Not 
available 

2015/16

No data 16.3% 38.1% 39.7%

Proportion of victim based open 
cases on Sentinel that fully comply 
with the SOP’s (ie all victims in the 
case have been risk assessed in the 
required timeframe, the case has 
been updated in the required 
timeframe and the case contains 
an action plan). 

Community 
Safety 

Analysts 2017/18

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

Q1 2017/18 – snapshot at 13th June 
2017

Unfortunately, due to reduced 
analytical capacity in Q3 and Q4 2016-
17, no snapshot of performance was 
taken. It has not been possible to 
determine performance retrospectively 
because of the way data is structured 
on Sentinel.

P
age 35



12
April 2017

N/A

No data No data No data No data 

Outcome 2: The use of the new powers and tools introduced by the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014 are embedded within partner organisations

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Progress Update
Start End

Year 1 
1.0 Evaluate the use of the new powers and tools to tackle anti-

social behaviour.  
County ASB Co-

ordinator/Supt Paul 
Timmins April 2015 September 

2015

Complete –quarterly 
performance monitoring 
established.
 

1.1 Review new countywide procedures to ensure effective 
delivery of anti-social behaviour enforcement. 

County ASB Co-
ordinator September 

2015
November 

2015

Complete – revised 
document signed off 
06/11/15. 

1.2 Produce a public report outlining quarterly review outcomes 
on the Community Trigger.  

County ASB Co-
ordinator April 2015 March 2017

Complete - reporting 
process established. 

Year 2
2.0 Monitor and evaluate the use of the new powers and tools 

across partners. April 2016 March 2017

Discharged 
Following a discussion on 
performance, the ASB SMB 

P
age 36



13
April 2017

Supt Paul 
Timmins/County ASB 

Co-ordinator

have decided to no longer 
conduct a quarterly 
evaluation of ASB powers 
and tools and instead will 
concentrate on ASB patterns 
and trends.  

2.1 Deliver effective communication at both local and county 
level to ensure that professionals and communities alike 
have a better understanding of anti-social behaviour and are 
aware of the action that can be, or has been taken to address 
it.

Countywide 
Communications led by 

Lincolnshire Police 
C/I Simon Outen

Local Communications 
is each agencies 
responsibility.  

April 2016 March 2017

Ongoing C/I Simon Outen is 
exploring options.  

2.2 Incorporate Community Remedy within the current 
Restorative Justice framework and promote its use in 
response to complaints of anti-social behaviour.  Supt Paul 

Timmins/Restorative 
Justice Co-ordinator April 2016 September 

2016

Complete 
The Community Remedy 
document has been 
encompassed into 
Community Resolutions 
delivered by Lincolnshire 
Police.

2.3 Explore the feasibility of aligning district multi-agency 
meetings e.g. JAG, JAM, ASBAG etc.

County ASB Co-
ordinator April 2016 July 2016

Yet to commence. 

2.4 Develop a best practice forum for ASB Practitioners to 
promote use of the new powers and tools.  

County ASB Co-
ordinator May 2016 September 

2016

Complete
Following a discussion by 
the ASB Delivery Group it 
was agreed that there are 
already a number of online 
ASB forums and it would be 
more appropriate to have 

P
age 37



14
April 2017

‘Good Practice’ as a standing 
item on the ASB Delivery 
Group agenda.  

2.5 Understand and address the challenges faced by ASB 
Practitioners accessing legal support. 

Supt Paul Timmins/
Peter Hunn April 2016 August 

2016

Complete - Local Authorities 
access to legal support has 
been resolved through the 
employment of a new 
solicitor with vast ASB 
knowledge.
Further work is required to 
address accessing legal 
support from CPS – see task 
3.0 

Year 3
3.0 Improve access to legal support from the Crown Prosecution 

Service.  C/I Simon Outen April 2017 Oct 2017 

C/I Simon Outen continuing 
to seek a solution. Low 
staffing within CPS is proving 
problematic. 

Measures:

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4Indicator Source Previous  
Year(s)

2016/17

Commentary

No data 
INDICATOR DISCHARGED
Performance reporting 
on the use of new 
powers and tools

Community 
Safety 

Analysts N/A 2015/16

The decision has been made to cease reporting 
on use of ASB powers and tools for data quality 
purposes. 

P
age 38



15
April 2017

No data
 

Outcome 3: Provide a balanced response to perpetrators of anti-social behaviour based around 
rehabilitation and enforcement

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Progress Update
Start End

Year 1 
1.0 Establish a process to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness 

of the Anti-Social Behaviour Mediation Service, including 
partnership referral rate.

Safer Communities 
Commissioning Team

July 2015
August 
2015

Compete

1.1 Continue to promote Early Intervention measures e.g. 
Troubled Families (Early Help) and Youth Offending 
Prevention Programme, and share quarterly review 
outcomes with the Anti-Social Behaviour Delivery Group and 
Strategic Management Board.

Clare Newborn/Andy 
Fisher

Allan Lugrin 

April 2015 March 2016

Complete – to be added as a 
standard agenda item at the 
ASB Delivery Group meeting. 

1.2 Develop and evaluate a pilot project on the Youth Offending 
Service Mentoring Scheme as an additional measure to tackle 
young perpetrators of anti-social behaviour.  

Jenny Wallace/County 
ASB Co-ordinator April 2015 March 2016

Complete 

1.3 Explore the feasibility of implementing a case management 
approach for persistent perpetrators of anti-social behaviour.  Anti-Social Behaviour

Configuration Group
September 

2015 April 2016
Complete – to be managed 
on Sentinel 

P
age 39



16
April 2017

1.4 Work with the Substance Misuse Co-ordinator to ensure the 
Blue Light Project is integrated with ASB processes. County ASB Co-

ordinator and 
Substance Misuse Co-

ordinator
June 2015 August 

2015

Complete - Blue Light 
Engagement Groups have 
been established in each 
district. SPOC details 
circulated to ASB 
Practitioners. 

Year 2
2.0 Produce a weekly briefing on anti-social behaviour repeat 

perpetrator to share with partners. Safer Communities 
Commissioning Team

September 
2016

December 
2016 

Yet to commence. Awaiting 
the implementation of a 
new ASB Information and 
Case Management.

2.1 Improve awareness for frontline staff on the use of 
Restorative Justice in response to anti-social behaviour. 

County ASB Co-
ordinator/Restorative 
Justice Co-ordinator

May 2016 March 2017 

Complete – 
Input from Restorative 
Solutions delivered to ASB 
Delivery Group.

Quarterly meetings between 
Restorative Solutions and 
the County ASB Co-ordinator 
established to monitor the 
use of RJ, which will 
continue in 2017/18. 

2.2 Promote the use of Restorative Conferencing in response to 
anti-social behaviour neighbour disputes.   

County ASB Co-
ordinator/Suzanne 

McLardy
April 2016 March 2017

Complete  - 
Referral criteria and process 
shared with partners. 
ASB Delivery Group provided 
with an input from 
Restorative Solutions on RJ 
Conferencing.

P
age 40



17
April 2017

Quarterly meetings between 
Restorative Solutions and 
the County ASB Co-ordinator 
established to monitor the 
use of RJ Conferencing, 
which will continue in 
2017/18. 

2.3 Review diversionary activities available to tackle anti-social 
behaviour. 

County ASB Co-
ordinator June 2016 October 

2016

Complete 
Re-established links with 
Positive Futures and the 
Youth Hub. 
All available actives shared 
with partners. 

Year 3
3.0 Review and evaluate the use of Restorative Justice (inc. RJ 

Conferencing) for anti-social behaviour cases.   

County ASB Co-
ordinator/

Restorative Justice Co-
ordinator

April 2017 March 2018

Information currently being 
collated. Positive feedback 
from Restorative Solutions 
during quarterly meeting s 
with the County ASB Co-
ordinator. Referral numbers 
are good, positive outcomes 
conferences and good 
customer satisfaction. 

3.1 Improve understanding of Early Help and the Youth 
Offending Service Prevention and Early Intervention 
programmes. Jo Kavanagh/ Andy 

Cook April 2017 Oct 2017

Update from members 
required on Early Help.  

Introduction of Joint 
Diversionary Panels - update 
from YOS due at ASB SMB 

P
age 41



18
April 2017

and DG. 

Measures:

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4Indicator Source Previous 
Year (s)

2017/18

Commentary

No Data Available 

2016/17

No Data Available

2015/17

19 19 13 No data

2014/15

INDICATOR DISCHARGED
Performance reporting 
on early intervention 
measures (inc. Troubled 
Families  -Early Help 

Troubled 
Families 

Early help - 
number of 

eligible 
families in 

the ASB 
criteria

2017/18

2016/17

2015/16
51

2014/15
55 14 9 18 14

Accurate data still not available due to changes 
in data collection arrangements. 

Will reassess in July 2017 

2016-17 – data remains unavailable. 

No data available for Q4 2015/16 due to a 
change in data collection arrangements. 

2017/18Performance reporting 
on early intervention 
measures 

YOS – 
number of 

referrals into 
the 

2017/18

No data available for Q4 2015/16

P
age 42



19
April 2017

2016/17

No data No data No data  No data

2015/16

Prevention 
Programme

2016/17

2015/16
68

22 26 20 No data

Outcome 4: Encourage a problem solving approach to identified locations affected by anti-social behaviour

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Progress Update
Start End

Year 1 
1.0 Task transferred to year 2. 
Year 2 
2.0 Produce a weekly briefing on anti-social behaviour repeat 

location/hotspot to share with partners. 
Safer Communities 

Commissioning Team
January 

2017
March 2017 Yet to commence. Awaiting 

the implementation of a 
new ASB Information and 
Case Management.

2.1 Explore the feasibility of implementing a case management 
approach to anti-social behaviour hot spot locations. Configuration Group

April 2016 September 
2016

Complete - Hot spot 
locations can be managed 
on Sentinel if necessary. 
Although there is no formal 
process in place.

P
age 43



20
April 2017

Year 3
3.0 Identify ASB priority areas in Lincolnshire. Safer Communities 

Commissioning Team
June 2017 Sept 2017 Yet to commence - For 

discussion at the next ASB 
SMB (Sept 2017). 

Measures:

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 CommentaryIndicator Source Previous 
Year(s)

2017/18
Reduction in number of 
Police recorded incidents 
of ASB that occur in 
priority areas

Community 
Safety 

Analysts – 
NSPIS 

Command & 
Control

Establish a 
baseline

Resources

Initiative Projected 
Annual 
Spend

Period Lead Progress Update

Anti-Social Behaviour Co-ordinator £50,000 April 2017 – 
March 2018

C/I Simon Outen Funding confirmed – all partners 
contributing. 

Sentinel ASB Case Management System £30,000 January 2017- 
January 2018

C/I Simon Outen Future use of the system is not yet 
known. 

Sentinel Administrator £30,000 February 2017 C/I Simon Outen This post is currently resources by 

P
age 44



21
April 2017

- onwards Lincolnshire Police for 1 year. The 
requirement of a permanent 
(partnership) post will depend on the 
outcome of the ASB Information and 
Case Management Review.

Mediation Service for Neighbourhood Dispute Related 
Cases of Anti-Social Behaviour 

£9,000 April 2015 – 
March 2016

Claire Seabourne Service no longer commissioned

Support Service for Vulnerable Victims of Anti-Social 
Behaviour

£46,652 April 2014 – 
March 2016

Claire Seabourne Service no longer commissioned 

Risk Register
Risk No. 
/Date 
created

Key Risks Consequences of Risk RAG 
Rating

LCSP Proposed Actions Action
Date 

Progress/Update

Anti-Social Behaviour
1. April 
2015

Sentinel system fails to 
fulfil our case 
management objectives

 Failure to respond and 
effectively manage high risk 
victims. 

 Risk of serious incident. 

 ASB SMB to provide more 
accurate costings to implement a 
new IT system. 

LCSP to note update

15th May 
2017

14/11/2016 
- ASB SMB and LCSP agree 

that a new IT system is the 
preferred option, should 
finance be secured.

13/02/2017 
- Lincolnshire Police Strategic 

Management have offered 
to produce a partnership 
business case. 

03/04/17 
- Business case (including 

costings as requested by the 
LCSP) shared with ASB SMB 
and Chief Executives.

P
age 45



22
April 2017

18/07/17 
- Funding agreement reached. 

Safer Communities to lead 
the procurement of a new 
system. Due to notice 
requirements with the 
current provider the 
timescale to procure and 
implement a new system is 
extremely tight. Partner 
commitment to treat this as 
a priority is essential.

2. April 
2016

Lack of support from the 
Crown Prosecution Service 
to use some of the new 
powers and tools 
introduced by the ASB 
Crime and Policing Act 
2014. 

 Prevents officers from 
taking swift effective action 
against perpetrators of ASB. 
 

 Officers unable to utilise 
positive requirements. 

 Victims at risk of further 
harm.

LCSP to note/influence 15th May 
2017

June 2016 – 
- Issues raised by Police ASB 

Co-ordinators re: lack of 
support from CPS for ASB 
CBO’s and CPN Breaches.

- CPS were made aware and a 
meeting was held between 
them and the ASB Co-
ordinators but led to little 
change. 

06/03/2017 
- A meeting has taken place 

between Mike Parker from 
CPS and Supt. Paul Timmins. 
Mike acknowledged the 
issues and that he needed to 
upskill his team on ASB 
legislation. However, there 
are still concerns around 
capacity that are still 
unresolved e.g. only 2½ 

P
age 46



23
April 2017

prosecutors for Lincolnshire, 
which in reality is not 
enough to cover the 
workload.  

01/06/17 
- training for CPS lawyers on 

ASB legislation is being 
considered to address some 
of the concerns raised by 
ASB Police Co-ordinators.

3. Sept 
2016

Lack of communication, 
engagement and 
commitment from Mental 
Health (LPFT), Children’s 
Services and Adult 
Safeguarding at ASBRAC.

 Increased risk of harm to 
victims.

 Further offending from 
perpetrators. 

 Risk of inappropriate action 
being taken.

 Cases remaining open for 
prolonged periods of time.

 Reputational risk to the 
partnership and individual 
organisations.

LCSP Support provided. 15th 
May 
2017

08/06/2016
- Concerns raised by ASB 

Delivery Group.
- ASB County Co-ordinator 

shared concerns with 
necessary agency 
representatives and made 
numerous attempts to 
resolve the issues.    

14/09/2016
- Concerns escalated from ASB 

Delivery Group to ASB SMB 
following a lack of change.  

- ASB SMB Chair, working 
alongside the ASB County 
Co-ordinator, contacted 
Children’s Services, Adult 
Safeguarding and LPFT in 
Oct 2016 to further express 
our concerns and seek a 
solution. 

Outcomes:
01/12/16 

P
age 47



24
April 2017

- Children’s Services  - Jo 
Kavanagh has reviewed 
Children's Services 
representation at ASBRAC 
and new members have 
been established – currently 
being monitored.

- Adult Safeguarding – No 
response from Adult 
Safeguarding initially.

21/02/17 
- Chair spoke to Mandy 

Cooke.  Issues passed onto 
Justin Hackney to try and 
resolve but no changes have 
been implemented yet (e.g. 
continue to only have one 
member of staff covering all 
six ASBRACS).  Thus ASBRAC 
cases requiring Adult 
Safeguarding are still 
without support.

- Mental Health – No 
response from LPFT initially.

19/12/16 
- Liz Bainbridge made aware 

within LPFT but little 
progress has been made to 
secure consistent 
attendance countywide.

P
age 48



25
April 2017

14/03/17 
- ASB County Co-ordinator 

raised concerns with mental 
health engagement with 
Colin Jordan and Sue 
Prothroe from West CCG and 
is awaiting a meeting.

08/05/17 
- Meeting between ASB 

County Co-ordinator and Sue 
Shores on 22/05/17.  
Conversation held with Liz 
Bainbridge who is going to 
escalate issues to Directors 
and personally attend a 
ASBRAC in June.

29/06/17 
- New measures have been 

implemented to improve 
engagement from LPFT at 
ASBRAC. Monitoring will 
take place to ensure success. 

31/07/17 
- Adult Safeguarding PP's now 

attend ASBRAC.
5.May 
2017

Lack of engagement from 
CCG at LCSP 

 Impact on ASB SMB ability 
to escalate problems 
accessing mental health 
services/support/guidance.

For LCSP to consider. Update required after LCSP 
meeting. 

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



                                          Appendix C

Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership

Community Safety Agreement 

Appendix 3 – Hate Crime Delivery Plan 2015-18

P
age 51



2
April 2017 

Contents

Introduction.....................................................................................................................................................................3

Summary of Strategy ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..4

Overarching Outcome ...............................................................................................................................................................4

Sub Outcomes (inc. measures and key tasks )………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………6

Resources ................................................................................................................................................................................19

Risks.........................................................................................................................................................................................19

P
age 52



3
April 2017 

Introduction

This document supports the 2015-18 Community Safety Agreement for Lincolnshire.  As reported in the Community Safety Agreement, 
following the completion of a Strategic Assessment process and priority setting event, the Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership have 
agreed to focus on the following priorities:

 Anti-Social Behaviour and Hate Crime
 Domestic Abuse
 Reducing Offending
 Serious and Organised Crime
 Sexual Violence
 Substance Misuse

In putting together this delivery plan, the Anti-Social Behaviour and Hate Crime Strategic Management Board have taken in to account the 
findings and recommendations of the County Strategic Assessment and considered the following brief, used by the Lincolnshire Community 
Safety Partnership when determining the priorities:

 Do we add value as a partnership?
 Do we, together, make a difference?
 Do we recognise and tackle the emerging?
 Do we tackle 'cause' and prevent more?
 Do we increase effectiveness and efficiency?

As such, the delivery plan does not capture existing activity but those tasks which will drive sustainable change for the better in tackling hate 
crime for Lincolnshire.

This is a 'live' delivery plan and will be updated regularly by the Anti-Social Behaviour and Hate Crime Strategic Management Board over the 
course of the 2015-18 period.

P
age 53



4
April 2017 

Summary of Strategy:

Year One
 Produce a Hate Crime Profile for Lincolnshire.

Year Two
 Create a countywide Hate Crime Strategy (using the information from the Hate Crime Profile).

Year Three
 Deliver an effective partnership response to reports of Hate Crime and Hate Incidents. 

Overarching Outcome:  Improved response to reports of Hate Crime and Hate Incidents

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4Indicator Source Previous 
Year(s) 

2017/18

Commentary

2016/17

96 108 74 90

Increase in reporting of 
Hate Incidents 

(Police and Stop Hate UK 
data)

Community 
Safety 

Analysts
2017/18

2016/17
368

2015/16

2016/17/Q4. Hate incidents reported to the police 
have increased by 10.5% in 2016-17 compared to 
2015-16.

2016/17 Q3. Hate incidents are lower this quarter 
compared to the same quarter last year. The 
number of hate incidents reported year to date still 
remain higher than 2015-16 (11%).

P
age 54



5
April 2017 

76 93 82 82

2014/15

2015/16
333

2014/15 
339

83 113 74 69

2016/17 Q2. Hate incidents are up by 16.1% 
compared to the same quarter last year. The only 
area not to have seen an increase is North Kesteven. 
Most incidents are racially related and this is the 
only type of hate incident to have significantly 
increased compared to last year (+30.4%).

2016/17 Q1. Hate incidents have increased this 
quarter (26.3% higher than Q1 2015-16). With the 
exception of North Kesteven and East Lindsey, all 
other districts have seen an increase. Although 
increasing, hate incidents have not jumped outside 
of what might be expected when looking at previous 
years.

2017/18

2016/17

75 105 102 101

2015/16

68 83 83 75

Increase in Hate Crime 
reported to Police (Police 
data - total crimes with at 
least one Hate Indicator)

Community 
Safety 

Analysts 2017/18

2016/17
383

2015/16
309

2014/15

2016/17 Q4. Hate crimes reported to the police 
have increased by 25.6% in 2016-17 compared to 
2015-16. Race related hate crime remains the 
largest proportion with no other hate crime type 
showing significant change.

2016/17 Q3. Hate crime continues to increase and is 
22.5% higher this quarter compared to the same 
quarter last year. All areas apart from Lincoln and 
South Kesteven have experienced an increase. 

2016/17 Q2. Hate crime is up 27.7% compared to 
the same quarter last year. All areas except for 

P
age 55



6
April 2017 

2014/15
214

45 55 65 49

Boston have experienced the increase. Racial hate 
crime is still the largest proportion of hate crime but 
the greatest increase in hate crime is relating to 
religious hate (although the numbers remain small).

2016/17 Q1.Hate crime is up 8.8% on the same 
quarter last year. Lincoln, West Lindsey and North 
Kesteven have seen the increase, although numbers 
are relatively low. All types of hate crime have seen 
an increase in Q1 compared to last year except for 
hate crime relating to sexual orientation.

Sub Outcomes:

1. Achieve a better understanding of Hate Crime and Hate Incidents in Lincolnshire
2. Increased awareness of Hate Crime and Hate Incidents.
3. Increased confidence in reporting of Hate Crime and Hate Incidents.
4. Tailored support and advice for victims of Hate Crime and Hate Incidents.
5. Reduction in the risk from Hate Crime and Hate Incidents to victims, perpetrators and communities.

P
age 56



7
April 2017 

Outcome 1: Achieve a better understanding of Hate Crime and Hate Incidents in Lincolnshire

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Progress Update
Start End

Year 1 
1.0 Produce a Hate Crime Profile for Lincolnshire Safer Communities 

Commissioning Team 
(with the support of the 

Hate Crime Delivery 
Group)

August 
2015

October 
2015

Complete – a piece of work 
has been done to identify 
areas across Lincolnshire 
that disproportionately 
suffer high levels of hate 
incidents. This information 
has been used to direct 
awareness raising 
campaigns.  

Year 2 

2.0 Revise Countywide Hate Crime Strategy.   Mel Cowell and Lisa 
Duckworth

April 2016 July 2016 Complete – 2016-18 
Countywide Strategy signed 
up to by all partners.

Year 3 

3.0 Conduct countywide Hate Crime Survey C/I Dan Whyment and 
Lisa Duckworth

April 2017 Sept 2017

3.1 Identify community engagement groups Safer Communities 
Commissioning Team

Sept 2017 Oct 2017

P
age 57



8
April 2017 

Measures:

Indicator Source Reporting 
Period

Update

Complete Hate Crime 
Profile

Community Safety 
Analysts Police data 

2010-2015

Census 2011

A piece of work has been completed mapping those areas in the county that suffer 
disproportionately high levels of hate incidents to inform activity around awareness and 
the Hate Crime Strategy.

Revise County Hate 
Crime Strategy 

County ASB Co-
ordinator/Melanie 

Cowell 
(Lincolnshire 

Police)

N/A

Complete – all agencies have signed up to the revised Strategy. 

Countywide Hate Crime 
Survey 

Community Safety 
Analyst 

Hate Crime 
Survey 
results 

Outcome 2: Increased awareness of Hate Crime and Hate Incidents 

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Progress Update
Start End

Year 1  and 2
1.0 Develop a communication strategy that takes into account 

the access needs of all groups in the community. C/I Dan Whyment May 2016 March 2017 Compete.

1.1 Support national Hate Crime Awareness campaigns to 
improve understanding of hate crime and reporting options April 2016 March 2017 Complete - A series of 

countywide campaigns have 

P
age 58



9
April 2017 

for Lincolnshire.  ALL HCDG members been delivered during 
2016/17 (listed in the 
indictor section below). 

1.2 Undertake awareness raising with diverse groups within 
communities across Lincolnshire.  

HCDG District Leads 
and Paul Drury Sept 2016 March 2017

Ongoing - Local pieces of 
work will commence once 
Paul Drury has completed a 
mapping exercise of 
community groups across 
Lincolnshire and the county 
Hate Crime Survey has been 
conducted.

1.3 Deliver hate crime awareness training within local 
community, statutory and commercial agencies across 
Lincolnshire – focusing particularly on police, local 
authorities, schools and bus companies. 

Wesley Shelbourne/
C/I Dan Whyment April 2016 March 2017

Complete. Full details noted 
in the indicator section 
below. 

Year 3

3.0 Expand the delivery of hate crime awareness training to GP’s, 
Age UK and Criminal Justice agencies. C/I Dan Whyment April 2017 March 2018

3.1 Develop and implement an initiative across Lincolnshire to 
support people with day to tasks including travelling on 
public transport, shopping etc.  

C/I Dan Whyment April 2017 Sept 2017

Measures:

P
age 59



10
April 2017 

Indicator Source Reporting 
Period

Update

Implementation of 
Communications Strategy  

Lincolnshire 
Police N/A Communications Strategy shared with partners. 

Countywide Hate Crime 
Awareness Campaigns 

District and 
Police Leads 

N/A

Euro Football Championships – raising awareness of Hate Crime and promoting the use of Stop 
Hate UK.  

Hate Crime Awareness Week (8th -15th October 2016) – Countywide media campaign including 
a press release and video clip for social media.

Countywide press release raising awareness of International Day for the Elimination of Racial 
Discrimination, which also reiterated the need to report Hate Crime.  

Hate Crime Awareness 
Training 

Lincolnshire 
Police and 

Just 
Lincolnshire 

Mar 2016 to 
Apr 2017 

Just Lincolnshire have delivered 11 training sessions since April 2016 (totalling 132 members of 
staff across a range of agencies including local authorities) with a further 6 sessions scheduled 
between now and April 2017 (covering approximately 92 members of staff).

C/I DW has delivered two awareness training sessions in Force to Neighbourhood Policing 
Teams and FCR staff. 

All bus companies have been given information on hate crime and how to report it. Some 
companies have also agreed to include an input on hate crime within their training package for 
all new drivers. 

Outcome 3: Increased confidence in reporting Hate Crime and Hate Incidents 

P
age 60



11
April 2017 

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Progress Update
Start End

Year 1
1.0 Develop a co-ordinated partnership approach to third party 

reporting across Lincolnshire – exploring the use of Stop Hate 
UK as a single third party reporting mechanism.

C/Insp Dan Whyment, 
Claire Court and 

Wesley Shelbourne 

June 2015 September 
2015

Complete.
Single third party reporting 
process agreed by partners; 
delivered by Stop Hate UK 
and supported by a series of 
signposting centres located 
across the county. 

Year 2

2.0 Develop a clear signposting process across Lincolnshire for 
reports of Hate Crime and Hate Incidents.

C/I Dan Whyment and 
Andrew Bollard 
(Stop Hate UK)

April 2016 October 
2016

Complete. 

2.2 Promote the importance of reporting hate crimes and hate 
incidents and how reporting what some may perceive as a 
low level incident or crime can in fact help the police and 
criminal justice agencies improve their understanding of hate 
crime and incidents. C/I Dan Whyment May 2016 March 2017

Link to outcome 2, task 1.1 
and 1.2 – the importance of 
reporting has been 
promoted throughout 
Lincolnshire utilising 
national campaigns. 
However, further, targeted 
work, is required locally. 

Year 3 

3.0 Review the response to Hate Incidents and Hate Crimes to 
ensure all necessary action is taken. 

C/I Dan Whyment and 
Mel Cowell May 2017 Sept 2017

P
age 61



12
April 2017 

Measures:

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4Indicator Source Previous 
Year(s) 

2017/18

Commentary

2016/17

20 25 40 48

2015/16

15 19 29 8

2014/15

Increase reports made to 
Stop Hate UK

Stop Hate 
UK 2017/18

2016/17
143

2015/16
71

2014/15
115

50 38 18 9

Q3 2016/17 – of the 40 contacts made to Stop Hate 
UK there were 18 incident reports and 22 non 
incident reports (e.g. calls seeking updates and 
support or information and advice). 

Q2 2016/17 – of the 25 contacts made to Stop Hate 
UK there were 9 incident reports and 16 non-
incident.

Q1 2016/17 – of the 20 contacts made to Stop Hate 
UK, there were 14 incident reports and 6 non 
incident. 

2015/16 Summary- There were 71 contacts to the 
Stop Hate from Lincolnshire during 2015-16. This is a 
decrease on previous years but still shows a good 
level of usage. Of those contacts 44 were to report 
incidents involving all Hate motivations. Most 
frequently reported motivation were Disability, 
Gender Identity and Sexual Orientation with lower 
numbers for Race, Religion and Age. Victims 
reported being subject to Cyber Bullying, 
Threatening Behaviour and Verbal Abuse.

Outcome 4: Tailored support and advice for victims of hate crime and mate crime. 

P
age 62



13
April 2017 

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Progress Update
Start End

Year 2/3
2.0 Identify current support provision in Lincolnshire and provide 

information about services in accessible formats and 
languages and in accessible places within the community.

C/I Dan Whyment and 
ASB County Co-

ordinator 
Sept 2016 March 2018

Yet to commence. 

2.1 Improve referral pathways with Victim Support Mosaic 
Service 

Alison Cathie April 2016 October 
2016

Ongoing - concerns with the 
flagging of hate crime 
referrals to Victim Support 
from Lincolnshire Police has 
been raised in Force. It is a 
systematic issue that should 
be addressed soon with the 
introduction of a new Hate 
Crime Proforma. 

2.2 Promote Op REVIVE and continue to train volunteers to 
support, educate and work with members of the community 
at risk of or experiencing hate crime and mate crime. 

Mel Cowell April 2016 March 2018

Op REVIVE has been running 
for just over a year.

103 referrals have been 
received since the project 
commenced (42 for Mate 
Crime and 2 for Hate Crime)

30 active volunteers (each 
have 2/3 cases). Undertake a 
broad spectrum of training. 

Would like to expand the 
service but are not currently 

P
age 63



14
April 2017 

in a position to do so due to 
funding. 

Measures:

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4Indicator Source Previous 
Year(s)

2017/18

Commentary

2016/17

Increased Hate Crime 
referrals to Victim 
Support 

Victim 
Support

2017/18

2016/17
50

18 24 5 3

Referral sources vary from police, council, 
housing associations, self and ADT.
Q4 2016/17 breakdown – 
January - 2
February - 0
March - 1
Q3 2016/17 breakdown – 
October - 3
November - 2
December - 0
Q2 2016/17 breakdown-
July - 9
August - 8

P
age 64



15
April 2017 

September - 7
Q1 2016/17 breakdown-
April - 6
May - 6
June - 6

2017/18

2016/17

Increased referrals to Op 
Revive (for Hate and 
Mate Crime only).

Lincolnshire 
Police 2017/18

2016/17
43

11 5 17 20

Q4 2016/17 breakdown
January – 8         (2 Hate Crime/6 Mate Crime)
February – 3       (all Mate Crime)
March – 9            (1 Hate Crime/8 Mate Crime)
Q3 2016/17 breakdown – 
October – 9        (2 Hate Crime/7 Mate Crime)
November – 4    (all Mate Crime)
December – 4    (1 Hate Crime/3 Mate Crime)
Q2 2016/17 breakdown - 
July - 2                   (Mate Crime)
August - 1             (Hate Crime)
September - 2      (Mate Crime)
Q1 2016/17 
5 - refused due to it being unsafe for volunteers.
4 - allocated to volunteers 
2 - cases resolved and closed

Outcome 5: Reduction in the risk from Hate Crime and Hate Incidents to victims, perpetrators and 
communities.  

P
age 65



16
April 2017 

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Progress Update
Start End

Year 1
No formal actions in response to this outcome due to a focus on reporting mechanism. 

Year 2 

2.0 Undertake preventative work in schools, colleges and youth 
organisations. 

Wesley Shelbourne April 2016 March 2017

Complete 
Between 1st April 2016 to 
31st March 49 inputs have 
been delivered with 964 
students indicating an 
increased knowledge of hate 
Crime and Equality following 
the input. 

2.1 Engage communities in preventative action which seeks to 
reduce community tension, promote cohesion and celebrate 
diversity and everybody’s contributions to Lincolnshire. Donna Brewer and Paul 

Drury Sept 2016 March 2017

Ongoing - Maddy Eyre, Local 
Communities Officer at 
Boston Borough Council is 
now working with Paul Drury 
to action this task.  

2.2 Deliver focused work in areas with elevated levels of hate 
crime and incidents or where community tensions have been 
identified.

HCDG District Leads Sept 2016 March 2017
Task moved to year 3

2.3 Production of Myth Busting information to be promoted 
across Lincolnshire to promote community cohesion and 
respect for individuals from all backgrounds.

 Stop Hate UK Sept 2016 March 2017
HCDG need to decide 
whether we use myth 
busting information. 

2.5 Explore the use of restorative justice principles for hate crime 
and hate incidents. C/I Dan Whyment Nov 2016 March 2017

Complete – HCDG and 
Restorative Solutions agree 
RJ should be available to 
victims of Hate Crime. 

P
age 66



17
April 2017 

Restorative Solutions will 
beginning monitoring Hate 
Crime referrals from April 
2017. 

2.6 Work with perpetrators of hate crime where appropriate to 
prevent future offending. C/I Dan Whyment Nov 2016 March 2017 Linked to above. Task 

moved to year 3  - 3.2
Year 3 

3.0 Continue deliver and monitor preventative work in schools, 
colleges and youth organisations.  Wesley Shelbourne April 2017 March 2018

3.1 Deliver focused work in areas with elevated levels of hate 
crime and incidents or where community tensions have been 
identified (using data from the LCSP Survey).

HCDG District Leads Sept 2017 March 2018

3.2 Monitor and evaluate the use of Restorative Justice in 
response to perpetrators of Hate Incidents and Hate Crime. 

C/I Dan Whyment and 
Suzanne McLardy 

April 2017 March 2018

3.3 Explore the use of ASB Powers and Tools (within the ASB 
Crime and Policing Act 2014) for Hate Crime and Mate Crime.

Mel Cowell April 2017 Sept 2018

Measures:

P
age 67



18
April 2017 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4Indicator Source Previous 
Year(s) 

2017/18

Commentary

2016/17

Increased Hate Crime 
input in schools and 
colleges (including young 
ambassador training). 

Just 
Lincolnshire

2017/18

2016/17
37

18 1 12 6

2016/17 Q4. During Q4 6 sessions were delivered 
with 119 students indicating an increased knowledge 
of Hate Crime and Equality following their input.

2016/17 Q3. During Q3 11 sessions were delivered 
with 405 students indicating an increased knowledge 
of Hate Crime and Equality following their input. 

2016/17 Q2. This period was predominately over the 
school summer holiday, which explains why only 1 
input was given during this period, which was to train 
3 young ambassadors. 

2016/17 Q1. During Q1 18 sessions were delivered 
with 350 students indicating an increased knowledge 
of Hate Crime and Equality following their input. 

Increase in perpetrators  
rehabilitated through 

Establish a 
baseline

2017/18 Data on Hate Crime referrals will be recorded from 

P
age 68



19
April 2017 

2016/17

Restorative Justice 
Restorative 
Solutions

0 0 0 0

Apr 2017. 

Resources

Initiative Projected 
Spend

Period Lead Progress Update

‘Stop Hate UK’  £20,000 October 2016- 
October 2018 

Insp Dan Whyment 2 year funding secured (October 
2016- October 2018)

Risk Register

Risk No. 
/Date 
created

Key Risks Consequences of Risk RAG 
Rating

LCSP Proposed Actions Action
Date 

Progress/Update

HATE CRIME 
None at 
present 

 

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



                                          Appendix D

Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership

Community Safety Agreement 

Domestic Abuse –Delivery plan 2017-2021 

P
age 71



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

Contents

Introduction Page 3

Summary of the Strategy Pages 3-4

Outcomes Pages 5-12

The Domestic Abuse Partnership has agreed 5 Outcomes:

 Ensure the victim is at the centre of service delivery 
 Have a clear focus on perpetrators 
 Have a strategic approach to commissioning and quality assurance
 Ensure we are locally-led and we safeguard individuals at every point 
 Raise awareness of domestic abuse and involve local communities to design and deliver solutions 

 

Resources Page 13

Risk Register Pages 14-15

P
age 72



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

Introduction

This document supports the 2015-18 Community Safety Agreement for Lincolnshire.  As reported in the Community Safety Agreement, 
following the completion of a Strategic Assessment process and priority setting event, the Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership have 
agreed to focus on the following priorities:

 Anti-Social Behaviour and Hate Crime
 Domestic Abuse
 Reducing Offending
 Serious and Organised Crime
 Sexual Violence
 Substance Misuse

There also agreed to an additional piece of work around information and analysis.

Summary of the Domestic Abuse Strategy:

The Vision
The vision of the partnership is for the people of Lincolnshire to live free from Domestic Abuse.
 

Our Mission
Domestic Abuse will not be tolerated and we will promote healthy and respectful relationships. By working together we will ensure that individuals, families 
and communities are able to recognise Domestic Abuse in all its forms. We will empower everyone to have the knowledge and confidence to know how to 
respond.
 

Objectives
The Domestic Abuse Partnership has agreed 5 Objectives:

 Ensure the victim is at the centre of service delivery 
 Have a clear focus on perpetrators 
 Have a strategic approach to commissioning and quality assurance

P
age 73



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

 Ensure we are locally-led and we safeguard individuals at every point 
 Raise awareness of domestic abuse and involve local communities to design and deliver solutions 

The Domestic Abuse Strategic Management Board has responsibility for:

 Providing updates to the LCSP and action direction from the LCSP. 
 Producing the Domestic Abuse Strategy and give direction and support to members of the Domestic Abuse Delivery Group (DADG).
 Ensuring the effectiveness of the Lincolnshire MARACs.
 Overseeing the effectiveness of the Court process for victims of domestic abuse.
 Analysing reasons for any underachievement or risk of under achievement of actions in the DA Delivery Plan and take appropriate action.
 Receive, review and provide analysis and feedback on performance updates from the DADG.
 Ensuring appropriate collaboration with other priority groups on joint issues e.g. alcohol and drugs.
 Providing information updates to members of the DADG. provide direction and task pieces of work to the DADG
 Understanding regional and national domestic abuse issues/direction/best practice
 Ensuring that information and decisions made by the board are distributed to all relevant staff in their particular agency.  

The DASMB also has responsibility for assessing the need and provision of services for domestic abuse victims and perpetrators and ensuring 
that the gaps, risks and options are raised with commissioning bodies.

The DASMB will work collaboratively with the Strategic Safeguarding Boards.

In addition administration for the Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference is currently funded by Lincolnshire County Council with an 
additional small grant from the Home Office.

The DASMB will also undertake Domestic Homicide Reviews following instruction from the Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership, in line 
with statutory guidelines.

P
age 74



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

Outcome 1: Ensure the victim is at the centre of service delivery

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Measures Quarterly 
Progress Update

Start End
1.1 Collate service user feedback from domestic abuse 

contracts, from DADG members and from the online 
survivor feedback form and produce a Survivor 
Feedback annual report that will be reviewed by the 
DASMB to identifying areas of best practice or areas 
for improvement.

Karen Shooter
Lincolnshire County 
Council

April 2017 May 2018
May 2019
May 2020
May 2021

Increase in returns 
following wider 
publicity by all agencies

Annual report 
produced and taken to 
the DASMB with 
recommendations for 
improvements

Survivor form is live 
and being promoted 
by all agencies

1.2 Members of the domestic abuse partnership will 
work closely with the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner on the Victim’s Strategy.

Karen Shooter, 
Lincolnshire County 
Council

April 2017 Production of the 
Victims Strategy which 
will include DA victims

Karen and Roisin have 
already met to start 
this work

1.3 Map and then produce an online directory of 
services for victims, including those with complex 
needs – in partnership with the Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner.

Karen Shooter,
Lincolnshire County 
Council

April 2017 Analysis of page views 
on website recorded to 
obtain baseline for 
year 1

Increase page views in 
future years

Karen and Roisin have 
already met to start 
this work

1.4 DASMB to identify lead practitioners to develop 
guidance around Forced Marriage and Honour Based 
Abuse for wider circulation

Daryl Pearce,
Lincolnshire County 
Council

April 2018 December 
2018

Year 2 action

1.5 Establish the scale of familial abuse in Lincolnshire 
(i.e. not partner or ex-partner)

Can Police,  Adult care 
and children's services 
provide the data for 
this?  Does anyone 
else collect this kind of 
data?
Data capture from 
2016-2017

September 
2017

January 2018 Number of DA familiar 
abuse reports to the 
Police
Number of DA familiar 
abuse reports to Adult 
Care
Identify any areas for 
improvements for 

P
age 75



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

consideration by 
DASMB

1.6 Identify what our marginalised groups are in relation 
to victims of domestic abuse.  E.g. LGBTQ, travellers, 
ethnic minorities, male victims, older people etc.

Does any agency have 
any data to support 
this piece of work or 
someone who can 
lead on it?

September 
2017

February 2018

1.7 Re: seeing victims as part of a wider network – raise 
awareness of domestic abuse with employers

Karen Shooter,
Lincolnshire County 
Council

June 2019 Charter
Pubs, clubs, Costa, 
supermarkets, Butlins, 
Caravan Club

P
age 76



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

Outcome 2:  Have a clear focus on perpetrators

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Measures Progress Update
Start End

2.1 Develop intervention tools for effectively 
working with perpetrators of Child to Parent 
Violence

Andy Cook,
Lincolnshire County 
Council

April 2017

2.2 Ensure all ARC workers are trained in domestic 
abuse, risk assessment and MARAC and in 
working with perpetrators of domestic abuse

Daryl Pearce,
Lincolnshire County 
Council

September 
2017

March 2018 Awaiting release of 
training dates

2.3.0 Collate and analyse local crime and other non-
criminal justice data about the prevalence and 
type of domestic abuse in Lincolnshire to 
inform further work with perpetrators, 
prevention and early intervention.

2.3.1 Root cause analysis and perpetrator feedback to 
establish possible factors that might contribute to 
someone becoming a perpetrator of domestic 
abuse.

2.3.2 Consider utilising other tools and powers to manage 
perpetrators of domestic abuse e.g. Anti Social 
Behaviour powers.

2.3.3 Look at the way the courts manage domestic abuse 
cases.  Include survivor feedback and consultation.

2.3.4 Develop partnership working with the prison service 
to ensure that practitioners can identity domestic 
abuse and abusive attitudes and to take appropriate 
action.  Also to improve risk assessment processes 
and procedures to ensure the safety of 
victims/families from DA perpetrators on release 
from prison.

2.3.5 Improve data collection and analysis of repeat and 
serial perpetrators to help with improving services 
and future commissioning.

Clare Newborn, 
Lincolnshire County 
Council

There is a possibility 
that this could form 
part of the work of 
a newly formed sub 
group of the 
Reducing 
Reoffending Sub 
Group.

2.4 Evaluate the impact of the Building Better 
Relationships programme and produce a report for 

Kim and Pete – can 
you tell us about all 

September 
2017

P
age 77



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

DASMB DA perpetrator 
intervention and 
what evaluation you 
have please?  The 
aim of this action is 
to bring learning 
and best practice 
from existing 
programmes to help 
develop voluntary 
perpetrator 
intervention.

2.5 Evaluate the use and impact of the Domestic 
Violence Protection Orders.

Sarah Norburn, 
Lincolnshire Police

Qualitative and 
quantitative returns

2.6 Implement a training programme delivered to safely 
and appropriately identify, challenge and respond to 
abusive attitudes and behaviour.  This will be done 
as part of the 'Change that lasts' initiative (subject 
to funding).

Sarah Norburn,
Lincolnshire Police

April 2017 Bid submitted – 
awaiting outcome

2.7 Developing early intervention work with 
perpetrators of domestic abuse, with clear referral 
pathways, monitoring and evaluation (subject to 
funding from the Police Transformation Fund).

Sarah Norburn, 
Lincolnshire Police

April 2017 Bid submitted – 
awaiting outcome

2.8 Develop guidance for practitioners about counter 
allegations of abuse e.g. the use of screening tools.

Karen Shooter, 
Lincolnshire County 
Council

April 2017 July 2017 Task and finish 
group has met to 
look at screening 
tools.  Paper to be 
taken to DASMB in 
May 2017

2.9 Explore intervention with people with dementia or 
other mental illness where the condition is playing a 
role in domestic abuse for the victim or perpetrator.  
This is to ensure that people with diagnosed mental 
health illnesses that affect behaviour are not 
labelled as perpetrators of domestic abuse and that 
they are managed appropriately.

Sally Foston,
Lincolnshire County 
Council

April 2017 Sally is working on 
this already with 
support from LCHS.

2.10 Deliver a workshop for practitioners about Natasha Swift, April 2017 February LPFT have delivered 

P
age 78



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

substance misuse and how that can affect behaviour 
(from a risk management perspective – not to 
suggest that substance misuse causes DA) and 
provide information about referral routes into DA 
and substance misuse services

Addaction 2018 an event for 
practitioners in 
relation to mental 
health services 
available from LPFT

Initial discussions 
have taken place re: 
substance misuse 
workshop.

 

Outcome 3:  Have a strategic approach to commissioning and quality assurance

In addition to the actions detailed in this section there will be ongoing collaboration between all agencies to ensure that all Domestic 
Homicide Reviews are completed, lessons learned and shared and actions completed.

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Measures Progress Update
Start End

3.1 Improve data collection from all agencies so that the 
partnership can map local issues, identify 
opportunities for earlier intervention and improve 
responses to tackling domestic abuse.

Daryl Pearce,
Lincolnshire County 
Council

April 2017 Ananlytical team to 
establish what is 
already available 
before agencies are 
asked for specific data

3.2 Identify any gaps in support for children and young 
people that have been affected by domestic abuse.

Roz – is this 
something that you 
could explore please?  
This is particularly 
important as we think 
about what we want 
to re-commission so is 
a priority.

May 2017

3.3 Consult with victims, survivors, communities and 
stakeholders re: commissioning new DA services.

Karen Shooter,
Lincolnshire County 
Council

September 
2017

March 2018 Awaiting decision 
about commissioning

P
age 79



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

3.4 Improve processes for measuring victim 
satisfaction.  This will be included in any new 
contracts that are commissioned.

Karen Shooter, 
Lincolnshire County 
Council

September 
2017

Awaiting decision 
about commissioning

3.5 Commission evidence based services for victims.  Daryl Pearce,
Lincolnshire County 
Council

April 2017 March 2018 Awaiting decision 
about commissioning

3.6 Include DA in the routine programme of audit, 
review and scrutiny.  This will be monitored and 
reviewed through the Tri Board P&Q group.

Sara Barry, 
Lincolnshire County 
Council

April 2017 March 2021 Audit reports fed into 
DASMB meetings with 
recommendations for 
improvements

P&Q group has met 
once and DA is clearly 
identified as a focus 
for the group and 
included in the 
routine programme of 
audit.  Finer details 
still to be agreed in 
relation to what DA 
questions are going to 
be included in the 
audits.

3.7 Introduce specialist domestic abuse workers in 
healthcare settings.  This will be subject to 
identifying funding opportunities.

Do partners agree that 
this is a need for 
Lincolnshire and 
would back a bid if 
funding became 
available?

3.8 Ensure consistency with MARAC chairs by 
implementing Chair training and inductions.

Karen Shooter,
Lincolnshire County 
Council

May 2017 Induction Pack for 
Chairs to be developed

Chairs workshops 
delivered

Workshop organised 
for 2nd May 2017.  
Disappointing news 
that NPS are no 
longer able to chair 
MARACs.  We still 
need additional chairs 
to reduce the impact 
on existing agencies.
Induction pack to be 
developed.

  

P
age 80



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

Outcome 4:  Ensure we are locally-led and we safeguard individuals at every point

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Measures Progress Update
Start End

4.1 Identify specific trends and gaps across 
Lincolnshire in service access compared to the 
population.

Karen Shooter, 
Lincolnshire County 
Council

October 2017 This has been 
discussed with 
Sammie Framp – 
analyst in safer 
comms.  We may 
need to look at how 
robust some of the 
data is – particularly 
around ethnicity.

4.2 Developing a network of domestic abuse 
Champions with clear roles.

Karen Shooter, 
Lincolnshire County 
Council

December 
2017

December 
2018

To be arranged.

4.3 Build partnership expertise in bid writing to 
enable victims and perpetrators in Lincolnshire to 
benefit from any additional funding that can be 
attracted into the area.

Taken from the 
DASMB workshop.  
Partner agency 
commitment needed.

This is potentially 
wider than DASMB – 
possibly something 
for the CSP

4.4 Delivering multi agency domestic abuse training 
to Lincolnshire practitioners. The training includes 
stalking and harassment, coercive and controlling 
behaviour, risk identification and assessment and 
helping people to stay safe.

Karen Shooter, 
Lincolnshire County 
Council

April 2017 March 2018  Revised training 
package

 Dates of training
 Number of people 

trained
 Evaluation of 

training delivered

Training package is 
currently being 
revised for 2017.  

One of the trainers is 
undertaking further 
training in stalking 
that can incorporated 
– or additional 
stalking training 
delivered (dependent 
on funding).

4.5 Explore opportunities for developing the Safer 
Lincolnshire Together multi agency approach to 
safeguarding.

Partner agency input 
and ownership is 
needed if this is to be 
progressed.

This needs to be 
discussed at 
safeguarding boards

4.6 Facilitate information sharing between GPs and Claire Tozer, April 2017 Bid submitted 

P
age 81



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

the MARAC (funded through VAWG bid).
If the bid is unsuccessful this work will still require 
actioning.

CCG (VAWG).  Awaiting 
outcome.

Training already being 
delivered to GPs.

4.7 Introduce Operation Encompass in Lincolnshire 
(subject to funding)

Sarah Norburn, 
Lincolnshire Police

April 2017 Bid submitted – 
awaiting outcome

4.8 Target work with older people and people with 
disabilities to promote awareness of domestic 
abuse and encourage reporting and earlier 
intervention.

Justin – can you pick 
this action up?

Dave – anything 
through the LSAB?

April 2018 Year 2 action

4.9 Develop resources that can be used with people 
who learning disabilities, to help them understand 
what domestic abuse and how they can report it.

Justin – can you pick 
this action up?

Dave – anything 
through the LSAB?

April 2018 Year 2 action

Police already have 
some DA resources 
designed for people 
with learning 
disabilities.

4.10 Ante-natal care / Prospective parent classes and 
contacts to include healthy relationship information 
and appropriate responses to relationship problems
As outlined in the Ante Natal Promotional Guides
Use this forum to include dealing with relationship 
difficulties in positive ways and coping strategies.

Midwifery Services
0-19 service

This is an action from 
a previous version of 
the DA delivery plan – 
can we have a named 
lead please?

Sept 2016 Recorded in content 
plan and audited.
Number of attendees.
Feedback
Reduction in referrals 
for DA services in the 
ante natal and neo 
natal period. Audit of 
MARAC.

4.11 Improve integration between troubled families and 
domestic abuse and early intervention and DA

Suggestions and lead 
person needed for this 
please.
Lead person to attend 
DASMB.

4.12 Broaden leadership beyond police and Lincolnshire 
County Council

Taken from DASMB 
workshop – clarity 
needed about this and 
a lead person if 
appropriate

P
age 82



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

Outcome 5:  Raise awareness of domestic abuse and involve local communities to design and deliver 
solutions

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Measures Progress Update
Start End

5.1 Improve links with local communities, self  help 
groups, businesses, and specialist groups so that 
we can use their expertise to reach vulnerable 
people and victims of domestic abuse.

Community 
engagement lead 
needed

April 2017

5.2 Continue to work with schools and educational 
establishments in Lincolnshire to help them 
incorporate preventing abuse in lessons and 
identify, encourage and respond to domestic 
abuse disclosures.

Karen Shooter, 
Lincolnshire County 
Council

September 
2017

March 2018 Number of schools 
engaging with County 
DA Team
Number of schools 
delivering DA sessions 
to young people
Evaluation report of 
the project
Production of Schools 
Resource Pack
Number of briefings to 
School safeguarding 
leads completed

Good progress is 
being made with the 
School Project. 
Natalie Watkinson has 
delivered training to 
teachers, some have 
been on the full day 
risk/MARAC training, 
School DA resource 
pack produced and 
distributed, DA 
included in all 
Safeguarding briefings 
for school 
safeguarding leads, all 
resources available 
through the Stay Safe 
Partnership website.
Natalie will produce 
an annual evaluation 
report (academic 
year)

5.3 Introduce a new domestic abuse ‘ribbon’ which 
can be worn proudly by all practitioners and 
people living our communities to show that we 
will not tolerate domestic abuse in Lincolnshire.

Karen Shooter, 
Lincolnshire County 
Council

April 2017 June 2017 Ribbon designed and 
has been out for 
consultation.  Quotes 
obtained and LCC has 
agreed to purchase 

P
age 83



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

1,000 badges
5.4 Utilise feedback from commissioning consultation 

to identify opportunities for improving outcomes 
for victims and perpetrators.

Karen Shooter,
Lincolnshire County 
Council

May 2017 September 
2017

Awaiting decision 
about funding before 
any consultation can 
be done

5.5 Deliver communications plan. Karen Shooter, 
Lincolnshire County 
Council

April 2017 March 2021 Natalie is working on 
this with LCC Comms 
team.  Should be 
ready to share with 
DASMB in May 2017

 

P
age 84



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

Resources

Initiative Projected 
Annual 
Spend

Period Lead Progress Update

Domestic Abuse Team 1 FTE DA 
Manager
1 FTE DA 
Project 
Officer
(plus 
management 
and contract 
mngt 
support)

Permanent Sara Barry

Domestic Abuse Training & Publicity £5,000 
publicity 
(LCC)
£5,000 
training from 
LSAB

April 2017 – 
March 2018

Karen Shooter
Dave Culy

DA Training Programme delivered.
Publicity materials widely circulated.

MARAC Administration 2.5 FTE 
Business 
Support 
Officer

Permanent Sara Barry

DA Commissioned Services £200,000 – 
IDVA service
£517,000 – 
DA Outreach 
Services

April 2015 – 
March 2018

Sara Barry
Daryl Pearce

Funding for post March 2018 in 
discussion

Perpetrator Intervention Over £1.2m PTF (subject to 
being 

Sarah Norburn

P
age 85



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

awarded)
Domestic Homicide Reviews £25,000 per 

DHR 
(average)
As of April 
2017 there 
have been 10 
DHRs since 
2011.

Ongoing Sara Barry Contributions made by partner 
agencies.

Risk Register

Risk 
No

Key Risks Consequences of 
Risk

RAG 
Rating

Control Procedures Risk Owner Target 
Completion 
Date

Progress Update

1. Loss of keys roles 
within the partnership 
e.g. DA Manager, DA 
Project Officer, 
MARAC 
Administration team

 Loss of co-
ordination

 Lack of 
consistency

 Lack of quality 
assurance

 Reduction in the 
efficiency of the 
MARAC

 Await budget plans 
for 2018+

DASMB Chair Ongoing All posts are 
mainstreamed with 
no imminent 
threat of a 
reduction in 
funding or 
redundancy.

2. Trained confident and 
competent 
practitioners across all 
agencies

 Domestic 
Homicide

 Reputational risk

 All agencies to have a 
DA policy detailing 
commitment to DA 
and training 
requirements for 
staff

 E-learning packages 

DASMB Chair March 2018 Training package 
developed and 
refreshed annually.  
LSAB have funded 
an extensive 
training for the 
past few years.  

P
age 86



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

available to all 
agencies

 Multi agency DA 
training available to 
all agencies

 Domestic Abuse 
Charter and 
Competency 
Framework

£5,000 has been 
committed for 
2017-2018 for 6 
full day DA, risk 
and MARAC 
sessions.
Agencies also 
deliver in-house 
training.  This was 
assessed as part of 
the Joint DA 
inspection and no 
issues identified.

3. Funding to re-
commission Domestic 
Abuse Services

 Domestic 
Homicide

 Loss of third 
sector DA 
specialists

 No referral 
pathway for 
agencies

 Increase 
workload on 
statutory services

 Possible increase 
in referrals to 
MARAC with 
capacity issues for 
IDVA service

 Ending the 
MARAC

 Reputational risk

 Prioritise funding for 
DA services

 Ask partner agencies 
to contribute 
towards the costs of 
the services

 If funding is 
withdrawn or 
reduced practitioners 
will need to have 
increased training to 
give them the skills 
and knowledge to 
support DA victims

 Agencies to identify 
how the increase in 
demand will affect 
them

All agencies Discussions are 
taking place 
between a number 
of key 
commissioners 
including LCC and 
the PCC.

P
age 87



Draft Domestic Abuse Delivery Plan 2017-2021 v1.1

 Litigation

4. Domestic Homicide 
Reviews

 Capacity to 
manage them 
effectively 
resulting in delays 
in submission to 
the Home Office

 Criticism of 
process by family 
members of the 
subjects involved

 Spiralling costs
 The impact on the 

Health and 
wellbeing of the 
DHR coordinator, 
administrators, 
Legal advisor,  
IMR authors and 
panel members

 The DA Manager, 
Legal Advisor and 
Safeguarding Board 
managers work 
together to reduce 
the impact on 
partners by 
staggering the timing 
of meetings and 
submission of 
documents.



Pete Moore,
Chair of the 
CSP

This is an issue that 
requires urgent 
intervention from 
the CSP.  The 
growing number of 
DHRs, SCRs and 
SARs is no longer 
manageable in 
Lincolnshire with 
existing resources.

P
age 88



                                 Appendix E

Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership

Community Safety Agreement 

Appendix 5 – Reducing Offending Delivery Plan 2017/18

P
age 89



2
April 2017 

Contents

Introduction...............................................................................................................................3

Summary of Strategy .................................................................................................................4

Sub Outcomes............................................................................................................................6

Resources ..................................................................................................................................

Risk Register ..............................................................................................................................P
age 90



3
April 2017 

Introduction

This document supports the 2015-18 Community Safety strategy for Lincolnshire.  Following the completion of a Strategic Assessment process 
and priority setting event, the Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership have agreed to focus on the following priorities:

 Anti-Social Behaviour and Hate Crime
 Domestic Abuse
 Reducing Offending
 Serious and Organised Crime
 Sexual Violence
 Substance Misuse

In putting together this delivery plan, the Reducing Offending Strategic Management Board have taken in to account the findings and 
recommendations of the County Strategic Assessment and considered the following brief, used by the Lincolnshire Community Safety 
Partnership when determining the priorities:

 Do we add value as a partnership?
 Do we, together, make a difference?
 Do we recognise and tackle the emerging?
 Do we tackle 'cause' and prevent more?
 Do we increase effectiveness and efficiency?

As such, the delivery plan does not capture existing activity but those tasks which will drive sustainable change for the better in reducing 
offending for Lincolnshire.

This is a 'live' delivery plan and will be updated regularly by the Reducing Offending Strategic Management Board over the course of the 
2017/18.

P
age 91



4
April 2017 

Summary of Strategy:

 Develop effective partnership working to reduce and prevent those most complex individuals from reoffending. 

 Implement an effective, proportionate response to young offenders. 

 Develop an effective transition process for young people entering adulthood whilst subject to Criminal Justice Services.

 Effective delivery of the AAMR Sobriety tagging in Lincolnshire to effectively tackle alcohol related offences.  

P
age 92



5
April 2017 

Overarching Outcome: Lincolnshire experiences an overall reduction in offending and re-offending which 
in turn creates safer communities, better family cohesion and enhances public protection

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Indicator Source Previous 

Year(s)
2017/18

Commentary

10,616

2016/17

Overall reduction in 
police recorded crime 
(adults and young 
people combined)

Community 
Safety 

Analysts - 
NICHE

2017/18

2016/17
37,245

9,020 9,747 9,423 9,055

Q1 2017/18 - Police recorded crime is 18% 
higher compared to the same quarter last year. 
There has been an increase in all areas except 
for East Lindsey. Aside from homicide and drug 
possession, most crime types have increased.

2016/17 - Recorded crime is 6.8% higher this 
quarter compared to Q4 2015-16. Cumulatively, 
recorded crime is 4% higher in 2016-17 than last 
year. All areas except Boston and East Lindsey 
have experienced an increase this quarter. 
Shoplifting, violent crime and rape offences 
continue on an upwards trend.

2017/18

1732

2016/17

Reduction in police 
recorded crime where 
the identified offender is 
an adult (1-10 disposals)

Community 
Safety 

Analysts – 
NICHE 

(using the 
LLR cohort)

 

N/A Baseline 
year

Please note, if there is more than one offender 
recorded against a crime the crime will be 
counted twice.

Reduction in police 
recorded crime where 

Community 
Safety 

2017/18
Please note, if there is more than one offender 

P
age 93



6
April 2017 

214

2016/17

the identified offender is 
young person (1-10 
disposals)

Analysts - 
NICHE 

(using the 
LLR cohort)

N/A Baseline 
year

recorded against a crime the crime will be 
counted twice.

2017/18 (cohort 2016/17)

Q4 16/17 Q1 17/18 Q2 17/18 Q3 17/18

30.9% 29.8%

2016/17 (cohort 2015/16)

A reduction in 
Lincolnshire binary 
reoffending rate (adults 
and young people 
combined)

Community 
Safety 
Analysts - 
NICHE 2016/17

2015/16
30.3%

32.2% 30.9% 30.2% 32.1%

Q1 17/18) Frequency: 3.1 offences per 
reoffender. Juvenile reoffending has fallen 
slightly compared to last quarter and the 
number of reoffenders has dropped by 9%. 
Adult reoffending is continuing on a downward 
trend.

Between April 2015 and December 2015 there 
were 6,612 offenders (the cohort). In the 
following 12 months (April 2015 to December 
2016), of those 6,612 adult offenders, 1,996 re-
offended. On average, the number of offences 
committed per reoffender this quarter is 3.1. 
The reoffending rate is lower this quarter 
compared to quarter 3 in 2015-16 (32.1%) 
although the frequency of offending remains 
similar (3.2).

2017/18A reduction in adult 
binary re-offending (LLR 
rate). 

Community 
Safety 

Analysts
2017/18

2016/17

29.3%

Q1 2017/18 - Frequency: 3.2. The number of 
offenders between April 2016 and June 2016 is 
1,683. The number of reoffenders in the 
following 12 months is 493.

Between April 2015 and December 2015 there 

P
age 94



7
April 2017 

2016/1729.5%

31.9% 30.1% 29.2% 29.5%

were 5,601 adult offenders (the cohort). In the 
following 12 months (April 2015 to December 
2016), of those 5,601 adult offenders, 1,638 re-
offended. On average, the number of offences 
committed per adult reoffender this quarter is 
3.1.

2017/18

33.9%

2016/17

A reduction in youth 
binary re-offending (LLR 
rate)

Community 
Safety 

Analysts
2017/18

2016/17
36.3%

34.7% 36.7% 36.5% 36.3%

Q1 2017/18 - Frequency: 2.7. The number of 
offenders between April 2016 and June 2016 is 
283. The number of reoffenders in the following 
12 months is 96.

Between April 2015 and December 2015 there 
were 977 juvenile offenders (the cohort). In the 
following 12 months (April 2015 to December 
2016), of those 977 juvenile offenders, 357 re-
offended. On average, the number of offences 
committed per juvenile reoffender this quarter 
is 3.2.

Sub Outcomes:

1. Implement measures to effectively tackle and rehabilitate offenders with complex needs. 

2. Deliver an innovative approach to preventing young people from reoffending. 

3. Explore measures to improve the transition from youth to adult Criminal Justice Services.

4. Effective delivery of the AAMR Sobriety tagging in Lincolnshire to effectively tackle alcohol related offences.  

P
age 95



8
April 2017 

Outcome 1: Implement measures to effectively tackle and rehabilitate offenders with complex needs.

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Progress Update
Start End

1.0 Continue to develop ARC programme Clare Newborn/Daryl 
Pearce 

April 2017 March 2018

1.1 Support the delivery of the Social Impact Bond (SIB) Michelle Howard April 2017 March 2018

     Measures:

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4Indicator Source Previous 
Year(s)

2017/18 

Commentary

-70% 
-134

Reduction in the number 
of offences committed by 
ARC clients 90 days after 
adoption.

Community 
Safety 

Analysts

2017/18 is 
baseline

Figure shown is percentage & volume reduction 
compared to the 90 days pre-adoption. See 
Appendix for further details.

Reduction in average 
crime severity of ARC 
clients offending 90 days 
after adoption

Community 
Safety 

Analysts

2017/18 is 
baseline

-69%
-302

Figure shown is percentage & volume reduction 
compared to the 90 days pre-adoption. See 
Appendix for further details.

Reduction in average 
crime cost of ARC clients 
90 days after adoption

Community 
Safety 

Analysts

2017/18 is 
baseline

-74%
£6971.32

P
age 96



9
April 2017 

2017/18Reduction in ARC 
offending 91-181 days 
(rate of offending and 
harm score)
Reduction in the number 
of offences committed by 
ARC clients 91-181 days 
after adoption. 

Community 
Safety 

Analysts

2017/18 is 
baseline -63%

-120

Figure shown is percentage & volume reduction 
compared to the 90 days pre-adoption. See 
Appendix for further details.

2017/18Reduction in average 
crime severity of ARC 
clients offending 91-181 
days after adoption

Community 
Safety 

Analysts 
2017/18 is 
baseline -76%

-333

Figure shown is percentage & volume reduction 
compared to the 90 days pre-adoption. See 
Appendix for further details.

2017/18Reduction in average 
crime cost of ARC clients 
91-181 days after 
adoption

Community 
Safety 

Analysts
2017/18 
baseline -62%

£5807.11

Figure shown is percentage & volume reduction 
compared to the 90 days pre-adoption. See 
Appendix for further details.

2017/18Insert SIB performance 
measures once cohort 
has been established.

Cohort yet to be established (03/07/17)

P
age 97



10
April 2017 

Outcome 2:  Deliver an innovative approach to preventing young people from reoffending.

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Progress Update
Start End

2.0 Develop and implement Out of Court Disposal Panels Andy Cook April 2017 March 2018

2.1 Monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of Community 
Resolutions for children/young offenders. 

Lisa 
Duckworth/Suzanne 

McLardy

April 2017 March 2018

Measures:

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4Indicator Source Previous 
Year(s) 

2017/18 

Commentary

2016/17 

Reduction in first time 
entrants into the Criminal 
Justice System.  

Youth 
Offending 

Service 
Performance 

Manager

252

265 293 266 268

The most recent published FTE (first time entrants) figure 
for Lincolnshire is 268 actual young people for the period 
of January 2016 to December 2016. The number of young 
people entering the criminal justice system for the first 
time is mostly controlled by external influences, e.g. 
Police policies, and therefore it is difficult to predict 
future performance. However, there are no expectations 
that this figure is likely to rise sharply in the near future. 
The figure of 268, when expressed as a rate per 100,000, 
10 to 17 year old population is 431, which is higher than 
the local Midlands region of 357, and the National 
average of 327.

In July we launched a new diversionary project in 
Lincolnshire in conjunction with Lincolnshire Police. This, 
through joint co-operation between both Services, will 
divert young people that offend at a low level, through 

P
age 98



11
April 2017 

local panels that will try to prevent those young people 
from getting a criminal record. What we should see will 
be a more effective restorative justice process, instead of 
giving the young person a criminal record that will 
unfairly affect their future life chances. This also should 
therefore help reduce the numbers of first time entrants.

2017/18 2017/18

26.9%

2016/17 2016/17

Q1 2017/18 - The number of young people who 
received a Community Resolution disposal 
between April 2016 and June 2016 is 108. The 
number who reoffended in the following 12 
months is 29.

Reduce the percentage of 
children/young people 
who re-offend following 
a Community Resolution 
disposal (NB: This is not 
necessarily a restorative 
justice disposal).

Community 
Safety 

Analysts – 
NICHE (using 

the LLR 
cohort)

23.2% 22.2% 22.4% 23.4% 23.2%

Outcome 3: Explore measures to improve the transition from youth to adult Criminal Justice Services.

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Progress Update
Start End

3.0 Conduct a scoping exercise on youth to adult transition 
processes in the UK. 

To be agreed by 
delivery group May 2017 Sept 2017

3.1 Consider a best practice approach to transition (recognise 
what works to achieve better outcomes). 

To be agreed by 
delivery group

Sept 2017 Nov 2017

3.2. Explore the feasibility of introducing a transition process in 
Lincolnshire. 

To be agreed by 
delivery group

Nov 2017 Feb 2018

P
age 99



12
April 2017 

Measures:

Indicator Source Reporting 
Period

Update

Have a clear 
understanding of 
different approaches 
used when transferring 
young people to adult 
Criminal Justice Services 
Identify a best practice 
approach. 

Outcome 4:  Effective delivery of the AAMR Sobriety tagging in Lincolnshire to effectively tackle alcohol 
related offences.  

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates Progress Update
Start End

4.0 Ensure effective evaluation and demonstrate impact of the 
AAMR Sobriety Tagging Project within Lincolnshire. 

Andy Cook April 2017 March 2018

4.1 Monitor the use of AAMR Sobriety Tags issued by Lincoln and 
Boston Courts. 

Matthew 
Morrissey/Andy Cook

April 2017 March 2018

P
age 100



13
April 2017 

Measures:

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4Indicator Source Previous 
Year(s)

2017/18

Commentary

Number of AAMR 
Sobriety Tags imposed by 
Lincolnshire Courts. 

CRC AAMR 
Performance 

Report 
N/A 

Resources:

Initiative Projected Annual Spend Period Lead Progress Update
ARC Co-ordinator £86,000 inc. salary, on 

costs, administrator costs 
and an 'operational' 
budget.

2017-18 Public Protection 
Manager  - LCC 
Safer 
Communities

P
age 101



14
April 2017 

Risk Register:

Risk No. 
/Date 
created

Key Risks Consequences of Risk RAG 
Rating

LCSP Proposed Actions Action
Date 

Progress/Update

Reducing Offending 
RO 1 
May 
2017

ARC Project – Funding of 
ARC Manager role beyond 
existing 12 month period 
(commenced in post 
01/03/17)

 Absence of continuity and 
leadership in ARC 
operational model

 Limited opportunities to 
broaden the ambition of 
integrated offender 
management

LCSP to consider  Safer Communities to liaise 
with YOS and PCC re: 
business case to continue

RO 2 
May 
2017

Youth Justice Diversionary 
Panels – establishing full 
confidence in disposals for 
children and young people

 Lack of public confidence in 
criminal justice disposals for 
children

 Failure to fully utilise a 
restorative approach

 Inappropriate 
criminalisation of children

LCSP to note  Agreement in place to 
deliver countywide.  
Partnership with Police, YOS 
and Early Help.

 Project support provided by 
YOS.

RISK DISCHARGED BY RO SMB

P
age 102



                                       Appendix F

Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership

Community Safety Agreement 

Appendix 8 – Substance Misuse Delivery Plan 2015-18 (YEAR 3)

P
age 103



2
7th August 2015

Contents

Introduction...............................................................................................................................................................................3

Summary of Strategy …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..3

Overarching Outcome ...............................................................................................................................................................5

Sub Outcomes (inc. measures and key tasks )………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………5

Resources ................................................................................................................................................................................13

Risks.........................................................................................................................................................................................13

P
age 104



3
7th August 2015

Introduction

This document supports the 2015-18 Community Safety Agreement for Lincolnshire.  As reported in the Community Safety Agreement, 
following the completion of a Strategic Assessment process and priority setting event, the Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership have 
agreed to focus on the following priorities:

 Anti-Social Behaviour and Hate Crime
 Domestic Abuse
 Reducing Offending
 Serious and Organised Crime
 Sexual Violence
 Substance Misuse

In putting together this delivery plan, the Substance Misuse Strategic Management Board have taken in to account the findings and 
recommendations of the County Strategic Assessment and considered the following brief, used by the Lincolnshire Community Safety 
Partnership when determining the priorities:

 Do we add value as a partnership?
 Do we, together, make a difference?
 Do we recognise and tackle the emerging?
 Do we tackle cause and prevent more?
 Do we increase effectiveness and efficiency?

As such, the delivery plan does not capture existing activity but those tasks which will drive sustainable change for the better in tackling 
substance misuse for Lincolnshire.

This is a 'live' delivery plan and will be updated regularly by the Substance Misuse Strategic Management Board over the course of the 2015-18 
period.

P
age 105



4
7th August 2015

Overarching Outcome: Prevent alcohol and drug related harm

Sub Outcomes:

1. Promoting responsible drinking
2. Reduce alcohol and drug related crime and anti-social behaviour
3. Deliver high quality alcohol and drug treatment systems
4. Drug and Alcohol prevention

P
age 106



5
7th August 2015

Outcome 1: Promoting responsible drinking 

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates/Updates

Start End
Year 1

See previous Delivery Plans for year 1 information
Year 2

See previous Delivery Plans for year 2 information
Year 3

Establish and embed Operation 
Quicksand in Lincoln

Steven 
Williamson/Kieran 

English
(Police)

&
Marion Cooney

 (Lincoln 
BIG/Pubwatch)

April 2017 March 20181.1

On Hold

Steven Williamson to take over the 
lead of Op Quicksand for Lincoln:
1. SW to speak to Marion about 

expectations from the police in 
referring non-attenders to 
course

2. SW to speak to Addaction about 
process for non-attenders 

3. SW to ensure all custody 
officers are aware of the 
processes involved.

Steve Williamson 
(SW)

Steve has concerns about using the Pubwatch ban as an 
incentive to do the course as he is unsure of the legalities of 
this. Steve has been advised to speak to Chris Davison 
(originator of Op Quicksand). 

Pubwatch have agreed to implement this previously when 
op quicksand began.

NB: Licensees have the right to not have anyone they choose 
in their premises. 

P
age 107



6
7th August 2015

Decision on whether to continue Op 
Quicksand

Police are not sure the effort to run op quicksand provides 
the benefits to justify it. At this stage Op Quicksand is on 
hold.

Oct 2017 December
Evaluate Op Quicksand in Lincoln 

establish whether in its current format 
it needs 

Jan 2017 March 2017

Introduction of low level alcohol 
groups promoting safer/responsible 
drinking

Natasha Swift
(Addaction)

April 2017 March 2018

Evaluate the pilot in Boston April 2017 June 2017
Introduce groups to Grantham and 
Lincoln

Full group programs now available in each site. Session 
outlines attached for partner information. Currently staff are 

investing time in promotion of the group packages and 
supporting service user’s to adapt to the new model of 

treatment.

1.2

Scoping for satellite provision Postponed due to CEC recruitment. Addaction are currently 
training 22 volunteers/peer mentors and recovery 

champions. Training will be completed in 2nd week of 
September and CEC staff are briefed on research projects for 

the following: 

P
age 108



7
7th August 2015

1. Opening times 
2. Satellite sites 

 
The volunteers will be targeting those people not engaging 
with treatment, outreach work with partner service’s and 

staff.
Look to set Up satellite sites in 
identified locations

Addaction are currently utilising community centre 
resources to identify appropriate alternative venues for the 

delivery of treatment. Staff are being encouraged to 
network and a dabase collated to ensure new venues/times 

of venue use/caseload are recorded.
Reduce Under 18 Alcohol specific 
hospital admissions 

Simon Gladwin
(Public Health)

April 2017 March 2018

New substance misuse treatment services for young people 
commenced October 2016, these services are now settling in and 
data being monitored through Public Health contract 
management meetings. 
Trend data shows the number of admissions are decreasing from 
45.1 to 36.5 people per 100,000 population over the 5 years from 
2010 to 2015 this matches the national trend and Lincolnshire sits 
slightly (0.1) below the national average of 36.6 per 100,000 

PH analyst July 2017 Sept 2017
Oct 2017 Dec 2017

1.3

Jan 2018 March 2018
All local policing teams to be proactive 
in entering licensed premises and 
carryout out appropriate checks

Kieran English
(Police)

Mark Housley

April 2016 March 20181.4

April 2017 June 2017

P
age 109



8
7th August 2015

Hayley to meet with Mark Housley to 
get an action plan in place to start to 
achieve this in the West of the county

Hayley and Mark have met.

Oct 2017 Dec 2017
Jan 2018 March 2018

Partnership Alcohol Awareness 
Activity for Lincolnshire. 
Key dates include: 

 Alcohol Awareness Week (Nov) 
 Dry January (Jan)
 Overdose awareness Day

ALL Partners 
Led by

(Hayley Child)

April 2017 March 2018

Develop a Local Partnership Awareness 
Campaign for Alcohol Awareness week. 
Arrange task and finish group to 
support.

Simon Gladwin, 
Hayley Child and LCC 

comms

Meeting has taken place to look at target audience: 45-65, 
funding has been established. Human interest story to be 
sourced. 

Deliver Alcohol Awareness week 
campaign in November with partners

Oct 2017 December

1.5

On 
schedul
e

Evaluate the reach and effectiveness of 
the Alcohol Awareness Campaign.

Jan 2017 March 2017

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Indicator Source Last Year 2016/17

2017/18
Commentary

P
age 110



9
7th August 2015

129

2016/17

Increase the 
number of new 

people engaged in 
alcohol treatment 

services
(Includes Alcohol 
only and Alcohol 
and non-opiates 

data)

Public 
Health -
NDTMS

Total alcohol clients 
including those already in 
treatment at the start of 

the year
957

120 120 139 109

note: the new 
contract 
started 
August so 
many clients 
from LPFT 
transferred 
over 
explaining the 
high number 
in the 3rd 
quarter

2017/18

2016/17

Under 18 hospital 
admissions for 
alcohol specific 
conditions

 Finger tips- 
PHE

36.5
(per 100k)

Indicator Source Baseline 
2016

Last 
quarter

Target 2017/18 Direction 
of Travel

Progress 
Update

NPS use In 
the 
county

Prison and 
Treatment 
services 

Community NPS data
(NPS ban came into force on the 26th 
May 2016)

NPS 
10 months 
prior to 

NPS 
10 months 
after ban  

P
age 111



10
7th August 2015

ban  
July15-
May16

June16-
March17

entering structured treatment with 
Addaction recorded as using NPS Adults

39 65

Nos of YP entering structured treatment 
with Addaction recorded as using NPS with 
a YOS referral source Young People

7 8

P
age 112



11
7th August 2015

Outcome 2: Reduce alcohol and drug related crime and anti-social behaviour

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates / Updates

Start End
Year 1 

See previous Delivery Plans for year 1 information
Year 2 

Develop a Community Alcohol 
Partnership (CAP) in Skegness

Kate Odlin & Colin Haigh 
(Police),

 
Alan Simpson (CAP)

July 2017 March 2018

Initial meeting with local partners to 
understand the issues.

Kate, Jon Challen and Alan 
Simpson

Initial meeting has taken place and Skegness 
partners would like to set one up. Second meeting 
with wider partners has taken place. 

Develop a CAP plan and gather baseline 
data

Alan Simpson and Sgt Kate 
Odlin

We are currently collecting baseline surveys.
We have held all the partner briefings.
we planned out everything leading up to and including 
the launch.
Action Planning meeting at 10am on Friday 6th 
October at The Storehouse
At 2pm on 18th October, we will brief the Retailers at 
The Storehouse
At 10am on 10th November, we will launch the CAP. 
The first meeting of the CAP will be at 10am on 
Thursday 16th November at The Storehouse. 

Launch Oct 2017 Dec 17

2.1
On 
schedule

Deliver CAP activity Jan 2018 March 2018
2.2
Barriers

Blue Light Project to implement a 
Hospital Outreach Worker to work 

Nacro & 
Hayley Child (LCC) 

April 2017 October 2017

P
age 113



12
7th August 2015

with frequent flyers from A&E &
 Natasha Swift (Addaction)

Evaluate need of a hospital outreach 
worker and develop the process within 
which to refer into the worker.

Hayley Child & Natasha Swift Meeting between Addaction and Hayley took place. 
Unfortunately the project needs a better 
understanding of A&E admissions of frequent flyers 
in order to justify implementing a hospital worker 
and currently Addactions work focusses more on the 
Wards at present and is still in its early days. 
Another meeting is set for end of June to see if more 
information can be gathered on this cohort in A &E.

Evaluate need of a hospital outreach 
worker – gather information on need 
within the hospital setting. 

Hayley Child & Claire 
Seabourne

Blue Light review has highlighted some things for the 
project to consider moving forwards including a 
potential change in operation. Due to this the 
Hospital Workers will be looked at in line with this. 

Develop a SLA & contract extension for 
the Blue Light Outreach hospital 
worker.

Oct 2017 Dec 2017

Evaluate Hayley Child & Claire 
Seabourne and Nacro

Jan 2018 March 2018

Reduce Underage alcohol sales 
(county wide) by using

 Enforcement operations
 Business Education

Mark Keal 
(Trading Standards)

April 2017 March 20182.3
On 
schdule

Identify a pool of volunteers aged 16-
18 for test purchasing activity

SM Partnership led by Mark 
Keal

An ask has been put out to Positive Futures and 
partners. Not a high response has been received yet.
 A small pool of volunteers following a presentation at a 
school in Lincoln have been recruited. This will enable us 
to undertake some UAS work planned for the summer. 

P
age 114



13
7th August 2015

We do still need to identify further sources to ensure that 
we can operate across the County

Carry out proxy and test purchasing in 
Gainsborough to establish baseline for 
CAP. 

We have done 28 test purchases with 7 failures so 
far this year, all in Q2. We are planning to carry out 
another exercise in Gainsborough in the October 
half term.
Gainsborough was last tested in July 16, one of the 
last Ops we did before the volunteer issues, 3 shops 
were tested and all passed.

Carry out proxy and test purchasing in 
Skegness to establish baseline for CAP.

Oct 2017 Dec 2017

Jan 2018 March 2018
Domestic abuse training to be 
provided to all Addaction staff 

Natasha Swift
(Addaction)

&
Hayley Child 

(LCC)

April 2017 March 2018

Speak to Karen Shooter about training 
for Addaction Staff

Natasha Swift and 
Karen Shooter 

NS met with Karen on 24th April. Agreed for Karen to 
forward LCC training day information to support in 
the rollout of effective training. Since this, it has 
been identified that although the recommendation 
is that DA training is deliver every 5 years, it will be 
beneficial for all Addaction staff to attend. NS 
currently in the process of developing a 12 month 
training plan for the service.

2.4
On 
schdule

Training to be rolled out to all 
Addaction staff

Addaction Staff have been booking on to DA training 
and have been informed of the new training dates. 

P
age 115



14
7th August 2015

Oct 2017 Dec 2017
Jan 2018 March 2018

Blue Light Outreach Project to be 
evaluated after year 2.

Hayley Child 
(LCC)

Sept 2017 March 2018

Evaluation begin April 2017 June 2017

2.5
Complet
ed

Finalise evaluation Blue Light has been evaluated. The project 
recommendations are to be looked at and 
considered for year 3 of the project.

Carry out a 'Snap-shot' of NPS and the 
issues seen by those across the county 
since the ban was implemented and 
use it to inform prevention and 
disruption activity.

Hayley Child (LCC) 
& 

James Hallam

April 2017 March 2018

Create a survey to capture NPS use and 
public perception in the county before 
and since the ban. Collate feedback and 
feed back to SMDG and consider 
activity in response to the feedback.

Hayley Child Survey has been completed by 78 people in the 
county. A mixture of the public and professionals.

Look at the issues in Lincoln (other 
places to be considered) and consider a 
multi-agency approach to tackling 
some of the visible signs use is taking 
place. 

James Hallam and Hayley 
Child

A city centre meeting was held which looked at 
issues including the NPS users in the city centre. 
Nomad are currently looking to raise the funds to 
open a facility for people to go to for housing and 
support. A wethouse has been suggested  as a way 
of pulling this group of users off the streets and in to 
a place where using is done in a more structured 
way. Nomad are open to the idea of running their 
new facility in this way however the funding is 
required for this. 

2.6 

Look at A wet house facility as an Hayley Child Oct 2017 Dec 2017

P
age 116



15
7th August 2015

option in Lincoln
Jan 2018 March 2018

Link information on police drug 
raids/executed warrants back to 
councils & Landlords to enable 
proactive action to take place

Kate Hearn 
(WL district Council)

& 
Paul Drummond

(police)

April 2017 March 2018

Set up weekly scanning of SWW in 
relation to ASB incidents to be 
established. Sharing this information 
between WLDC & Police and making a 
proactive decision to contact landlords 
where relevant. 

This has been discussed and agreed, but not yet 
started due to other workloads. However police and 
WLDC are now regularly contacting landlords in 
selective licencing area as problems arise which is 
already resolving problems at an early stage.

Put (above) the Weekly Scanning into 
practice 

This has changed slightly from the original intent; we 
have now arranged monthly meetings with the 
police to share information on properties of concern 
and discuss problem solving resolutions. This has to 
date included a landlord coming to speak with us at 
our request following multiple reports of ASB, 
including drugs, and 5 recent drug warrant 
executions at his properties, and agreed actions 
coming from that. We are awaiting the results of this 
intervention to assess success or otherwise of this 
work.

Roll out the process across 
Gainsborough

Paul Drummond (Police) and 
Kate Hearn (WLDC)

Oct 2017 Dec 2017

2.7

On 
schedule 
(adapted
)

Review the process and bring to the 
delivery group for consideration of a 
county wide roll out.

Kate Hearn (WLDC) Jan 2018 March 2018

2.8 Analytical piece of work on Crime and Sammie Framp April 2016 Dec 2017

P
age 117



16
7th August 2015

Disorder in relation to Alcohol and 
substance misuse in Lincolnshire to 
help inform activity and campaigns.

(Safer Communities Analyst)

Analyst to carry out analysis of the 
county in relation to Alcohol

Sammie Framp Analyst has completed analytical work

SMB have requested that Sammie does 
some further work to explore alcohol 
related violence occurring outside of 

main town centres within Lincolnshire 
looking to identify if this is occurring as 

a fall out from the NTE or just in the 
home

Sammie Framp Due to Work Commitments Analytical resource will 
be given towards December to complete this activity

Oct 2017 Dec 2017
Jan 2018 March 2018

Ensure Messages from awareness 
campaigns, including road safety 
'Drink/Drug drive' messages 
throughout the year are reaching 
emerging communities.

Kate Fielden
(Lincolnshire Road Safety 

Partnership)

April 2016 March 2018

Task and finish group to look at 
Summer Campaign

Meeting has taken place and ideas devised with 
clarity on messaging for a summer campaign. 

Launch mid June to 1st September time 
with activity from partners.
Task and finish group - September

Initial Advert has been developed. 

2.9

Task and finish group 
13 - 19 November 2017 – Alcohol 
awareness week. 

Oct 2017 Dec 2017

P
age 118



17
7th August 2015

Global day of remembrance victims of road 
collisions Day is 19th November
Road safety week 27th November – 1st 
December
For Christmas campaign plan to target 
supermarkets with stands and measuring 
glasses and leaflets
Review the effectiveness of the 
campaigns.

Jan 2018 March 2018

Monitor the effectiveness of the 
Alcohol Abstinence Monitoring 
Requirement (AAMR) linked to Boston 
court

Matthew Morrisey (CRC) and 
Hayley Child 

April 2016 March 2018

Launch of AAMR June 5th 2017 Due to some procedural issues with MOJ the actual 
launch of the pilot will now commence on the 5th June 
2017. Local implementation groups have been 
established with key stakeholders in Courts, Police and 
Addaction. The hardware has now been purchased  and 
the legal instrument for the use of the AAMR within 
Court has been completed. Relevant  court staff and 
magistrates have been made aware through briefing 
sessions. A targeting criteria has been established for the 
Probation Service and HLNY CRC to work within. Further 
discussion regarding press communication will be agreed 
following the outcome of the elections
Since the launch in June 5 people have been issued 
with an Alcohol Monitoring tag from Boston Court. 
So far all those fitted have not used alcohol except 
for one case where the person was tagged 
inappropriately as they were alcohol dependant. The 
case went back to court and the AAMR tag removed. 

2.10

Oct 2017 Dec 2017

P
age 119



18
7th August 2015

6 month Review of effectiveness and 
use of AAMR.

Jan 2018 March 2018

Develop a Community Alcohol 
Partnership in Gainsborough

Alan Simpson (CAP), Kate 
Hearn (WLDC) and Shayleen 

Town (WLDC)

April 2017 March 2018

Distribute Baseline Surveys to 
secondary Schools including: 
Gainsborough Academy, Queen 
Elizabeth, Huntcliff School and promote 
the public survey.

Kate Hearn & Shayleen 
(WLDC)

Surveys have been sent to the three secondary 
schools, however no response to date from any of 
them. Awaiting outcome of schools survey before 
progressing with public survey.

Set up first partnership meeting and 
develop an Action Plan for 
Gainsborough CAP. 
Establish baselines.

Kate Hearn and Shayleen 
(WLDC) & Alan (CAP)

At this time the CAP in Gainsborough is not 
considered appropriate as their issues are not 
underage drinking. 

Launch CAP ALL partners Oct 2017 Dec 2017

2.11

ON 
HOLD

Jan 2018 March 2018

P
age 120



19
7th August 2015

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Indicator Source Total Year 2015/16

2017/18
Commentary

 
2,474

2016/17Reduce the number of alcohol 
related Police incidents

Community 
Safety Analysts 

– NSPIS 
Command & 

Control 

9,884

2,333 2,678 2,101 1,848

Alcohol related incidents are 6% higher 
compared to the same quarter last 
year. All areas have seen an increase 
but North Kesteven is the only area to 
have experienced a statistically 
significant increase. Consideration to be 
given to the 2 extra bank holidays this 
quarter compared to the same quarter 
last year.

2017/18

 646

2016/17
Reduce the number of alcohol 
related crimes

Community 
Safety Analysts 

– NICHE
2,670

612 618 581 602

Alcohol related crime is 5.4% higher 
compared to the same quarter last 
year. North Kesteven, South Kesteven 
and West Lindsey have experienced an 
increase.

P
age 121



20
7th August 2015

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Indicator Source Total Year 2015/16

2017/18
Commentary

764

2016/17Reduce alcohol related ASB Community 
Safety Analysts 3,342

766 915 642 530

 Due to technical issues there are some alcohol 
related anti-social behaviour incidents which 
have not been counted in this figure. These will 
be corrected when available. It is expected that 
this figure will increase by around 70 incidents 
when all data is available. With this in mind 
commentary in relation to trends is not possible 
at present.

2017/18

403

2016/17
Reduce alcohol related violence 
against the person

Community 
Safety Analysts 1,672

354 372 368 370

 Alcohol related violence is up 11% compared to 
quarter one in 2016-17 and is higher than last 
quarter. Although all violent crime is continuing 
on an upwards trend, the proportion of violence 
that is alcohol related has remained similar.

P
age 122



21
7th August 2015

Outcome 3: Deliver high quality alcohol and drug treatment and recovery systems

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates/Updates

Start End
Year 1 & 2

See previous Delivery Plans for year 1 & 2 for information
Year 3

Implement a Substance Misuse related death 
review process where learnings can be responded 
to within the county. 
DRD will also be monitored through Fingertips PHE 
tool to help identify emerging trends.

Hayley Child 
(Substance Misuse 

Strategy Co-ordinator)

And 
Coroners Office

April 2017 March 2018

Meet with Tracy Carr from PHE to look at best 
practice for gathering learnings from the county. 

1. Contact Bethany in Nottingham who has 
already established a Review Group

Hayley and Tracy Carr HC and TC have met and discussed establishing 
a review panel which would look at DRD's in 
the county similar to Notts. 
HC has contacted Bethany to find out how best 
to go about this process. Awaiting response.

3.1

Meet with the coroners office Donna Sharp and 
Chantel. 

Met with the coroners office. It has taken the 
suicide prevention review panel 3 years to get 

P
age 123



22
7th August 2015

Meet with PH regarding how they have established 
a working relationship for Suicide prevention group. 

an ISA with the coroners. Consideration might 
need to be that we look at those cases which 
come through the police initially as an ISA 
might be easier to establish through this route 
and more timely. 
Marta from PH has sent through some of the 
data break downs in order to identify those 
who would be suitable for review. 
Hayley is looking in to this option

DRD post to be established to set up process for 
reviewing DRD.

Simon Gladwin, Hayley 
Child and Claire 

Seabourne

Oct 2017 December

Jan 2017 March 2017
Review pathways into treatment and recovery 
services ensuring professionals and public have a 
clear understanding of where they need to go for 
support.

Natasha Swift 
(Addaction)

April 2017 March 20183.2

Evaluating the use of the SPOC referral line From 1st May, new triage referral process 
implemented and process MAP designed for 
service users. This means an initial assessment 
of need will be made at point of contact, 
reducing waiting times. Service user’s are then 
invited to a Recovery Choices group and 
allocated following attendance of this group. 
Group is being delivered in Boston and Lincoln 
with numbers of up to 15 attending. Service 
user feedback has been positive and all who 
have attended engaged well with the session. 
Welcome packs to be developed moving 

P
age 124



23
7th August 2015

forward once CEC makes contact with 
community services.

Develop a new pathway with a structured flow 
diagram

Completed – flow chart exists

Distribute to GP's, services and professionals across 
the county

The decision has been taken to not distribute 
the referral pathway to professionals however 
communication has been made with the GPs 
via the Patient GP Card and through CCG visits 
to inform professionals about the new service.

Evaluate effectiveness Jan 2018 March 2018
Jan 2018 March 2018

Implement a clear 'After Care' process for those 
leaving prison and entering the treatment and/or 
recovery process.

Natasha Swift 
(Addaction)

And 
Louise Sherridan

& 
Stephen Youdell
(double impact)

April 2017 March 2018

Devise a pathway/Process map.  
Stephen to work with Louise. 
Natasha to work with Louise.

CEC Jenny Devlin joined Addaction on 08/05/2017. 
As part of her induction, she is currently in the 
process of reviewing pathways for service user’s 
wishing to access DI and volunteer training.

3.3

Stephen to attend team meeting at the prison to 
speak about the recovery service.
Bring to the delivery group and evaluate
Launch and start using the process

In process – HMP Contracts are currently up 
for retendering. Confirmation of processes will 
recommence once process is complete. 
Referral map currently in place. 
 
1 x HMP volunteer placement successful in 
Addaction. Currently placed in Boston 2 days 

P
age 125



24
7th August 2015

per week and Lincoln 2 days per week, 
delivering groups for both Addaction and DI. 
This is the first pilot and will be reviewed once 
the placement is completed.
Oct 2017 Dec 2017

Evaluate the process and apply any changes. Jan 2018 March 2018
Improve the rate of take up of the Recovery 
service in an attempt to expand the recovery 
population  

Natasha Swift 
(Addaction) 

And 
Stephen Youdell
(Double Impact)

April 2017 March 2018

Identify number of potential recovery clients in 
each area across the county in/ exiting treatment 
services.
Establish baseline and then review.

Due to data error, unable to calculate accurate 
figures at this time. Addaction’s CEC will be 
reviewing this with the data manager as per 
induction plan.
Addaction currently have 1720 service user’s 
in treatment. Innovation in process to expand 
service’s are as follows: 
GP Card – Addaction media campaign is 
currently on both North and South Patient GP 
card in each GP practice across Lincolnshire. 
Networking with local factory and businesses 
to deliver possible drop in’s in organisations 
and increase referral pathways 
Currently in the process of scoping national 
PHE data for alcohol user’s in the county
Oct 2017 Dec 2017

3.5

Jan 2018 March 2018
3.7 Promote and support the activity relating to the 

Recovery Innovation Fund
Stephen Youdell 
(Double Impact) 

April 2017 March 2018

P
age 126



25
7th August 2015

Natasha Swift 
(Addaction)

Simon Gladwin (PH) 
Hayley Child (LCC)

1. Implement regular meetings (follow on 
from SMDG)

2. Promote among partners and through 
Social media.

3. SY – to attend Addaction Team meetings  
to promote the funding

Regular meetings have been arranged for after 
the SMDG. 
Promotion on Twitter via SMSC has begun as 
well as word of mouth.
The first application has been received and 
£500 awarded to Nacro to provide crafting 
materials and refreshments for the clients in 
an attempt to engage them in peer support.

Innovation fund applications to be received

ALL

There have been 3 applications for funding. So 
far one lot of funding has been issued, one has 
been sent back with queries and most recently 
one is being considered by the panel. 
Oct 2017 Dec 2017
Jan 2018 March 2018

Dual Diagnosis Treatment pathway to be agreed 
and implemented

Addaction and LPFT April 2017 December 20173.8

Addaction and LPFT  to do some work on the detailed 
systems that would sit behi                                                                        
nd the DD protocol implementation.

Fern Hensley There is a review of the MHS happening of 
which Addaction are one of the many agencies 
involved in the consultation. Consultation due 
to be completed in December. 
 
Addaction currently in attendance to the 
MHCCC meetings and other MH steering 
groups to support the development of better 
partnership working. 
 

P
age 127



26
7th August 2015

Addaction are currently invited to some 
interface meetings which has enabled the 
service to promote partnership working with 
specific cases where substance misuse and MH 
concerns have been identified. 

P
age 128



27
7th August 2015

Indicator Source Baseline 
2016/17

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Target 
2017/18

Direction of 
Travel

Progress Update/ 
Actions

Increase 
successful 
exits from 
Alcohol 
Treatment 

Addaction/ 
Public 
Health

No data at present due 
to NDTMS reports 

unavailable to service 
providers

Unknown

No data at present due 
to NDTMS reports 
unavailable to service 
providers

Increase 
successful 
completions 
from 
Substance 
Misuse 
treatment 
services 
(excluding 
alcohol as 
primary 
drug) 

Addaction/ 
Public 
Health

No data at present due 
to NDTMS reports 

unavailable to service 
providers

unknown

No data at present due 
to NDTMS reports 
unavailable to service 
providers

Increase 
people 
engaging 
with the 
Recovery 
Service 

Stephen 
Youdell - 
Double 
Impact

20 Referrals
28 Academy program 

engaged.
22 Accredited learning 

days delivered with 121 
completions.

5 x IT Open days
50 Peer support groups

delivered across 5 
locations with 152 

visits.

P
age 129



28
7th August 2015

Outcome 4: Drug and Alcohol Prevention

3 x Community 
presentations to 20 

individuals
15 Drop-in sessions held 

across 5 locations 
engaging with 104 SU’s

5 Volunteer training 
delivered to 6 

volunteers

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates/Updates

Start End
Year 1 and 2

See previous Delivery Plans for year 1 & 2 information
Year 3

Prevention Education to be delivered to secondary 
schools across the county. Topics include, drugs, 
alcohol and NPS.

Hayley Child (LCC) 
Rebecca Homer 

(Addaction)

September 2017 August 20184.1

Hayley, Rebecca and Natasha to meet in May to 
discuss year 3 delivery and any adaptations.

Meeting booked for 22nd May

P
age 130



29
7th August 2015

SLA to be written and signed and delivery to begin 
in September.

HC and NS/RH SLA written, signed by both parties and in place. 
Delivery is ready to begin in September. 
Oct 2017 Dec 2017
Jan 2018 March 2018

A role out of Naloxone training and supply for 
professionals and (opiate) drug using community 

Natasha Swift 
(Addaction)

April 2017 March 2018

Identify Naloxone Champions in each Hub Site. New Nurse started in Grantham which has 
agreed to be Naloxone Champion. Gif will be 
reviewing staffs awarenss and signoff in each 
site to ensure local champions are fully 
trained. Partnership Naloxone training has 
commenced with the first session being 
delivered in Boston to Framework. Positive 
feedback received.  

Identify Appropriate professionals/partner agencies 
who will benefit from the training.

There has been a stock shortage of Naloxone and 
therefore priority of training and dispensing has 
been given to service user’s and hub sites. 
 
Volunteer recruitment almost complete. Volunteer 
NSP/Naloxone lead will map out possible training 
opportunities for agencies and develop a training 
plan for said agencies.

Training sessions booked and commenced. Oct 2017 Dec 2017

4.2

Evaluate ad review. Jan 2018 March 2018

4.4 Public Health funding to scope out if a hidden harm 
programme is possible with the funding available and for 
to scope it with children's.

Simon Gladwin
(public Health)

July 2017 March 2018

July 2017 
September 2017

P
age 131



30
7th August 2015

4.5 Deliver Accredited NPS Training to professionals 
and 'At risk' public 

Stephen Youdell

Hidden Harm workers in the county. 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Indicator Source Last Year 2016/17

2017/18
Commentary

Minimum of 4,000 Pupils receiving 
at least one prevention education 
session within the school year

Addaction 

 P
age 132



31
7th August 2015

Resources

Initiative Projected 
Annual 
Spend

Period Lead Progress Update

Blue Light Project – Outreach Workers (TBC)

Blue Light Training for professionals 
(Underspend)

£57,000 September 
2016 – August 
2017

Hayley Child 
(Substance Misuse 
Strategy Co-
ordinator)

Two Outreach workers will 
continue to cover the county.

Underspend used to commission 
further professionals training 
from Alcohol Concern.

Blue Light Hospital Outreach Worker £27,500 September 
2017 to August 
2018

Hayley Child 
(Substance Misuse 
Strategy Co-
ordinator)

One Outreach worker to work 
alongside Addaction with those 
frequent flyers who are not 
engaging in treatment.

Preventative Drug & Alcohol Education £30,000 September 
2017 to August 

Hayley Child 
(Substance misuse 

Continuation of Education 
provision

P
age 133



32
7th August 2015

2018 Strategy 
Coordinator) 

Risk Register

Risk 
No

Key Risks Consequences of 
Risk

RAG 
Rating

Control Procedures Risk Owner Target 
Completion 
Date

Progress 
Update

1 Poor engagement 
from Mental Health 
Services

Unable to progress 
with effective 
treatment of those 
with a Dual 
Diagnosis 

Future treatment 
costs are increased 
as the clients are 
not being supported 
effectively to 
address both mental 

Inform and seek 
support from the LCSP 
to improve partnership 
working with mental 
health services. 

Work with the SMB to 
use their working 
relationships to 
improve engagement.

SM SMB Chair June 2017 Mental Health 
will be in 
attendance at 
the next DG 
and SMB 
meeting

P
age 134



33
7th August 2015

health and 
substance misuse 
collaboratively.

2. Poor attendance at 
the SM SMB

Reduced problem 
solving capacity. 

Decision making is 
restricted. 

Partners invited to SM 
SMB to be written to 
and request 
representation at 
future meetings. 

SMB Chair September 2017 Attendance at 
the last SMB 
was good.

3 Data for treatment 
services NDTMS 
database not coming 
through

Unverified 
performance of the 
new substance misuse 
contracts due to data 
lags from the National 
Drug Treatment 
Monitoring System 

Regular contract 
management meetings 
are taking place to help 
identify any risks to 
service. 

Public Health 
& SMB Chair

Data is now 
coming 
through

Version Control

Version Date of update Other
1.0 06/04/17
1.1 13/04/17
1.2 12/05/17
1.3 25/07/17
1.4 17/09/17
1.5

P
age 135



34
7th August 2015

P
age 136



                                      Appendix G

Lincolnshire Sexual Violence & Abuse Delivery Plan – Year 3

 

P
age 137



                                      Appendix G

Contents

Introduction

Summary of Strategy 

Objectives

Overarching Outcome

Sub Oucomes (inc. measures & key tasks)

Resources

RisksP
age 138



                                      Appendix G

Introduction

This document supports the 2016-19 Sexual Violence and Abuse Strategy

The delivery of this plan will be led by members of the Sexual Violence and Abuse delivery group and sit alongside this group. 

This is a 'live' implementation plan and will be updated regularly by Sexual Violence and Abuse Delivery group.

Overarching Outcome: 

Residents of Lincolnshire are free from the threat of sexual violence and abuse

Sub Outcomes:

 Prevent Sexual Violence and Abuse
 Provide quality services
 Pursue perpetrators
 Partnership working – This feeds into the other sub outcomes

P
age 139



                                      Appendix G

Outcome 1: Prevent Sexual Violence and Abuse 

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates
Start End

Year 3
Partners from SVA support services including 
universities to complete the Excel data 
capture form each quarter and submit to 
Hayley Child In time for the Quarter end.
 

Laura Wint McKane 
(Rape Crisis)
Alison Cathie 

(Victim support)
Amanda Farquhar 

(SARC) 
Neil Wells (Trust 

House), 
Julie Spencer (SWS -

UoL)

November 2016 March 2018

All partners to submit data All above Data form has been sent back by all agencies 
except for LRC who require more time.

All partners to submit data July-September Data Capture forms are being submitted to HC at 
quarterly or more regular intervals from all 

agencies. 
All partners to submit data Oct 2017 Dec 2017

1.1
Underway 

Commission analysis of all data to understand 
Sexual Violence and abuse in the county

Jan 2017 Mar 2017

 

Local Awareness Campaign for February's 
national 'Sexual Violence and Abuse 
awareness week' 

SVA Partnership 
Delivery Group

April 2017 March 2018

Assess the impact of the September campaign 
and look at messaging for February's campaign.

Oct 2017 Dec 2017

1.2
Not 
Started

Awareness Campaign resources and activity Jan 2018 Mar 2018

P
age 140



                                      Appendix G

No More Awareness Campaign to take place in 
September 2017

SVA Partnership April 2017 Oct 2017

Task and Finish Group to be set up with 
services and college, and Universities 

Hayley Child (SVA 
Coordinator) and 
Partners

Meeting Set up for August

SVA partnership to look at messaging for the 
awareness week and design resources. July - September

Meeting has taken place, a press release has been 
devised and Comms/Activity Plan has been 
produced. Resources have also been developed.

Review the impact of the Awareness week Oct 2017 Dec 2017

1.3
Underway

Jan 2018 Mar 2018
Engage with local employers to build a 
network who will engage and work towards 
providing employment opportunities for 
former sex offenders

Tammy Banks
 (Circles)

Circles are currently in the process of recruiting 
a role within which partnerships will be 
developed to improve access to the 
community.

April - June April 2017 We have just appointed to this post and 
hope the project will start mid June.
Working with Lincs University a survey of 
employers has now been devised. This is now 
being undertaken locally and nationally.

Community engagement worker to start to 
make contact with organisations.

July -September Sarah Thompson is now in post and has started 
making contacts with organisations who have 
expressed an interest in upskilling their staff to offer 
there current services to people at risk of causing 
sexual harm and/or convicted of a sexual offence

Oct 2017 Dec 2017

1.4
Underway 

Jan 2018 Mar 2018

 

1.5
Barriers

Lap Dancing clubs across the county to 
implement the SEV Policy within their venues 
including the staffroom folder with support 
services.

Licensing Group
&
Hayley Child (LCC) 

April 2017 March 2018

P
age 141



                                      Appendix G

Lincoln: Krystal's & Cloud 9 
Boston: Goldfinger
Skegness: Flirts
Grantham: Taboo

& 
Kim Enderby (Police 
Licensing)

Meet with Taboo In Grantham and introduce 
the policy to management. – 2nd May 2017 visit 
booked

Kim Enderby, Hayley 
Child and Pam 

Robinson

Meeting with Taboo management led to them 
agreeing to implement the policy. The policy has 

now been adapted for the venue ready for 
implementation. Concerns the internal 'dancer 

code of conduct' suggests they operate a 2 touch 
rule before the person is asked to leave. We have 

challenged this with the venue and the venues 
legal rep who attended but have yet to get a 

sufficient response. 
Meet with Skegness Venues and introduce the 
policy to them for implementation.

Kim Enderby, Hayley 
Child 

Due to an organised police operation on the 
lapdancing club, their license is currently under 

review. Activity with regards to the SEV policy has 
been put on hold. 

Approach the Lincoln Lap dancing clubs again 
with Kim and try and implement the SEV Policy. 

Oct 2017 Dec 2017

Jan 2018 Mar 2018
Education in order to prevent SVA: promote 
and provide

 Consent training for school year 11+ 
 SRE for secondary schools
 Training for teachers – Disrespect 

Nobody
 University and Colleges

April 2017 March 20181.6
Underway

Produce service tender document for SVA 
Education

Due to the election there is a delay on the VAWG 
funding being announced which has delayed 

P
age 142



                                      Appendix G

VAWG outcome. Look at other opportunities. VAWG bid was unsuccessful. There are going to 
be 3 new SRE workers who will engage with 
schools and devise policies and lesson plans. 
There is a new Stay Safe worker who will go into 
schools and deliver SRE topics such as consent 
and healthy relationships. 

Oct 2017 Dec 2017
Jan 2018 Mar 2018

Implement DrinkAware Crews on Student 
Nights from September for a minimum of 1 
full academic year.

April 2017 March 2018

 Recruit 15 students
 Train 15 students to become part of the 

drink aware crew.

Joel Silver Bars have agreed and we will go out to recruit the 
staff. 

 Press Release promoting the Crew
 Launch the crew in student night 

venues

Joel Silver

Mokka and The 
Engine Shed

Unfortunately All but one of the night clubs has 
pulled out of the Drink Aware Crew scheme so a 
decision has been made to cancel the project roll 
out locally and instead return to this in the future 
when we can demonstrate there is still an issue 
with student related SV and NTE.

Collect information on Student related SV in 
relation to night time economy. 

Hayley and Police 
Data

Oct 2017 Dec 2017

1.7
Barriers

If there is still concern about Students and SV in 
the NTE to present the evidence to the NTE and 
discuss DrinkAware Crews again as an 
opportunity to address the issues. 

Hayley Child (SV 
Coordinator)

Jan 2018 Mar 2018

P
age 143



                                      Appendix G

Measures:

Indicator Source Signs of Success Commentary

Meaningful data from all partners will be 
gathered and presented at the DG on a 
quarterly basis

Gathering Data Set from partners 
regarding reports of SVA 

(In order to understand what a 
decrease of SVA in Lincolnshire 
looks like we first need to gather 
data from partners to understand 
the prevalence of SVA.)

Lincolnshire 
Rape Crisis

 Victim Support

 SARC 

Police

 Trust House

Meaningful Data includes:

 Number of reports in to agencies
 Those which have not gone to the 

police?
 Drug or alcohol involved
 Relationship to the victims
 Cyber enabled
 Number of reports in to police
 Number which are historical and 

recent

SARC, Trust House, Victim 
Support, and the University have 
all provided anonymised data so 
far. 
Still awaiting data from 
Lincolnshire Rape crisis. 

This data is to come in on a 
quarterly basis. 

P
age 144



                                      Appendix G

Indicator Source Last 
quarter

(Jan – Mar)

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Direction 
of Travel

Target 
2017/18

Progress Update

Reduce sexual assault 
against those identified 
as being vulnerable

Reduction in reports 
from those vulnerable 
including those:

 In a DA setting
 who use Dating 

sites/ apps

Lincolnshire 
Rape Crisis

 Victim 
Support

 SARC 

Police Data 

 Trust 
House

SARC
- 25 DA 

- Online 
Dating - 
Unknown

Student WS
- 0 DA 

- Online 
Dating: 0

Trust House
- 6 DA
- Online 

dating: 0

Victim Support
- 16 DA
- Online 

dating: 1

P
age 145



                                      Appendix G

Outcome 2:  Provide Quality Services

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates
Start End

Year 3
Engage with lap dancing venues across the county 
to promote the SEV sexual violence policy and 
services available to the staff in the community.

LRC, Trust House, LVS 
and SARC

July 2017 March 2018

Hayley Child Due to lack of take up of the policy and 
support pack we have not been able to carry 
out further work engaging the workers. 

Oct 2017 Dec 2017

2.1
Barrier

Jan 2018 Mar 2018
Partnership Service Grid to be devised, printed 
and distributed.

SVA partnership led 
by Hayley Child (LCC)

April 2017 June 20172.2
Completed

Service grid put together by student services at 
UoL
Design and printing by LCC
Shared electronically and paper version.

UoL Student services 
and Hayley Child (LCC) 

Grid has been completed by UoL Design and 
printing carried out by LCC Paper copies to 
be distributed at the next meeting

Year 2 

P
age 146



                                      Appendix G

Outcome 3: Pursue Perpetrators

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates
Start End

Year 3
All Partners engaged within the SVDG to provide 
anonymous intelligence to the police using the 
Intelligence forms used by SARC. 
Information to be included are those who don't 
want to report to the police but where other 
people may be at risk of SVA. 

Rape Crisis, SARC, 
Victim Support, 

University of Lincoln, 
BG University, Trust 

House, College.
&

Dan Boulter (Emerald 
Team)

April 2017 March 2018

All Partners to complete the forms and 
communicate this process with workers within 
their teams to ensure there is consistency.

ALL Anonymous reporting form which the SARC 
uses has been shared with partners. Partners 
from Trust house, SWS and Victim support are 
currently using this

Share Intelligence form with Education Partners 
new to the partnership

Hayley Child Intelligence form has been shared with BG and 
Lincoln College.   

Review the use of the Intelligence forms at next 
SVDG

ALL Oct 2017 Dec 2017

3.1
Underway

Jan 2018 Mar 2018

 

Crimestoppers Reporting Campaign to be 
developed for Sexual Violence and Abuse 
Awareness Week in 2018 to increase intelligence 
and reporting rate from 18% to 20%

SVA services, Police, 
Hayley (LCC) and 
Crimestoppers

September 2017 March 2018

Crimestoppers to present at the next Delivery 
Group meeting.

Lydia Patsalides Crimestoppers have presented and a task and 
finish group has been arranged for August to 
look at messaging and a campaign

2.2
Underway

Task and finish group meeting about Lydia Patsalides (CS) Crimestoppers meeting has taken place and 

P
age 147



                                      Appendix G

Crimestoppers Campaign. and SVDG Partners partners agreed on messaging. Lydia from CS 
will take away and form a plan and costs for 

concept design.

Oct 2017 Dec 2017
Launch Crimestoppers SV campaign in 
Lincolnshire

Lydia Patsalides (CS) Jan 2018 Mar 2018

National Ugly Mugs to be introduced to the 
County as a way of protecting sex workers from 
Sexual Violence from customers. 

Hayley Child to lead April 2017 October 2017

Print leaflets and posters for the county. 
Engage partners in order to place posters up in 
reception areas of SH clinics and police stations.

Hayley Child to lead 
Carol Skye (SH 
Commissioner)

Leaflets and posters have been printed. Other 
languages are being sought in order to 
translate. Posters have been shared with SH 
clinics across the county and also with some 
Police. 

Engage with partners across the county promoting 
NUM's to sex workers through those who work 
directly with them. 
Media coverage to promote the NUM's scheme 
across the county.

Hayley Child to lead

Marianne Marshall 
(LCC Comms) 

Sex workers In the 
county

Media Activity has taken place in Lincolnshire 
to promote the NUM's scheme locally (please 
see link below). 
HC also contacted Sex workers online 
individually to promote NUM usage. Since this 
activity we have seen NUM being used and 
alerts sent out. 
http://www.lincolnshirelive.co.uk/news/lincol
n-news/sex-workers-urged-vet-clients-114105

Oct 2017 Dec 2017

3.3

Promotion of NUM for SVA awareness week in 
February.

Hayley to lead and SVA 
partners to support.

Jan 2018 Mar 2018

3.4 Launch online Student anonymous reporting Julie Spencer & Helen April 2017 Oct 2017

P
age 148



                                      Appendix G

system for Sexual Violence, harassment and 
abuse.

Cobbold
(Student Wellbeing 

Service)
Since July we have been designing the content 
and layout of the online reporting system, and 
our IT team are now in the process of setting 
this up for us. We plan to have the online 
reporting system completed and available to 
students for the start of term, however I am 
not in a position to guarantee this at the 
moment.

Launch reporting System Oct 2017 Dec 2017

Underway

Jan 2018 Mar 2018
Organise Sexual Violence and abuse awareness 
training for HE professionals in the county

Hayley Child, Mary-ann 
Round (LSAB) 

June 2017 February 2018

Mary-ann and Hayley to meet to prepare the 
outline of the training and bring together the 
issues we are trying to address. 

Hayley Child and Mary 
Ann Round

Met and produced and outline of what the day 
will be about and who the target audience are. 

Set a date 7th February to tie in with SVA 
awareness week. Booked venue.

Agenda to be outlined and those involved to 
meet. Poster/leaflet to be produced.

Emerald, SARC and 
Trust House – HC and 

MAR to lead.

Agenda has been written in draft, A poster for 
the event is being designed. A meeting has 
been booked for 18th September. 
HC and DB have both watched the 'Is this 
Rape' dvd in order to tie the topics of the day 
together. 

Leaflets to be distributed to partners and 
promotional activity to take place.

ALL Partners October 2017 December 2017

3.5
Underway

Delivery of Training Day ALL January 2018 February 2018

Year 2

P
age 149



                                      Appendix G

Measures:

Indicator Source Baseline 
2016/17

Last 
quarter

This 
quarter

Direction 
of Travel

Target 
2017/18

Progress Update

Increase conviction rates

Increase in successful 
convictions from previous 
year.

Emerald 
Team – 

Lincolnshire 
Police

THIS IS BEING REVIEWED AS 
BETTER INDICATORS MAY BE 
USED FROM HERE ON _ DI 
BOULTER TO DECIDE THIS 
INDICATOR

Increase reporting of SVA 
in Lincolnshire

Reports of Sexual Violence 
and Abuse to be in line with 
the estimated Prevalence in 
Lincolnshire based on the 
CSEW

Police Data There's an estimated 7,940 
victims of sexual assault (aged 
16-59) in Lincolnshire in 2015-
16. Lincolnshire Police recorded 
1,167 sexual offences in the 
same year. This is a difference 
of 6,773 victims (85%), meaning 
that only 3 in 20 victims 
reported the sexual offence to 
the police.

Identify serial repeat 
offenders

Police Data, 
Police 

Intelligence 
and Partner 

Data

Capture of this data needs to 
be looked at especially when 
capturing data from the 
public and promoting this 
facility

P
age 150



                                      Appendix G

Ref Task Responsibility Target Dates/Updates
Start End

Year 1 
Create awareness campaigns from the 
partnership to cover key dates in the year such 
as SVA awareness week using the main aims of 
the partnership. 

Hayley Child to lead September 2016 March 2018

Create Awareness Calendar for the year for the 
priority.

Update the #NoMore brand to pull away from 
the 'Blue' of the nation 'Uk Says NOMORE' 
campaign to give it our own identity.

Hayley Child Calendar has been produced and can be 
shared electronically with partners.

Green branding has been developed and 
placed on all partnership documents. 

Task and finish group to establish messaging and 
activity for the Awareness week.

Activity from all Partners to take place week 
beginning 25th September 2017.

Partners have met and decided on the 
campaign aims for the September campaign 
targeting students.

Oct 2017 Dec 2017

4.1

Underway

Jan 2018 Mar 2018

 

January 2016 March 20184.2

Year 2

P
age 151



                                      Appendix G

 Outcome 4: Partnership Working

Measures:

Indicator Source Signs of Success Commentary

The Reach of Awareness 
Campaigns promoting a 
culture change in relation to 
SVA 

(Create a countywide shift in 
culture to promote positive 
relationships where SVA is not 
acceptable)

Impressions from 
Social media and 

use of Impact 
report following 

the #NoMore 
Campaign

Impact of awareness campaign in terms of 
impressions, engagement and media involvement. 
The more widespread across the county the better. 

Impact report for Septembers 
Campaign and February

Increase reports of Sexual 
Violence and abuse in the 
county from 18% to 20% which 
is the national average. 

Police data Increase in reporting of Sexual Violence and Abuse 
in Lincolnshire

 

 

SC Analyst has provided a 
baseline and a target from the 
national average. 

P
age 152



                                      Appendix G

Gather information to gain a 
baseline for SVA in relation to: 

1. Alcohol 
2. Cyber
3. DA

Lincolnshire Rape 
Crisis

 Victim Support
 SARC 
Police 

Trust House

Partners submitting data on the key areas of focus 
every quarter in order to better understand the 
prevalence. 

Currently all partners have 
submitted data except LRC who 
have requested more time. 

P
age 153



                                      Appendix G

Risk Register

Risk 
No

Key Risks Consequences of 
Risk

RAG 
Rating

Control Procedures Risk Owner Target 
Completion 
Date

Progress Update

1 Reduction in 
Funding for Services

Reduction in 
services for those 
who are not in the 
CJS. 
This would leave 
only a SARC and CJS 
ISVA service. 

With the increase in 
reports from 
historical abuse it 
would leave a lot of 
people without 
support.

Raise at LCSP LCSP March 2018 PCC has 
provided 
funding for LRC 
and Trust House 
to help keep 
their services 
running.

This funding 
runs out in April 
2018 and will 
leave a huge 
gap.

2 Lack of engagement 
from partners in the 
Delivery Group

Lack of progression 
in delivery of the 
strategy

Coordinator to 
continue to try to 
engage with partners 
individually as well as 
through meetings.

SMB The last delivery 
group meeting 
was very well 
attended and 
very productive.

3 Lack of Engagement 
from partners in the 
SMB

Lack of progression 
in delivery of the 
strategy

Chair to write to non-
attenders in order to 
engage and to raise at 
the LCSP.

LCSP Attendance has 
improved. 

4 Lack of Awareness 
of the Strategy and 

Delivery may be 
held back and 

Coordinator and 
members of the SMB 

SMB April 2017 Coordinator has 
shared the 

P
age 154



                                      Appendix G

delivery plan among 
partners

duplication may 
occur

and DG to promote the 
Strategy to partners 
within their area

Strategy with 
partners for 
promotion.

5 Lack of Education 
provision 

Future generations 
will not be educated 
on healthy 
relationships, 
consent and sexual 
violence

Currently there are 
chargeable sessions 
available but schools 
are reluctant to spend 
their tight budgets on 
this topic. 

SMB PH has 3 new 
workers who 
will help schools 
deliver SRE and 
produce policies 
within school. 
Safer 
Communities 
have just 
employed a Stay 
safe officer to 
deliver SRE 
topics in 
schools.

6 Ability to collect 
anonymous 
data/information on 
perpetrators in 
order to prevent 
without it coming 
through services 
first. 

Without this 
anonymous data it 
will prove difficult to 
prevent and become 
proactive in 
stopping 
reoffending.

Currently there are no 
systems in place 
outside of services, 
police and 
crimestoppers. 
Consideration needs to 
be given to how this 
anonymous reporting 
can be done.

SMB

Version Control

P
age 155



                                      Appendix G

Version Date
1.0
1.1 25/04/2017
1.2 10/05/17
1.3 16/08/17
1.4 29/08/17

P
age 156



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership 

Communications E-Bulletin – January 2017 

 

Substance Misuse 

An awareness/campaign diary has been produced 

which incorporates DA, SM and SV priority dates to 

allow for strong partnership support for national and 

local campaigns throughout the year. Alcohol 

Awareness Week took place during mid-November.  

Partners worked together to promote a consistent 

message; this year the focus was on 'Know the risks' 

of drinking.  

Addaction have now launched their services for the 

county and are the only providers of substance 

misuse (inc alcohol) services commissioned by PH. 

 

Sexual Violence and Abuse 

#NoMore awareness week was a success. The 'Ask for Angela' tool for the night time economy has gone viral with areas 

across the UK asking to use it along with the Police in Australia, Canada and parts of the USA. A lot of media has followed 

this including national BBC radio, Virgin, Capital and all local stations. Write ups have been seen in local, national and 

international press. #NoMore will be relaunching in February to tie in with National Sexual Violence and Abuse week. 

                  More information at: www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/nomore 

  

Contact us on: 

Email: 

Claire.seabourne@ 

lincolnshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01522 552609 

Serious and Organised Crime 

The SOC local profile has been 

refreshed with significant partner 

contribution. 

There is continued buy in and 

support from partner agencies. 

There is an increasing network of 

task and finish groups e.g. around 

modern slavery and cyber. 

Partners have shared intelligence 

around specific organised crime 

groups.  This information led to 

disruption activity taking place. 

 

Reducing Offending 

Positive initial feedback from the joint area inspection considering the impact of domestic abuse upon children. 

Development of an out of court decision making panel between Lincolnshire Police and Youth Offending Service (YOS). 

Panels will ensure appropriate use of caution and support available to divert children from formal criminal justice 

system where appropriate. 

Engagement is taking place with Lincolnshire Sport to look at funding opportunities for offenders to access sport and 

fitness to improve physical and emotional well-being.  

The Lincolnshire YOS have received national recognition through the award of the Restorative Justice Quality Mark for 

work within the community around restorative justice and supporting victims of crime.  

Work is on-going in the South-West Ward project in Gainsborough to improve community safety and tackle social 

exclusion. 

Appendix H

Page 157

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/nomore
mailto:Claire.seabourne@%20lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:Claire.seabourne@%20lincolnshire.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sexual Violence and abuse Continued… 

Boston Licensing are extremely supportive of the sexual violence policy that has been devised; intended to be 

implemented in all Sexual Entertainment venues to help protect the workers, gather better intelligence and reduce the 

risks of sexual violence and abuse being 'accepted' among those workers.  

 

Domestic Abuse 

The multi-agency domestic abuse inspection has now concluded.  Initial feedback has been very positive including the 
strategic management of domestic abuse and the MARAC.   The multi-agency training, domestic abuse protocol, Charter 
and the school work was also commended.   Some areas for development were also identified by the inspection team. 
Work with schools on domestic abuse has restarted with the Domestic Abuse Project Officer taking a pro-active role to 
engaging schools.  A new resource pack for schools has been produced and a significant number of schools have 
expressed an interest in working with the County DA team. 
 
Partnership work with the RAF is developing in relation to DA and safeguarding.  A DA conference was held on 25th 

November at RAF Cranwell with support from the County DA team and the LSCB and LSAB Board managers. 

 

Hate Crime  

Stop Hate UK Funding has been secured for a further two years with contributions made by the Office of the Police and 

Crime Commissioner and District Councils. Stop Hate UK are an independent organisation that provide a single point of 

contact across Lincolnshire (24/7) for victims to report Hate Crime and Mate Crime, as an alternative to contacting 

Lincolnshire Police. They also offer practical and emotional support and where consent is given refer cases to the Police 

and other local support agencies. 

Hate Crime Awareness Week (8th-15th October 2016) was promoted throughout Lincolnshire with a media campaign led 

by the Hate Crime Delivery Group; including a press release and video message from the Chair, the distribution of posters 

and leaflets and various other events held within individual districts.   

The Lincolnshire Hate Crime Strategy has been revised and signed off by all partners. It is Lincolnshire’s second multi-

agency strategy to tackle hate crime and hate motivated harassment and incidents. The strategy focuses on the 

importance of effectively identifying hate crime, along with measure to increase confidence in reporting. 

Anti-Social Behaviour 

ASB Information and Case Management -Following a significant review process undertaken by the 

ASB Strategic Management Board (SMB), it has been concluded that the most appropriate way 

forward is to procure a new shared IT system.  Having received the support of the Lincolnshire 

Community Safety Partnership (LCSP) to progress down this route, the SMB are now working up a 

detailed business case.   

 

Page 158



LINCOLNSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 

E-Bulletin - June 2017 

 

 

  
LINCOLNSHIRE HATE CRIME SURVEY 

The Hate Crime Delivery Group are 
developing a countywide Hate Crime 
Survey as a means to improve 
understanding of Hate Crime in 
Lincolnshire and help inform future 
decisions making. The survey will be 
hosted on the LCSP website in both an 
online and printable format. It will also 
be made available in Polish, Latvian and 
Lithuania, and easy-read. Members of 
the Group will be promoting the survey 
in preparation (and during) for it going 
‘live’ later this year.  

'ALL ABOUT YOU' CARDS 

C/I Dan Whyment and ASB County Coordinator Lisa 
Duckworth are working with VoiceAbility on a project 
designed to help people use public services (e.g. 
transport, shops, leisure centres etc.) where 
previously they may have had difficulties. It involves 
the development of cards which will allow users to 
discreetly communicate a message to staff. For 
example ‘Please speak slowly, I am hard of hearing’ 
and 'Please be patient, I have a hidden disability'.  
Local disability forums have been consulted and fully 
support the project. They have also been heavily 
involved in the naming of the cards which have been 
called ‘All About Me Cards’. Templates are currently 
in production, along with a publicity campaign. 

ASB SCHOOLS WORKSHOP 

Tackling anti-social behaviour is a priority for agencies across Lincolnshire. Whilst considerable steps 
have been made to improve the response to anti-social behaviour; with better protection for 
victims and more effective use of powers and tools to tackle perpetrators, there is a significant gap 
in prevention, particularly in schools. There is anecdotal evidence that Police Officers, Police 
Community Support Officers and Local Authority Anti-Social Behaviour Officers are providing an 
input on anti-social behaviour in some schools but this is on an ad hoc basis with no consistent 
message being delivered. As a result the County Anti-Social Behaviour Coordinator, Stay Safe 
Partnership and Boston Borough Council are working together to produce a standalone countywide 
anti-social behaviour workshop that will be ready and available to schools, through the Stay Safe 
Partnership website, from September 2017. 

SAFER COMMUNITIES 
Safer Communities are funding the training of 15 people to become 'DrinkAware Crews'. A drink 
aware crew will roam student night venues in pairs assisting students who are in need whether 
that's due to drinking too much or losing their friends. The Crew's aim is to reduce harm which 
might be caused by drinking. 

 

RECOVERY SERVICE INNOVATION 
The Recovery Service Innovation Fund has been 
launched which encourages people in the recovery 
community to apply for funding.  For example the 
fund could be applied for to set up a recovery 
football team and pay for the kits. Through doing this 
you encourage those who are in the recovery 
community to engage in positive activities and also to 
integrate back into mainstream society. So far one 
application has been granted £500 to purchase arts 
and crafts for alcohol recovery clients. 

COMMUNITY ALCOHOL PARTNERSHIPS 

CAPs are being looked at in Gainsborough 
and Skegness. Initial discussions have 
taken place with District partners and 
Police to assess need. Gainsborough have 
submitted their first set of surveys to 
schools to gain a baseline. 
 

SEXUAL VIOLENCE AND ABUSE SERVICE GRID 

A sexual violence and abuse service grid has been devised for the 

county with partners providing up to date information on the 

services they provide. 

HATE CRIME 

SUBSTANCE MISUSE 

SEXUAL VIOLENCE 

ASB 

Appendix I

Page 159



  

NATIONAL UGLY MUGS 
National Ugly Mugs has received funding from 
Partners (Police & LCC). The organization 
provides a safety service to sex workers to 
report dangerous customers which then sends 
an alert out to other sex workers in the area 
to warn them of a person's risk. LCC have 
funded training for police and other front line 
workers who may come in to contact with sex 
workers in order to promote the scheme. 

SEXUAL VIOLENCE POLICY 
Following a visit to 'Taboo' In Grantham (lap dancing 
venue) the management have agreed to take on the 
Sexual Violence Policy which aims to protect and 
inform women who are employed by the venues who 
may experience sexual abuse/violence (e.g. unwanted 
touching from customers). This was in response to 
concerns raised at the SVDG that 'touching' and 
intrusive 'sexual assault' was happening in the venues 
from customers to dancers. 

ASK FOR ANGELA 

Ask for Angela launched in Australia on the 12th May with a variety of partners being involved from the 

alcohol industry. Special recognition on all posters was given to Lincolnshire County Council for the scheme. 

ARC UPDATE 

The project now has a new operational manager in place (Clare Newborn) who is undertaking this role on 
a secondment for 12 months. Work has commenced to map the existing ARC cohort against that 
identified within the new Department for Communities and Local Government funded Social Impact Bond 
Project and this demonstrates the need for both projects to work in close partnership. This includes 
scoping the possibility of co-location to bring together resources and specialist knowledge. 

YOUTH, OUT OF COURT  
DECISION MAKING PANELS 

Work is progressing to develop a new model 

to determine the disposals for children and 

young people in Lincolnshire. This will create a 

framework of weekly meetings with key 

agencies present including Police, Children 

Services and Youth Offending to determine 

the most appropriate disposals for children. It 

will ensure that wherever possible a 

restorative approach is utilised that reflects 

the needs of the children and wider family, 

whilst also reflecting the views of the victim. 

ALCOHOL ABSTINENCE MONITORING REQUIREMENTS  
 

The pilot of the alcohol abstinence monitoring 

requirement launched on the 5th June 2017and the legal 

instrument for the court orders has been laid. The project 

has been possible through the financial commitment of 

the PCC in collaboration with the PCC in Humberside and 

North Yorkshire.  A multi-agency steering group and also 

a local implementation group has now been formed with 

key partners including HMCTS, Police, Addaction and 

HLNY (CRC). A project manager has been appointed and 

this will also be supported by a full evaluation to reflect 

the impact of this intervention. The pilot area will include 

those adult offenders who meet the targeting criteria and 

reside in Boston, Spalding, Louth and Skegness. 

REDUCING OFFENDING 

 

LINCOLNSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 
Contact Details: Email: Claire.Seabourne@lincolnshire.gov.uk Telephone: 01522 552609 

www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lincolnshire-community-safety-partnership 

NEW DATES FOR MULTI-AGENCY DOMESTIC 

ABUSE TRAINING 

There are now some more dates for the multi-

agency domestic abuse training for all 

practitioners in Lincolnshire.  To book a place 

please go to www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lscb  

and follow the link to the training page. 

SURVIVOR FEEDBACK FORM 

Please promote the feedback form for survivors on the Domestic Abuse website.  You can also promote the 

website with the use of the survivor cards which are available to order from the resources page of the 

practitioner's part of the website (www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/domestic-abuse) 

DOMESTIC ABUSE DOMESTIC HOMICIDE REVIEW PUBLISHED 

Domestic Homicide Review "DHR 2014 Mrs F" has 
now been published on the Lincolnshire Community 
Safety Partnership website 
(www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/domestic-homicide-
reviews/130018.article) where there are 
recommendations and learning for many agencies.  So 
please do have a look at the Overview Report and 
share it within your agency and with colleagues.  The 
learning from this will also be implemented within the 
multi-agency domestic abuse training for 2017/18. 

Page 160

mailto:Claire.Seabourne@lincolnshire.gov.uk
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lincolnshire-community-safety-partnership
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lscb
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/domestic-abuse
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/domestic-homicide-reviews/130018.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/domestic-homicide-reviews/130018.article


Appendix J

Page 161



Page 162



                                                                                                                                                             Appendix K

Ask for Angela Poster Campaign

Background

Ask for Angela is a poster campaign devised  by Hayley Child (Sexual Violence and Abuse strategy 
coordinator) to go into bars and pubs across the county as part of #NoMore awareness week. The 
posters were designed to remain in the venues beyond the awareness week. The name 'Angela' 
came from a close friend (of the coordinator) who's friend Angela Crompton had been murdered by 
her husband following a short abusive marriage. Seeing the impact losing her friend in such a horrific 
way had on her friend it seemed like a nice dedication to use the name Angela as a way of helping 
other potentially at risk of violence and abuse. The name Angela also sounded much like 'angel' so 
was promoted as a play on words to be similar to having a guardian 'angel' to help you out of a tricky 
situation. 

The Coordinator had developed the 'Ask for Angela' poster as a way to engage with the Night time 
economy.  Initially drawing up a basic version which was taken to pubwatches across the county for 
feedback. Feedback was extremely positive from bar managers and their staff. The poster was taken 
to the Task and finish group for the #NoMore campaign where it was also approved. Lincolnshire 
Rape Crisis offered to get their design team to make the posters more attractive (original poster was 
basic using Word) and also offered to pay for design & printing in exchange they placed their 
charities' contact details on its base. 

#NoMore Awareness Week

The posters were sent out to pubwatches across the county in both PDF format and also print 
version with the coordinator attending Pubwatch meetings to promote and provide some basic 
guidance on how the scheme works. 

2 weeks after #NoMore Awareness week a Student tweeted the poster she had seen in a bar and it 
went viral initially being retweeted 31,000 times and liked 39,000 times.

Articles appeared in written media 

Page 163



                                                                                                                                                             Appendix K

UK Media Local Press International Press

 Cosmopolitan
 The Independent
 Metro
 The Mirror
 The Sunday Sun 
 Guardian
 BBC News Online
 Glamour Magazine
 BuzzFeed
 Marie Clare

 Lincolnshire Echo
 Lincolnite
 The Nottinghamshire post

 Sydney Herald
 New York Times 

Radio Interviews and coverage took place through the following streams

UK Radio Local Radio International Radio

 BBC Radio 5Live 
 BBC Radio 4 
 KissFM
 Capital FM
 Virgin Radio
 Christian Radio

 LincsFM
 BBC Lincolnshire
 Siren FM

 Australian radio station
 Canadian radio station 
 ABC News (New York)
 WGN Chicago Radio

Television coverage came from

UK Television Local Television International
 BBC 60 second news  BBC Look North 

 ITV Calendar
 Fox News

Areas requesting to use the Posters out of Lincolnshire

UK International

1. Metropolitan Police (use in London)
2. Essex
3. North Lincolnshire 
4. Nottinghamshire
5. Leicestershire
6. Derbyshire
7. Cheshire
8. Isle of Wight 
9. Cambridgeshire
10. Norfolk 

1. Australian Police
2. Adelaide, Australia
3. Alberta, Canada
4. Minneapolis U.S.
5. Austin, Texas
6. Argentina
7. Berlin

Page 164



                                                                                                                                                             Appendix K

11. Gloucestershire
12. Glasgow
13. Aberdeen
14. Liverpool
15. Ireland 
16. Maidstone, Kent
17. Winchester
18. Southampton

Celebrity Support: 

Actor Ashton Kutcher and George Takei from Star Trek show support

Areas known to have implemented the scheme: 

 London Met Police took the scheme on and have reported it has been used several times 
successfully. 

Page 165



                                                                                                                                                             Appendix K

 Lincoln Bars have fed back that the scheme has been used in at least 3 venues and the 
result has been positive in removing the potential victim from the premises safely without 
causing further distress. 

 Australia have implemented the scheme alongside the Alcohol Accord and have had some 
great support from alcohol corporates locally as well as the public and media. 

 Some towns and cities in America have also implemented the scheme either as it is or 
done a slight twist by using the 'Angel Shot' as the 'code word'

Feedback: 

Public feedback has been very positive on social media and by the staff at venues which have 
implemented the scheme. 

The only Negative feedback was that the poster was targeted at women implying men could not 
be victims, however it was soon explained that the posters were also implemented in male toilets 
too. 

Award Winning:

Hayley Child was nominated and won the Suzy Lamplugh Award for Safety Scheme of the year for 
Ask for Angela. 

Page 166



ALCOHOL
ABSTINENCE
MONITORING 
REQUIREMENTS
 

1

Appendix L

Introduction and Background

It is estimated that around 44% of all violent offences are committed by offenders 
who are under the influence of alcohol and the total cost of alcohol related crime is 
the UK is between £8 billion and £13billion per year. Within Humberside, 
Lincolnshire and North Yorkshire, alcohol is a significant factor in criminal offences. 
For example, in Grimsby, North East Lincolnshire in 25% of offences, alcohol was a 
contributing factor or feature in the offence. For offences that involve domestic 
abuse, this percentage is even higher, increasing to more than 40%. Reoffending 
rates and the frequency of reoffending is also greater by offenders who commit 
offences where alcohol plays a part. 

The Alcohol Abstinence Monitoring pilot seeks to better address the issue of alcohol 
related offending and reoffending, particularly in cases where there is violence, 
including domestic abuse. Rehabilitative interventions will be delivered to address 
issues relating to attitude, thinking and behaviour, alongside an Alcohol Abstinence 
Monitoring Requirement. This Requirement provides an enforced period of sobriety 
during which there is a greater opportunity to engage an individual in rehabilitative 
interventions with the aim of delivering improved outcomes and reductions in 
reoffending. 

What is an Alcohol Abstinence Monitoring Requirement? 

Provisions in the Legal Aid, Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders (LASPO) Act 
2012, now provide courts with a power to impose an Alcohol Abstinence Monitoring 
Requirement (AAMR) as part of this pilot.

This sentencing power allows the courts to impose a requirement for an offender to 
abstain from alcohol for a fixed time period of up to 120 days; and be regularly 
tested/monitored to ensure compliance; as part of a Community Order or a 
Suspended Sentence Order. Consent by the offender is not required for the 
imposition of an AAMR, but alcohol much be a feature or contributing factor in their 
offending behaviour.  

For the purposes of this pilot, we are asking sentencers to only use an AAMR as part 
of a multi requirement Order alongside a Rehabilitation Activity Requirement or an 
Accredited Programme Requirement, as opposed to being used as a standalone 
requirement, so that the added value of monitoring and control alongside 
rehabilitation can be fully tested and hopefully deliver the improved desired 
outcomes.

In this pilot, AUDIT will be used to assess an offender’s level of alcohol consumption. 
(This will be conducted at pre-sentence stage by the National Probation Service.) An 
AAMR is suitable for offenders who are assessed to consume alcohol to harmful 
(risky) or hazardous levels, but NOT for those who are dependent on Alcohol. 

Page 167



ALCOHOL
ABSTINENCE
MONITORING 
REQUIREMENTS
 

2

Appendix L

AUDIT Score Alcohol Risk Suitable Disposal:
0-7 Lower Risk Brief Advice and signposting for 

information
8-15 Increasing Risk Suitable for an AAMR with a Rehabilitation 

Activity Requirement or an Accredited 
Programme Requirement.

16-19 Higher Risk Suitable for an AAMR with a Rehabilitation 
Activity Requirement or an Accredited 
Programme Requirement.

20+ Possible Dependence Consider specialist assessment for 
Alcohol Treatment Requirement if 
available. They are NOT suitable for 
AAMR if dependant on alcohol. 

Pilot parameters

The Pilot will commence on 1st May 2017, and run for a period of two years. In order 
to limit the life of the pilot, the AAMR will not be available for sentencers to impose 
after 31st December 2018. Those already subject to an AAMR will continue to the 
end of their sentence requirement. 

The pilot will operate in three different areas, but the same operating model, and 
eligibility criteria will apply in each location. The Requirement can be imposed by 
both the Magistrates Court and the Crown Court in each of the locations. Offenders 
can only be eligible for an AAMR if they intend to reside in the pilot locations post 
sentence. The pilot sites and anticipated approximate annual volumes are:

 Grimsby in North East Lincolnshire – 120 AAMRs
 York in North Yorkshire – 96 AAMRs
 Boston, Skegness, Spalding, Louth in Lincolnshire – 74 AAMRs

In order to be considered for an Alcohol Abstinence Monitoring Requirement, 
offenders must appear in a Court (Magistrates or Crown Court) within the relevant 
area of the pilot and must reside in the pilot area. The Courts included in this pilot 
are:

York Magistrates Court York Crown Court
Grimsby Magistrates Court Grimsby Crown Court
Boston Magistrates Court Lincoln Crown Court
Lincoln Magistrates Court

Page 168



ALCOHOL
ABSTINENCE
MONITORING 
REQUIREMENTS
 

3

Appendix L

The pilot will only be available for adult (over 18) offenders. Legislative conditions 
need to be satisfied in order to impose an AAMR as part of a Community or 
Suspended Sentence Order, and unlike most other electronic monitoring 
requirements, offenders who are of no fixed abode can be deemed as suitable for 
this requirement (subject to them meeting all other eligibility criteria.) However, this 
would require the offender to attend an approved designated location a minimum 
once a day (i.e. Probation Office, or Police Station) to enable the monitoring device 
to connect to the base station to download the required data. 

The pilot is not limited by offence type, but alcohol must have been a feature in the 
offence for an AAMR to be imposed. The offence and offender must have also 
reached the seriousness threshold to impose a multi requirement Community Order 
or Suspended Sentence Order. 

Those with serious identified mental health or learning disabilities may not be 
suitable due to their cognitive functioning and ability to understand and comply with 
such a requirement. 

An independent evaluation of the pilot is being commissioned and the findings from 
the evaluation will be used to inform and improve the future use of Alcohol 
Abstinence Monitoring Requirements. 

Key aims and objectives of the pilot

The key aim of this pilot is to test whether the use of alcohol monitoring and an 
enforced period of sobriety, used alongside existing offender management 
rehabilitative interventions helps to deliver improved outcomes. Anticipated 
outcomes include a reduction in reoffending, a reduction in alcohol related offending 
and violent behaviour (including domestic abuse), reduced number of victims and 
repeat victims, improved offender engagement and compliance with rehabilitative 
interventions and improved health and wellbeing of the offender.

The aim of the pilot is also to help determine if this integrated approach of monitoring 
and control with rehabilitation has an improved outcome for specific cohorts. This 
includes, although is not exclusive to:

 Offenders with different levels of alcohol use (using AUDIT assessment)
 Offence types, including domestic abuse cases

In addition, we hope to identify whether the designed operating model provides and 
delivers added value as intended and what the costs and benefits of this are. There 
will be key focus on challenging and assessing unit costs of delivery against 
anticipated outcome savings. Within the model, we also hope to identify which critical 
component parts and elements have the greatest impact and what other external 
factors impact on the effectiveness of this throughout the offender journey. 

Page 169



ALCOHOL
ABSTINENCE
MONITORING 
REQUIREMENTS
 

4

Appendix L

This pilot will be carefully evaluated and help to inform future commissioning and 
improvements to the operating model.

The monitoring device and provider

Alcohol Monitoring Systems (AMS) is a vastly experienced company in the 
enforcement of Alcohol Abstinence and are based in the US. They are the 
manufacturer of transdermal alcohol monitoring equipment that will be used in the 
monitoring of AAMRs. The have also provided the hardware for the London Sobriety 
Tag Pilot where the technology has been piloted, tested and evaluated with excellent 
results. 

The role of AMS in this pilot is to provide the hardware – sobriety tags, base stations 
etc. and to monitor compliance of offenders who are made subject to AAMRs. The 
alcohol tags will transmit information to AMS, who will then interpret the data and 
provide analysis. Once the data analysis is completed, AMS will relay this 
information relating to compliance and non-compliance to HLNY CRC as the electric 
monitoring provider and field officers. The technology also monitors and reports the 
level of alcohol consumption where there has been a breach.

AMS will provide compliance reports (whether an offender is compliant or not) to 
HLNY CRC who will then attach these to the Case Management System ensure they 
are shared with the NPS where they are the Responsible Officer. If a failure to 
comply is contested by an offender on the basis of accuracy or reliability of the 
equipment or analysis, supporting evidence will be coordinated and delivered by 
AMS. AMS will coordinate the defence of the technology with the responsible parties, 
i.e. the Responsible Officer. 

Page 170



ALCOHOL
ABSTINENCE
MONITORING 
REQUIREMENTS
 

5

Appendix L

Considerations and suitability

 An AAMR can be attached to a Community Order or a Suspended Sentence 
Order.

 An AAMR can be imposed for up to 120 days. There is no minimum length.

 The AAMR provides monitoring and control, and the consumption of alcohol 
by the offender is an element or factor in their offending behaviour.

 For the purposes of this pilot – integrated rehabilitation and punishment, we 
would ask for an AAMR to be imposed as part of a multi requirement Order 
with either a Rehabilitation Activity Requirement or an Accredited Programme. 

 Domestic Abuse perpetrators are suitable to be sentenced to an AAMR, and 
there can also be provision made for those of no fixed abode – subject to 
them meeting the other requirement of the eligibility assessment. 

 An AMMR can be imposed as a penalty for Breach of a Community Order or 
Suspended Sentence Order providing they meet the eligibility criteria – this 
can be assessed by the National Probation Service and/or Community 
Rehabilitation Company and included in the Breach Report. 

Page 171



ALCOHOL
ABSTINENCE
MONITORING 
REQUIREMENTS
 

6

Appendix L

 The offender must reside in the pilot locations to be eligible to have an AAMR, 
and be sentenced in one of the pilot Courts.

 The National Probation Service through the completion of a pre-sentence 
report will be equipped to assess suitability for an AAMR and advise the 
courts on this.

 
 The offender must not be dependent on alcohol, and an AAMR should not be 

imposed alongside an Alcohol Treatment Requirement (where they are 
available). 

Rehabilitative Interventions

There are a range of rehabilitative interventions that are available to be delivered 
alongside an AAMR, that are specifically designed to address offending related 
behaviour.

These include Accredited Programmes:
 Breaking Free (Substance misuse programme)
 Drink Impaired Drinkers
 Enhanced Thinking Skills
 Building Better Relationships (domestic abuse)
 Resolve (violence)

And non-accredited interventions that can be delivered through a Rehabilitation 
Activity Requirement:

 Help (Domestic Abuse)
 Think Again (Hate Crime)
 Brief Alcohol Intervention

(Further information is available on all interventions)

Further Information

For further information, please contact the following:

Amy Gilbert
Head of Operations, Humberside, Lincolnshire and North Yorkshire Community 
Rehabilitation Company
Chair of AAMR Strategic Board
Amygilbert@interservefls.gse.gov.uk

Page 172

mailto:Amygilbert@interservefls.gse.gov.uk


ALCOHOL
ABSTINENCE
MONITORING 
REQUIREMENTS
 

7

Appendix L

07712416922

Wendy Hilton
Interchange Manager, Humberside, Lincolnshire and North Yorkshire Community 
Rehabilitation Company
Chair of Local Implementation Group – York
Wendyhilton@interservefls.gse.gov.uk
07720213626

Becky Bailey
Interchange Manager, Humberside, Lincolnshire and North Yorkshire Community 
Rehabilitation Company
Chair of Local Implementation Group – Grimsby
Beckybailey@interservefls.gse.gov.uk
07712416399

Matthew Morrissey
Interchange Manager, Humberside, Lincolnshire and North Yorkshire Community 
Rehabilitation Company
Chair of Local Implementation Group – Boston, Skegness, Louth and Spalding
Matthewmorrissey@interservefls.gse.gov.uk
07753446302

Page 173

mailto:Wendyhilton@interservefls.gse.gov.uk
mailto:Beckybailey@interservefls.gse.gov.uk
mailto:Matthewmorrissey@interservefls.gse.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix M

File location: [insert IMP link]

LCSP Survey Results 2016

Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership 

This report is produced by the Safer Communities 
Service, Lincolnshire County Council on behalf of the 
Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership.

Author(s) Sammie Framp – Community Safety Analyst

Requesting Officer(s) Claire Seabourne – Partnership & Commissioning 
Manager

Date & Version 13th January 2017 – Updated 24th February 2017

Page 175



Page 1 of 12

Introduction & key findings

The Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership (LCSP) survey was live for thirteen weeks 
from 15th August 2016 to 11th November 2016. The survey was available online at the LCSP 
website and in paper form from district council offices. The survey was promoted by 
Community Safety Officers within each district in various ways and within LCSP partner 
agencies. The survey has previously been conducted by the East Lincolnshire Community 
Safety Partnership (ELCSP) covering Boston, South Holland and East Lindsey. Comparison 
with surveys conducted in previous years has not been made due to the expansion of the 
survey to include all Lincolnshire districts1. 

Key findings

 858 people responded to the survey, most surveys were completed online. 51% of 
respondents are female, 48% are male. The largest proportion of surveys were received 
from people in the 55-64 age group (22.5%). 95% of respondents identified as being 
white British. 

 Selecting from a list of anti-social behaviour issues, the top three problems identified by 
respondents are rubbish and litter lying around (42%), people being drunk or rowdy in 
public places (32%) and people using or dealing drugs (30%).

 Selecting from a list of community safety issues, the largest proportion of respondents 
are worried about being a victim of burglary (31%) and anti-social behaviour (30%). 19% 
of respondents are not worried about being a victim of anything in their local area.

  33% of respondents stated the feel less safe than they did 12 months ago, the majority 
(56%) feel about the same as they did 12 months ago. South Holland is the only area 
where most respondents said they feel less safe than they did 12 months ago (52%) 
rather than feeling the same.

 In the most part, respondents feel that levels of crime and anti-social behaviour have 
stayed about the same in the last year (crime = 46%, ASB = 42%). Very few respondents 
feel that levels have gone down.

 Opinion is relatively split on whether people from different backgrounds get on well 
together in their local area, 28% tend to agree where 25% nether agree nor disagree. 
Respondents in Boston and South Holland particularly disagree with the statement. In 
Boston 47% tend to or strongly disagree, in South Holland, 52% tend to or strongly 
disagree.

 41% of people feel that drinking in public places is an issue in their local area, the 
majority of which (62%) feel that the issue is both day and night. Respondents in Boston 
and South Holland are most concerned about drinking in public places.

 A slightly larger proportion of respondents tend to or strongly disagree (36%) that the 
police and other public services are successfully dealing with crime and anti-social 
behaviour than those that tend to or strongly agree (32%).

 The most common suggestions for what the partnership should focus on were ASB, 
alcohol and speeding/road safety.

1 Data tables are available at district level should comparison with previous years be desired.

Page 176



Page 2 of 12

Recommendations

Despite limitations (see end), the current survey provides a useful indication of how 
Lincolnshire's population feels about their safety and issues affecting their communities. The 
following recommendations are based on the most prominent results of the survey.

Recommendation 1: The current survey results highlight that anti-social behaviour is still a 
prominent issue for most residents. Partnership focus and response to anti-social behaviour 
is strong however most of the issues raised indicate a concern about lower level anti-social 
behaviour which might not be at the forefront of multi-agency response. Thought may be 
given to how medium and standard risk anti-social behaviour incidents are managed as well 
as work relating to perception of certain behaviours (i.e. youths hanging around). The Anti-
Social Behaviour Strategic Management Board would be best placed to address this. 

Recommendation has been passed to the Chair of the ASB SMB to action if appropriate.

Recommendation 2: Burglary is a concern for a lot of respondents. At present there is no 
multi-agency focus on burglary from the LCSP. In the short term, with the proposed multi-
agency crime prevention and community safety plan from the Police and Crime 
Commissioner in mind, it is recommended that the current activity or response of individual 
partners in relation to burglary (e.g. neighbourhood watch schemes) is collated and in turn 
communicated to the public. The aim would be to reinforce and help to reassure the public of 
agency response. Longer term, an assessment of the current levels of burglary reported to 
the police will be considered in the next LCSP Strategic Assessment 2018-2021 which is 
due to be conducted this year. The results of this assessment will indicate if and how the 
partnership can respond to these concerns.

LCSP rejected this recommendation.

Recommendation 3: Although the analysis of the survey responses cannot identify 
particular areas that are of concern to residents, there is a general anxiety relating to 
speeding and road safety. The Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership should be sighted and 
may wish to address and respond to these concerns. At present, the survey does not have 
any focus on road safety; therefore a focus area in the next survey may provide better detail 
relating to the extent of concerns.

Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership attended LCSP and are sighted on this 
recommendation.

Recommendation 4: Community cohesion and the presence of foreign nationals in Boston 
and South Holland have been identified as an issue for respondents to this survey. Some of 
the comments made are alarming. Although much attention has already been given to how 
these issues are managed, consideration to if and how the LCSP respond is required.

Recommendation has been passed to the Chair of the ASB SMB to action if appropriate.

Page 177



Page 3 of 12

Recommendation 5: The Community Safety Team at Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) 
plan to address the limitations of the current survey which are identified at the end of this 
document, seeking input from the LCSP where appropriate. As part of addressing the 
limitations of the current survey, an evaluation of promotion activity undertaken by partner 
agencies is suggested. 

LCSP agreed this recommendation and it will be addressed prior to the next survey release.

Recommendation 6: Feedback to the public relating to the survey is important. The LCSP 
should consider how the results of the survey, key messages and consequent activity are 
communicated to the public. A potential communication plan is being drafted by the 
Community Safety Team (LCC) and will be presented to the LCSP for consideration.

Recommendation agreed.

Page 178



Page 4 of 12

Overview & demographics

858 people responded to the survey, 69% responded online whilst 31% responded via paper 
copy. Although the number of surveys returned is similar to that of previous years2, more 
would have been expected given the expansion to include the other four districts in 
Lincolnshire. The number of respondents is not particularly representative of the population 
when broken down by district. Overall, 0.1% of the population of Lincolnshire responded.
 

The majority of respondents reside in the east of the county, particularly East Lindsey. 1% 
(n=7) of respondents selected 'other' when asked which borough, city or district they live in. 
These respondents have been included in the analysis as all but one identified that they 
worked in Lincolnshire and therefore are appropriate to consider in terms of community 
safety.

District
Population Over 16 
(Mid-2015) # Respondents

Responses per 
1,000 population

Lincolnshire 611,454 858 1.4
East Lindsey 117011 247 2.1
Boston Borough 54627 152 2.8
South Holland 75854 145 1.9
North Kesteven 92467 84 0.9
West Lindsey 76972 82 1.1
Lincoln City 80888 72 0.9
South Kesteven 113635 62 0.5
Other - 7 -
Not answered - 7 -

1.4 people per 1,000 population (16+) of Lincolnshire responded to the survey. Using this as 
a baseline; residents in East Lindsey and Boston are overrepresented in the survey 
responses, whilst residents in North Kesteven, South Kesteven and Lincoln City are 
significantly underrepresented.

2 Previously the survey was conducted by East Lincolnshire CSP for the three eastern districts – East Lindsey, 
Boston and South Holland. In 2015 there were 856 surveys completed, in 2014 there were 961.

Page 179



Page 5 of 12

Responses were received from across most age ranges, with the largest proportion being 
those aged 55-64 (22%, n=193). 

51% of respondents are female, 48% are male and the remaining 1% either identified as 
Transgender or did not answer. 

Age 
group*

# 
Responses 
from 
female 
residents

Responses 
per 1,000 
female 
population 
(16+)

# 
Responses 
from male 
residents

Responses 
per 1,000 
male 
population 
(16+)

Total 
responses

Total per 
1,000 
population 
(16+)

16-24 60 1.6 56 1.4 116 1.5
25-34 43 1.0 30 0.7 73 0.9
35-44 75 1.8 26 0.6 101 1.2
45-54 99 1.8 67 1.3 167 1.6
55-64 93 1.9 100 2.2 193 2.0
65-74 51 1.1 98 2.1 149 1.6
75-84 14 0.5 26 1.1 42 0.8
85+ <5 <0.5 <5 <0.5 6 0.3

*Those respondents who did not answer age or gender questions have been excluded from this table.

Using the baseline of 1.4 respondents per 1,000 population (16+) of Lincolnshire there are 
specific groups which are underrepresented in the survey responses.

Based on gender alone, both the male and female population of Lincolnshire are equally 
represented in the survey. When broken down by age, males aged between 25 and 44 are 
underrepresented where males aged 55 to 74 are overrepresented. Distribution of 
responses from the female population is relatively even across all age groups excluding 
those aged 75-84 who are underrepresented in the survey responses. Both male and female 
residents over the age of 85 are underrepresented. 

95% identified as being White British. 2% did not answer, 2% identified as mixed ethnicity 
and the remaining 1% included various ethnicities including Asian, Chinese and Black. 

Page 180



Page 6 of 12

Perceptions of crime and anti-social behaviour

How much of a problem do you think each of the following are in your local area (by 
local area we mean the area within 15-20 minutes walking distances from your home)?
 Noisy neighbours or loud parties
 Teenagers hanging around the streets
 Rubbish and litter lying around
 Vandalism, graffiti and damage to property or vehicles
 People using or dealing drugs
 People being drunk or rowdy in public places
 Abandoned or burnt-out cars

Rubbish and litter lying around; people being drunk or rowdy in public places and people 
using or dealing drugs are identified as the main problems for the largest proportion of 
respondents. 

42% of respondents feel that rubbish and litter lying around is either a very or fairly big 
problem however 36% of respondents feel that rubbish and litter lying around is not a very 
big problem. Of those who feel rubbish and litter lying around is a very or fairly big problem, 
most reside in Boston (57% of respondents who live in Boston answered very or fairly big 
problem) and South Holland (61% of respondents who live in South Holland answered very 
or fairly big problem).

Most find that people being drunk or rowdy in public places is either not a very big problem 
(27%) or not a problem at all (35%) however 32% find that it is a very or fairly big problem. 
Again, South Holland and Boston have the largest proportion of respondents who feel 
people being drunk or rowdy in public places is a very or fairly big problem (59% and 55% 
respectively). 35% of respondents in Lincoln City also feel that people being drunk or rowdy 
in public places is a very or fairly big issue.

30% of respondents feel that people using or dealing drugs in their area a very or fairly big 
problem. Boston and South Holland have the largest proportion of respondents who feel 
people using or dealing drugs is a very or fairly big problem in their area (43% and 38% 

Page 181



Page 7 of 12

respectively). 29% of respondents who live in East Lindsey also feel that people using or 
dealing drugs is a very or fairly big problem in their area.

The table below shows the age ranges who find the top three issues most problematic:

Age range

Issue 16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75-84 85+

Not 
answ
ered

Rubbish and 
litter lying 
around 44% 44% 37% 36% 47% 46% 33% 17% 27%
People being 
drunk or rowdy 
in public places 41% 49% 32% 31% 31% 30% 12% 0% 9%

People using or 
dealing drugs 42% 34% 36% 28% 30% 23% 12% 0% 18%

Table: Respondents answering very or fairly big problem as a % of all respondents in each age range.

Most respondents feel that noisy neighbours or loud parties were either not a problem at all 
(52%) or not a very big problem (29%).

Teenagers hanging around on the streets are thought to be a fairly big problem to 16% of 
respondents. The majority however feel that this is either not a very big problem (35%) or not 
a problem at all (39%). 

Vandalism, graffiti and damage to property or vehicles is not a very big problem or no 
problem at all to 71% of respondents, 25% do feel that it is a very or fairly big problem in 
their area. 40% of respondents living in South Holland feel that vandalism, graffiti and 
damage to property or vehicles is a very or fairly big problem in their area.

Abandoned or burnt-out cars are not a problem at all to the majority of respondents (66%), 
4% find that abandoned or burnt-out cars are a very or fairly big problem.

What, if anything, are you most worried about being a victim of in your local area?

Selection: Anti-Social Behaviour, Arson, Burglary, Cyber Crime, Domestic Abuse, 
Fraud/Forgery, Hate Crime, Racial Attacks/Abuse, Robbery (Mugging), Sexual 
Offences, Vehicle Crime, Violent Crime (e.g. assault), None – I'm not worried, Other – 
please specify 

The largest proportion of respondents are worried about being a victim of burglary (31%) or 
anti-social behaviour (30%). The next largest proportion of respondents are not worried 
about being a victim of anything in their local area (19%). 

Originally, 111 (13%) respondents selected 'Other' however 92 of those respondents 
specified something already listed. For the purpose of this analysis those responses have 
been added to the relevant pre-existing selection. The remaining 19 respondents who 
selected 'other' had varying concerns including rural crime and terrorist attacks, the only 
'other' concern raised by more than 3 respondents is speeding (n=9).

No one area has a particular concern other than anti-social behaviour or burglary. 

Page 182



Page 8 of 12

Respondents aged 45-54 and 55-64 are most worried about being a victim of burglary than 
any other age group; 37% of respondents in both age groups are concerned about burglary.

Respondents aged 25-34 are most worried about being a victim of anti-social behaviour. 
42% of respondents in the 25-34 age group are concerned about being a victim of anti-social 
behaviour.

Do you feel more or less safe in your local area than you felt 12 months ago?

The majority of respondents feel about the same in terms of safety as they did 12 months 
ago (56%). However 33% stated they feel less safe than they did 12 months ago. 

South Holland is the only area where most respondents said they feel less safe than they did 
12 months ago (52%) rather than feeling the same. Aside from South Holland, all other 
areas have a clear majority who feel about the same as they did 12 months ago but there is 
still a relatively large proportion who feel less safe.

District I feel safer
I feel about 
the same

I feel less 
safe

I am new 
to the area

Not 
answered

Boston Borough 4% 51% 43% 1% 1%
East Lindsey 11% 62% 21% 6% 1%
Lincoln City 4% 53% 39% 1% 3%
North Kesteven 5% 71% 19% 4% 1%
South Holland 6% 41% 52% 0% 2%
South Kesteven 2% 61% 31% 2% 5%
West Lindsey 2% 61% 32% 4% 1%
Other 29% 57% 14% 0% 0%
Not answered 0% 57% 0% 0% 43%
Total 6% 56% 33% 3% 2%

The age groups with the largest proportion of respondents who said they feel less safe are 
25-34 (47%), 45-54 (42%) and 55-64 (40%).

Page 183



Page 9 of 12

For those who say they feel about the same in terms of safety as they did 12 months ago, 
the question does not address whether the respondent felt safe or unsafe 12 months ago.

Do you think that levels of crime and anti-social behaviour have gone up or down in 
the last year?

In the most part, respondents feel that levels of crime and anti-social behaviour have stayed 
about the same in the last year. Very few respondents feel that crime or anti-social 
behaviour has gone down since last year (5% and 6% respectively). 

Although the largest proportion of respondents across all areas feel that levels of crime have 
stayed about the same in the last year, respondents in some areas feel levels have gone up 
a lot. In Boston, 28% of respondents feel that crime levels have gone up a lot in the last 12 
months, 30% of respondents in South Holland also feel that crime levels have gone up a lot 
in the last 12 months.

46% of respondents in South Holland feel that levels of anti-social behaviour have gone up a 
lot in the last 12 months, more than those who felt levels had stayed the same or decreased; 
31% feel that levels have increased a little. 32% of respondents in Boston also feel that anti-
social behaviour levels have gone up a lot in the last 12 months, a slightly larger proportion 
than those who feel levels have stayed about the same (30%).

To what extent do you agree or disagree that your local area is a place where people 
from different backgrounds get on well together?

Opinion is relatively split on whether people from different backgrounds get on well together, 
28% tend to agree that their local area is a place where people from different backgrounds 
get on well together while 25% neither agree nor disagree.

The older age groups are more likely to agree that people from different backgrounds get on 
well together. 57% of respondents aged 75-84 tend to or strongly agree compared to 34% of 
16-24 year old respondents who tend to agree. The age groups most likely to disagree that 
people from different backgrounds get on well together are those aged 25-34 and 35-44 
where 36% and 35% of respondents in each age group disagree. Only 14% of respondents 
aged 75-84 disagree. 

Opinion varies depending on area; there are a larger proportion of respondents in Boston 
and South Holland that tend to or strongly disagree that people from different backgrounds 

Page 184



Page 10 of 12

get on well together. In Boston, 22% strongly disagree and 25% tend to disagree compared 
to 21% who tend to agree. In South Holland the proportion is larger with 27% tending to 
disagree and 25% strongly disagreeing compared to 19% who tend to agree.

Do you feel that people drinking in public places is an issue in your local area?

The majority of respondents do not feel that people drinking in public places is an issue in 
their local area (58%). Of the 41% that do feel that people drinking in public places is an 
issue in their local area, 62% feel that the issue is both day and night. 

People drinking in public places is an issue mostly in Boston where 70% of respondents 
answered 'yes'. In South Holland 66% of respondents feel people drinking in public places is 
an issue. In both Boston and South Holland, most respondents feel that people drinking in 
public places is an issue at both day and night time.

District
% of Respondents who feel people 

drinking in public places is an issue 
Boston Borough 70%
South Holland 66%
Lincoln City 39%
East Lindsey 33%
South Kesteven 31%
West Lindsey 17%
North Kesteven 10%

Page 185



Page 11 of 12

The Police and other local public services

How much would you agree or disagree that the Police and other local public services 
are successfully dealing with crime and anti-social behaviour?

A slightly larger proportion of respondents tend to or strongly disagree (36%) that the police 
and other local public services are successfully dealing with crime and anti-social behaviour 
than those that tend to or strongly agree (32%).

A larger proportion of respondents in East Lindsey, Lincoln and North Kesteven tend to 
agree that the police and other local public services are successfully dealing with crime and 
anti-social behaviour; where a larger proportion of respondents in South Holland and West 
Lindsey tend to disagree.  In South Holland 27% of respondents also strongly disagree, 
considerably more than in any other area. Respondents in Boston and South Kesteven 
neither agree nor disagree with the statement although in South Kesteven the margin was 
small between those who neither agree nor disagree and those that tend to disagree.

District
Strongly 

agree
Tend to 

agree
Tend to 

disagree
Strongly 
disagree

Neither 
agree 

nor 
disagree

Don't 
know & 

no 
answer

Boston Borough 6% 20% 21% 20% 26% 7%
East Lindsey 9% 32% 13% 11% 19% 15%
Lincoln City 10% 24% 22% 15% 18% 11%
North Kesteven 12% 38% 19% 5% 14% 12%
South Holland 6% 13% 31% 27% 19% 4%
South Kesteven 6% 19% 26% 15% 27% 7%
West Lindsey 9% 20% 29% 11% 22% 9%

What issues do you think the partnership should focus on in your local area?

653 (76%) people made comment regarding what issues the partnership should focus on. 
Comments were received by most people in most areas, over 75% of people in all areas 
except East Lindsey (67%) made comment about what the partnership should focus on. 

Of the 76% that made comment, nearly 1,000 suggestions were made (one person can 
suggest more than one focus area). The most common suggestions were ASB, Alcohol and 
Speeding/Road Safety. Police visibility and drugs were not far behind. Burglary and the 
requirement for more resources and effectiveness were next most common suggestions.

Suggestion
# of People 
suggesting

% of all comments 
made

ASB 191 21%
Alcohol 166 18%
Speeding/Road Safety 136 15%
Police visibility 81 9%
Drugs 81 9%
Burglary 47 5%

Page 186



Page 12 of 12

Resources and effectiveness3 47 5%
Damage & vandalism 23 3%
Rural crime 22 2%
Hate crime/community cohesion/foreign 
nationals4 31 3%
Violence (incl. domestic abuse and 
sexual violence) 17 2%
Street Lights 11 1%
Other5 51 6%

Respondents who feel the partnership should focus on anti-social behaviour mostly 
commented on general anti-social behaviour and did not mention specific activity. Teenagers 
hanging around, street drinking and litter were however mentioned by multiple people 
(between 30 and 50 respondents per behaviour).

Lincoln and North Kesteven have the largest proportion of respondents who feel the 
partnership should focus on anti-social behaviour (38% and 30% respectively). 

Boston and South Holland have the largest proportion of respondents who feel the 
partnership should focus on alcohol (35% and 46% respectively).

North Kesteven and South Kesteven have the largest proportion of respondents who feel the 
partnership should focus on speeding and road safety. 

3 Comments were received which relate to the police and local authorities requiring more resources to 
respond to issues including increasing number of police officers, retaining PCSOs and improving 
response to calls.
4 A number of people used the comments to express negative opinion relating to foreign nationals and 
expressed concerns relating to community cohesion
5 Other includes a selection of comments and suggestions which don’t fit into any other category and 
where the count is not enough for a category on their own

Page 187



Page 13 of 12

Limitations

There are limitations to the current format of the survey and how it is conducted. Three main 
limitations and what could be done to mitigate these are as follows:

 Response levels are similar to previous years when the ELCSP conducted the survey 
however the response levels are not as high has would be expected considering the 
expansion to include the whole of Lincolnshire. The number of responses does not 
provide a wholly representative sample of the population of each district of Lincolnshire 
which makes the sample less reliable. Greater promotion of the survey which is 
structured more evenly across each district and within each agency would improve 
responses.

 Although the survey asks which town or village respondents live in, this is not routinely or 
uniformly completed and therefore actual analysis of this is not possible. Improving area 
identification would make analysis of the survey results more meaningful. For example if 
post codes were provided for each response more targeted analysis and activity could 
be conducted; recognising that anonymity would need to be considered.

 The survey at present is heavily weighted towards anti-social behaviour; the way in 
which questions are formed could be considered leading. Review of the questions and 
consideration of the desired outcomes of the survey would improve results and the ability 
of the partnership to respond.

Page 188



Appendix N

P
age 189



P
age 190



P
age 191



P
age 192



P
age 193



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix O

Activate

Activate is an initiative designed to 
encourage young people aged 8-19 to have 
a go at a variety of positive activities, both 
sports and arts. The aim is to move them 
away from anti-social behaviour and become 
more active. The project has been running 
since 2013. All events are free to attend and 
take part in.

The family fun events were organised by 
South Holland District Council’s 
Communities Team and took place every 
Wednesday during August.

Activities available included:

 Mobile Climbing Wall
 Free Bound Assault Course
 Arts and Crafts 
 Garden  and Traditional Games
 Rowing Machines
 Football
 Aerial rig / static spinning bike

In addition, the Communities team and 1Life 
had a stall promoting health and well-being 
and community safety messages.

Corporate Priority

The Project

To develop safer, stronger, 
healthier and more 
independent communities 
whilst protecting the most 
vulnerable.

The Police, PCSOs and Positive Futures 
attended events as an opportunity to talk to 
communities, breaking down barriers and 
educating young people.

In 2017, Activate visited the following rural 
communities:

 Spalding, Monks  House playing field
 Gedney Drove End, Walker memorial 

park
 Crowland, Snowden pavilion
 Sutton Bridge, Memorial park
 Cowbit, Playing field

Most events saw sunshine, however rain on a 
couple of incidences did not deter the young 
people from participating.

Page 195



Appendix O

Activate

The Challenge 

The Outcomes

One of the biggest challenges in delivering 
this project was promoting each event to the 
target audience within each community as 
many of the events take place in small rurally 
isolated communities.  Effective partnerships  
and sharing of  resources can help ensure 
families know  about the event, come along 
and get involved on the day. This is where 
effective partnerships are essential enabling 
the sharing of resources. The following 
methods are used to help publicise events:

 Community activists e.g. Parish 
Council or the event site owner 

 Youth clubs in the area were given 
leaflets  and  posters to display

 Posters/ leaflets in local shops, village 
halls, schools and children’s centres

 Adverts in the local paper
 Council website
 An advert in the Summer Fun 2017 

brochure
 Social media (Twitter and Facebook)
 PCSOs were briefed to spread the 

word in the local community
 Word of  mouth

Events have become real community and family 
activities with a lot of families attending, bringing 
a picnic and staying for the whole day. Some 
families came to every venue.

The most successful events have been those 
run in partnership with the community. E.g. 
Cowbit mother and toddler group used the event 
as a fundraising and promotional opportunity.

Social media is becoming more popular as a 
way of promoting events to families and young 
people.

 “We had a great time! Thank you so much for 
bringing Activate to Cowbit! Everyone we spoke 
to thoroughly enjoyed the events and activities 
on offer. Shame the weather wasn't the best. 
Thank you once again and we hope we can 
host another event again in the future” (Cowbit 
mother and toddler group).

 “A big thank you to the organisers of Activate 
events, you have kept my kids out of  trouble” 
(Parent).

 5 Activate days and 668 people 
engaged

Page 196



Appendix PArrests By Camera Zone/Scheme
01/10/2017  
00:00:00

to01/04/2017  
00:00:00

Holbeach
Close Date & TimeDate & Time Call Source No ArrestsCategoryIncident 

Number
 17,396 25/05/2017  20:04:00  125/05/2017  20:25:00 Police - Radio Wanted Person
 17,944 28/06/2017  01:22:00  128/06/2017  02:04:23 Police - Radio Criminal Damage

Total No. of Arrests in zone Holbeach: 2 

Spalding
Close Date & TimeDate & Time Call Source No ArrestsCategoryIncident 

Number
 16,933 22/04/2017  04:04:00  222/04/2017  07:32:51 Police - Radio Public Order / Disturba
 17,132 05/05/2017  20:59:00  105/05/2017  21:09:11 Police - Radio Misc
 17,163 09/05/2017  04:30:00  209/05/2017  05:04:57 Police - Radio Public Order / Disturba
 17,235 15/05/2017  12:50:00  315/05/2017  13:17:28 Shopwatch Theft - Shoplifting / Re
 17,680 11/06/2017  23:19:00  112/06/2017  01:13:51 Police - Radio Missing Person / Conce
 17,814 19/06/2017  14:11:00  119/06/2017  14:44:40 Police - Radio Traffic - Drink Driving
 17,956 29/06/2017  16:29:00  129/06/2017  16:55:00 Shopwatch Theft - Shoplifting / Re
 18,359 25/07/2017  08:04:00  125/07/2017  08:32:21 Police - Radio Theft - Shoplifting / Re
 19,282 30/09/2017  01:38:00  230/09/2017  02:43:38 Pubwatch Drink Offence - Other

Total No. of Arrests in zone Spalding: 14 

Page 197



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix Q

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone

Page 1 of 8

01/10/2017  
00:00:00

to01/04/2017  
00:00:00

Page 199



Appendix QIncidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2017  
00:00:00

to01/04/2017  
00:00:00

Category Summary
Zone: Crowland

No. of IncidentsCategory Name Sub Category Name
Anti-Social Behaviour  1
Burglary  1
Public Order / Disturbance  1Assault
Suspicious Activity  2
Theft - Shoplifting / Retail  1

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Crowland:  6

Zone: Holbeach
No. of IncidentsCategory Name Sub Category Name

Alarm Activation  1
Anti-Social Behaviour  2
Burglary  1
Criminal Damage  1
Drink Offence - Other  2
Missing Person / Concern for 
Welfare

 3

Theft - Shoplifting / Retail  2
Traffic - Other  1
Wanted Person  1

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:  14

Zone: Spalding
No. of IncidentsCategory Name Sub Category Name

Alarm Activation  1
Anti-Social Behaviour  8
Burglary  2
Criminal Damage  5
Domestic Disturbance  1
Drink Offence - Other  4
Drugs*  2
Fire  1
Littering / Dog Fouling  1
Misc  5
Missing Person / Concern for 
Welfare

 6

Public Order / Disturbance  11
Sexual  1
Suspicious Activity  1
Theft - of Cycle  1
Theft - Other  1
Theft - Shoplifting / Retail  14 Page 2 of 8

Page 200



Appendix QIncidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2017  
00:00:00

to01/04/2017  
00:00:00Traffic - Drink Driving  2

Traffic - Other  5
Weapons*  2

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:  74

Total No. of Incidents :  94

Page 3 of 805/10/201716:34:03

Page 201



Appendix QIncidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2017  
00:00:00

to01/04/2017  
00:00:00

Page 4 of 805/10/201716:34:03

Page 202



Appendix QIncidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2017  
00:00:00

to01/04/2017  
00:00:00Call Source Summary

Zone: Crowland
No. of IncidentsCall Source

 1Operator Generated
 5Police - Radio

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Crowland:  6

Zone: Holbeach
No. of IncidentsCall Source

 2Police - Phone
 10Police - Radio
 2Shopwatch

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:  14

Zone: Spalding
No. of IncidentsCall Source

 10Operator Generated
 1Police
 4Police - Phone

 43Police - Radio
 3Pubwatch
 2Security / other

 11Shopwatch

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:  74

Total No. of Incidents :  94

Page 5 of 805/10/201716:34:03

Page 203



Appendix QIncidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2017  
00:00:00

to01/04/2017  
00:00:00

Page 6 of 805/10/201716:34:03

Page 204



Appendix QIncidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2017  
00:00:00

to01/04/2017  
00:00:00Camera Summary

Zone: Crowland
No. of IncidentsCamera Name Camera Location

 3SHDC 218 South Street Crowland
 6SHDC 219 West Street Crowland

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Crowland:  6

Zone: Holbeach
No. of IncidentsCamera Name Camera Location

 13SHDC 220 High Street Holbeach
 12SHDC 221 High Street Holbeach
 11SHDC 222 Station Road Holbeach
 10SHDC 224 High Street Holbeach

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:  14

Zone: Spalding
No. of IncidentsCamera Name Camera Location

 8SHDC 201 Bridge Street
 6SHDC 202 Broad Street

 16SHDC 203 Market Place
 27SHDC 204 Hall Place
 18SHDC 205 Sheep Market
 19SHDC 206 Red Lion Street
 21SHDC 207 New Road
 10SHDC 208 Herring Lane
 12SHDC 209 Swan Street
 17SHDC 210 Winfrey Avenue
 11SHDC 211 Westlode Street
 17SHDC 212 Winsover Road
 3SHDC 214 The Crescent
 1SHDC 215 Vine Street
 1SHDC 217 The Vista
 1SHDC 226 Castle Sports Complex
 2SHDC 227 Castle Sports Complex
 2SHDC 228 Castle Sports Complex

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:  74

Total No. of Incidents :  94

Page 7 of 805/10/201716:34:03

Page 205



Appendix QIncidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2017  
00:00:00

to01/04/2017  
00:00:00

Page 8 of 805/10/201716:34:03

Page 206



SHDC CCTV Performance Data 17/18

Month Arrests Evidence Incidents

Q1

April 2 1 9

May 7 0 23

June 4 4 22

Q.Total 13 5 54

Q2

July 1 7 8

August 0 10 20

September 2 7 12

Q.Total 3 24 40

Q3

October

November

December

Q.Total 0 0 0

Q4

January

February

March

Q.Total 0 0 0

Year Total 16 29 94

Page 207



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix S

P
age 209



T
his page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in the 
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 5 September 
2017 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

B Alcock (Chairman)
M D Booth (Vice-Chairman)

G R Aley
J R Astill
C J T H Brewis
T A Carter

G K Dark
P C Foyster
R Grocock
J L King

J D McLean
A M Newton
M D Seymour
A C Tennant

In Attendance:   The Executive Manager – Governance, the Interim Corporate 
Contracts and Procurement Manager,  the Senior Business Intelligence Officer and 
the Business Intelligence Officer. 

Action By
9 MINUTES 

AGREED:

The minutes of the Performance Monitoring Panel meeting held 
on 4 July 2017were signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

10 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

With reference to agenda item 9 – Quarter 1 2017-18 
Performance Overview Report - Councillor Newton informed the 
Panel that although she did not have a Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest, in the interests of transparency she wished it to be 
recorded that she was a Director of Compass Point Business 
Services.  

11 QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6 

There were no questions asked under Standing Order 6. 

12 TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

Re-Letting of Void Properties Task Group

Consideration was given to a report outlining the response of the 
Cabinet to the recommendations from the Final Report of the Re-
Letting of Void Properties Task Group.

The Chairman of the Task Group, Councillor G Aley, had 
attended the meeting of the Cabinet on 25 July 2017 and had 
presented the Final Report which contained the recommendations 
of the Task Group, as agreed by the Performance Monitoring 

Page 211

Agenda Item 5



- 2 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 5 
September 2017

Panel on 16 May 2017.

All of the Task Group’s recommendations had been approved by 
the Cabinet, to be taken forward and fed into the Place Review.

DECISION:

a) That the responses of the Cabinet to the recommendations of 
the Panel be noted: and

b) That the Panel receive an update on progress at the meeting 
on 7th November 2017.  

13 ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL. 

There were no items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 

14 KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 25 
August 2017.

Councillors referred to the proposed decision on ‘Update on the 
Garden Waste Pilot’ and queried why was taking so long to report 
back on what had seemed to be a very successful pilot.  The date 
had been put back by several months.  It was suggested that a 
comments column be added to the Key Decision Plan which could 
record any changes in date. The Executive Manager - 
Governance agreed to raise this issue with the service manager 
and let the members know.

AGREED:

1. That the Key Decision Plan issued on 25 August 2017 be 
noted and;

2. That the Executive Manager -  Governance to update 
members on timescales for reporting on the Garden Waste 
Pilot. 

MS 

15 CONTRACTS 

The newly appointed Interim Corporate Contracts and 
Procurement Manager provided the Panel with an update on the 
establishment of the new Contracts Team, the team’s objectives 
and its approach to contract information, contracts register and 
opportunities for efficiency.  During the discussion with members 
the following key points emerged: 

Page 212



- 3 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 5 
September 2017

 The Council had approved a structure of a team of 5 
officers and one post had already been filled. It was a 
priority to recruit as soon as possible. 

 Existing contracts would be examined to make sure that 
they were compliant and value for money.  Contracts about 
to expire would also be identified. The contracts register 
was out of date and a plan of action to rectify this by the 
end of October 2017 would be agreed.  The risk of 
challenge in the meantime was low. A holding message 
would be placed on the Council’s website and Councillors 
notified by email of any problems encountered.

 The requirement to list spending over £500 on the 
Council’s website was not always adhered to and this 
would be rectified. 

 There was a target to make saving totalling £205,000 over 
5 years for the two Councils.  This would be achieved 
through better contract management. There would be 
safeguards in place to ensure that South Holland District 
Council received its share of the savings.

 It was recognised that savings in contract renewals were 
easily measured; savings in new contracts would be 
measured by benchmarking from various sources. 
Discussions would be had with Head of Finances on how 
savings would be defined and clearly reported. A research 
consultant would be providing guidance.

 The key to a good contract was an accurate specification 
and ensuring adherence of contract standing orders.

 ‘Approved lists’ would not be used as they can encourage 
a less competitive environment.  Framework agreements 
were more effective.

 There was no cost associated with placing an advert in the 
European Journal, but there were overhead costs 
associated with the work. If the Council was not compliant 
then it could risk a challenge and subsequent costs. 

AGREED:

That the presentation by the Interim Corporate Contracts and 
Procurement Manager be noted. 

16 QUARTER 1 2017-18 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Governance which provided an update on Council 
performance for the period 1 April 2017 to 30 June 2017. Areas 
where performance had improved since the previous period were 
brought to members’ attention, as were areas of concern where 

CP 

Page 213



- 4 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 5 
September 2017

performance was below expected levels or was considered to be 
worsening.

Quarter 1 saw performance improve in comparison to Quarter 4.  
Performance was rated as moderate with 11 indicators being 
green (42%) which indicated good performance.  There were 3 
(12%) amber indicators and 10 red indicators (38%), indicating 
lower than expected performance.  There were 6 indicators which 
were classified as data only, which meant that they were 
monitored without requiring a target.

In discussing the report the following key points emerged:

 The performance of CPBS’ Revenues and Benefits was 
good.  The figures are still to be audited by DWP and 
therefore no guarantee of avoiding fines until this had been 
done. Councillors discussed the current error rate target of 
0.46% and whether this could be reduced. It was noted 
that the error rate calculation was re-set to zero every April 
with the new financial year and was set to provide caution 
before reaching the level at which financial penalties would 
apply.  Therefore it would not be recommended to change 
the target.

 Void properties – there was a new team structure in place 
and more regular checks were going to be undertaken 
while tenants were still in residence in order to reduce the 
amount of property damage. 

 It was noted that the business rate collection was currently 
green. There was anecdotal evidence that businesses 
were being visited to check that the Council’s information 
was correct as businesses were moving or closing and not 
informing the Council.  Councillors questioned the 
necessity of this proactive approach. The Senior Business 
Intelligence Officer reported that she would seek 
information from CPBS and report back.

 Councillors were encouraged by the reduction in the 
number of complaints.

 Looking at the figures relating to garden waste, Councillor 
queried whether garden waste bags collected by residual 
waste trucks (black bags) was causing an increase in 
residual waste sent tot ‘energy form waste’? Should more 
trucks be collecting garden waste and why has the report 
to Council on the pilot been delayed? Are people able to be 
on the waiting list and order garden bags? Should the 

Page 214



- 5 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 5 
September 2017

Council be marketing recycling options more clearly? The 
Senior Business Intelligence Officer reported that she 
would seek information and report back to Councillors.

 With regard to planning application determination times – 
should the Council be looking at measuring planning 
performance outside of agreed extension times?

 Councillors discussed the homelessness figures and noted 
that 79 people had been prevented from homelessness 
during April and May due to the Council’s intervention. The 
mathematics behind the benchmarking number was 
queried and The Senior Business Intelligence Officer 
reported that she would seek information and report back 
to Councillors.

AGREED:

1. That the report of the executive Director – Strategy and 
Governance be noted; and

2. That the senior Business Intelligence Officer report back to 
Councillors on the points raised.

17 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel.  

The Work Programme consisted of three separate sections, the 
first setting out the dates of the future Panel meetings along with 
proposed items for consideration, the second setting out the Task 
Groups that had been identified by the Panel and the third set out 
the new issues that had been identified at the previous meeting.

Councillors discussed CCTV issues and asked how often the 
service had not been available? The next meeting of the Panel 
would be looking at Crime and Disorder and these issues could 
be examined.  Councillors also discussed the best routes for 
reporting antisocial behaviour and noted that Councillor Chandler 
sat on the Lincolnshire Police and Crime Panel.  It was agreed 
that Councillor Chandler be invited to the next meeting to hear 
Councillors concerns and be able to report directly to the Police 
and Crime Commissioner if necessary.

With regard to Emergency Planning, the Panel requested that the 
new Emergency Planning Officer attend a future meeting of the 
Panel to discuss whether the Council was still part of the 

CM 

Page 215



- 6 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 5 
September 2017

Lincolnshire-wide Emergency Plan.

In considering the work programme and the issues that had been 
identified at the previous meeting, it was agreed that the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman work with officers to prioritise the 
work programme and report back to the Panel. A date for the first 
meeting of the Open Spaces Task Group would also need to be 
arranged.

AGREED: 

1. That the Panel’s Work programme, as set out in the report 
of the Executive Manager- Governance, be noted; 

2. That Councillor Chandler be invited to attend the next 
meeting  of the Panel for the item on Crime and Disorder; 

3. That the new Emergency Planning Officer be invited to 
attend a future meeting of the Panel to discuss the 
Councils role in the Lincolnshire-wide Emergency Plan; 

4. A date for the first meeting of the Open Spaces task Group 
be arranged; and

5. That the Chairman and Vice-Chairman, in consultation with 
officers, prioritise the work programme and report back to 
the Panel. 

18 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were no urgent items. 

(The meeting ended at 8.25 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 216



1

KEY DECISION PLAN Issued – 24 October 2017

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to: 

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.  

Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

P
age 217

A
genda Item

 9

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

2

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

Lincolnshire 
Wellbeing 
Service

Delivery of the Wellbeing Service Meetings and Discussions Portfolio Holder for 
Housing and Health Before 
30 Nov 2017

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Building 
Materials 
Contract

To award a contract. Portfolio Holder for 
Housing. 

Meetings and discussions. 

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Nov 
2017

P
age 218



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

3

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

New sewerage 
maintenance 
contract for 
council housing 
stock

To award new sewerage maintenance 
contract for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Nov 
2017

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Electrical 
Materials Supply 
Contract (EMSC) 
2017 - 2021

To award the EMSC to the successful 
supplier from the outcome of the 
procurement process

Meetings and discussions Officer Decisions Before 
30 Nov 2017

P
age 219



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

4

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Place

Insourcing of 
clearance and 
maintenance 
services - TUPE 
transfer

To seek approval for the insourcing of 
work areas and transfer of staff to the 
Council’s Environmental Services 
team.

South Holland 
Maintenance

South Holland District 
Council 17 Jan 2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Finance

Welland Homes 
Limited - 
Development 
Business Plan

To outline the findings of the review of 
the next layer of the Welland Homes 
Business Plan.

South Holland District 
Council 17 Jan 2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Place

Update on the 
Garden Waste 
Collection Pilot

To update Councillors on the Garden 
Waste Pilot, and set out options for the 
future. 

Portfolio Holder for Place 
and Executive Director 
Place

Meetings and 
correspondence

South Holland District 
Council 17 Jan 2018

P
age 220



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

5

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
Housing and 
Health

Lincolnshire 
Homelessness 
Strategy 2017-21

To consider the Lincolnshire 
Homelessness Strategy 2017-21 for 
adoption

Cabinet 13 Feb 2018

*Cabinet Membership
The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor M G Chandler (Deputy Leader)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor P E Coupland (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C Johnson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

P
age 221

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Rob Walker, Executive Director Place

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 7 November 2017

(Author: Emily Holmes Communities Manager)

Subject: Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group – update on 
progress of recommendations

Purpose:     To provide Members with an update on the recommendations

Recommendation(s): 

 
1) That the content of the report be noted

2) That further updates are provided to the Performance Monitoring Panel in six months’ time

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 In November 2016, the recommendations from the Final Report of the Swimming Pool 
and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group were approved by the Cabinet.  On 16 May 
2017 an update on the six recommendations was given to the Performance Monitoring 
Panel with a report progress thus far.

1.2   Progress updates were given on;

  the implementation of weekly monitoring inspections taking place across the site to  
focus on cleanliness and maintenance

  the production of written guidance for site inspections
  default notice templates available
  the development of a contract manual to assist with clear guidance for contract 

monitoring
  detail of five Improvement Required Notices issued, written response from the 

contractor to address the areas of concern and subsequent re-inspection
  a number of improvements implemented by the contractor including; the 

appointment of a dedicated cleaner for peak times at the pool; additional support to 
implement remedial maintenance work; completion of changing room floor 
replacements; introduction of new cleaning chemicals across the facilities; staff 
training, staff restructure to cover peak time and to oversee daily operations at the 
site.

1.3 Monthly contract meetings continue to take place which review significant areas 
across the contract: including; health and safety, customer feedback, quality 
management, programme delivery and development, staffing, training, 
safeguarding, performance and corrective action.   This is a further opportunity for 
additional site checks.

Page 223

Agenda Item 10



1.4 The site visits continue to take place weekly to maintain the improved standards.  Since 
the May update, 3 Default notices have been issued.  Two were issued in July and one in 
August.  Defaults were issued for; 

 Failure to maintain adequate staff levels within the facility
 Staff only areas not locked and accessible to members of the public
 Failure to make the Facility available to the public according to the agreed 

opening hours

1.5  Feedback continues to be important to measure the impact of changes made.  The 
feedback and comments log is reviewed and addressed.  In Quarter 2 there were 55 
comments, 6 negative about cleanliness or maintenance and 15 negative regarding 
programming.  Programming comments concerned the timing of Aquafit classes in the 
holidays, inflatable sessions during the holiday period and the trial of a third lane in the 
early morning swim sessions that gained mix reviews.  34 positive comments included 
customer service, cleanliness, programming, the health check engagement day, charity 
bike ride and the 1Life Festival.

1.6 Customer feedback is valuable and the variety of ways of getting in touch will be further 
promoted.  In addition, officers and contractor will continue to develop ways to provide 
feedback and customer engagement.  The contractor undertakes regular user forums to 
further consult with both customers and clubs.  Comments on the day included positive 
feedback on the new men’s flooring at the pool and frustration at customers not wearing 
blue overshoes which continues to be addressed.  Feedback was also received about the 
lack of availability of the learner pool due to the swimming club meet and positive 
feedback on two newly qualified fitness instructors.  Comments were also received about 
the closure due to the electrical upgrade works and positive feedback on cover class 
instructors.  The next Meet the Manager day will take place in November.

1.7 Visitor figures are monitored. At the Castle Pool during May, June and July there was an 
increase of over 5,000 visits in comparison to same months in 2016.   Swim school visits 
are higher than 2016 for this period and children’s parties at the Peele Leisure Centre are 
significantly higher than last year.  Attendance at the 50+ club activities has declined and 
this is being addressed by developing other activities as part of the offer, including walking 
football to generate new interest.

1.8 There have been no recent press enquiries or social media activity regarding shortfalls in 
service provision or standards that would be addressed the management of the contract.  
There have been positive articles in the local press regarding funds raised for 
Wheelpower from staff completing the London 100 mile cycle event and customers and 
staff taking part in a 60 mile cycle ride between the Castle Sports Complex, Peele Leisure 
Centre and Boston facility.  

1.9 Since the last update in May the contract management arrangements have been 
consistently applied.  There is a robust monitoring process in place and clear audit trails.  
Default Notices have been served and the contract has been proactively managed to 
improve the service.  Results have been positive so far and the new contract monitoring 
measures will continue.  The focus will remain on performance monitoring of the contract 
and service provided.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Do nothing.

Page 224



2.2 Note the contents of the report.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 It is recommended that the contents of this report are noted and that members of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel have assurance that the management of the leisure 
contract has been strengthened and that we are starting to see improvement in the quality 
of service provided.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The measures put in place following the Task Group will; 

i. Lead to an increase in customer satisfaction, a decrease in complaints and 
concerns raised and an improvement in service standards.

ii. Improve evidencing and performance management of the contract with effective 
reporting.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Contracts

5.1.1   Contract Management procedures have been clarified and improved working practices 
implemented.  Sanctions on the contract have been and will continue to be used robustly 
where necessary.

5.1.2 The Contract Management Manual recommended through the audit process has been 
developed.

5.2   Corporate Priorities

5.2.1 The provision of a Leisure offer contributes to the Council’s Corporate priorities of:

 To develop safer, stronger, healthier and more independent communities while 
protecting the most vulnerable

 To have pride in South Holland by supporting the district and residents to develop 
and thrive

 To encourage the local economy to be vibrant with continued growth.

The improved contract monitoring arrangements in place supports the provision of the 
right services, at the right time and in the right way.

5.3   Crime and Disorder 

5.3.1  There are no implications from this report.

5.4   Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.4.1   There are no implications from this report.

5.5       Financial 

5.5.1   Three Default Notices have been issued with a financial penalty of £100 each.

Page 225



5.6       Health & Wellbeing

5.6.1   There are no implications from this report.

5.7        Reputation 

5.7.1 The service delivered through the Leisure Contract will continue to be robustly monitored, 
to resolve issues quickly, make necessary improvements and address contract 
compliance issues with appropriate sanctions.  This is important for both the reputation of 
the Council and the contractor and there is commitment from both organisations to 
maintain the improvements made to date and continue to make progress.

5.8         Risk Management 

5.8.1   The centres are well used and at peak times, particularly at the pool, there is heavy traffic 
through the facility and the changing areas.  These peak times are when customer 
concerns about cleanliness are likely to be raised. To mitigate against this and maintain 
the appropriate standards, the additional cleaning resources are deployed during these 
times.

5.8.2 Health and Safety is an area that is monitored through the monthly contract meetings and 
updated in between meetings when necessary.    The contractor’s statutory compliance 
report which documents important checks including; boiler servicing, emergency lighting, 
air handling, fire alarms, disabled access equipment, water quality and asbestos have 
been reviewed in the monthly contract meeting and shared with the Council’s Health and 
Safety Advisor.  

5.9 Staffing

5.9.1 Additional resources and officer time have been allocated to undertake the weekly 
unannounced site inspections. A rota and schedule of inspections in place.

5.9.2 Staffing levels for the contractor at the pool were reviewed as part of the improvement 
work and more resources have been allocated to the swimming pool including an 
additional Duty Manager post and dedicated cleaner post.

5.9.3 Default notices were served when there was failure to maintain adequate staffing levels 
and this has been addressed.

5.10 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.10.1 Stakeholder and user feedback is important to help monitor the quality of provision, the 
comments log is reviewed on a fortnightly basis.

5.10.2 The meet the manager sessions provide useful feedback from users which can be 
addressed.  

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 Services are provided for all those living, working or visiting the district.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Page 226



Background papers:- Final Report of the Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract 
Task Group

Minutes of the Performance Monitoring Panel 

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Emily Holmes, Communities Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 76 44 69
Email: eholmes@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Leisure Centre Task Group Update

Page 227



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A - Castle Leisure Centre Task Group Update – October 2017

Recommendations Action to date

a. That a full time cleaner is considered by
1Life as part of their annual budget
allocations. It is evident that additional
hours are required for the proactive
cleaning of the swimming pool facility, in
particular the changing room areas, in
order to adhere to the requirements of
the contract;

All staff have cleaning duties in their job 
description.

Additional dedicated cleaning resource was 
requested by 1Life Contract Manager.  A 
new team member commenced duties on 21 
February 2017.  This addition has been well 
received by customers

New cleaning chemicals have also been 
sourced, staff have been trained and these 
chemicals are being used.

b. That contract management of the site
improves with a formally recorded daily
and weekly monitoring regime and that
should standards fall short of the
requirements within the contract, the
contract warning system is to be followed
through and be robustly pursued by the
contract manager;

A daily and weekly monitoring regime is in 
place on site.

There is a Daily and weekly cleaning 
schedule which must be completed. Failure 
to sign these off could result in disciplinary 
action.

The 1Life Contract Manager has developed 
a more detailed list for internal inspections 
that duty managers are to complete.

These are viewed at contract monitoring 
meetings.

Additional resource has been committed 
internally, with council officers making 
additional weekly inspection visits to monitor 
the service delivered.  These are detailed 
with a strong focus on cleanliness and 
maintenance.

In Q1
5 Improvement Required Notices were 
issued.  Remedial action was recorded and 
determined to be effective.

In Q2 
3 Default Notices were issued.

If standards fall short, further Improvement 
Required Notices or Default notices will be 
served.  Monitoring of these are included in 
the Strategic Board meetings with 1Life 
Managing Director.

However, overall there have been significant 
improvements to cleansing and maintenance

Page 229



c.That staff within the facilities record and
notify management of any repairs
required on a daily basis and that these
are dealt with in a timely manner. In
addition, all outstanding repairs and
maintenance should be undertaken
promptly to improve standards at the
leisure facilities;

There is an Inspection sheet for logging all 
maintenance issues or cleanliness issues.

A new loose sheet log was created for main 
hirers or regular clubs at the facility to 
document any concerns.

These are reviewed at the monthly contract 
meetings against the contract.

Minor maintenance issues are recorded on 
the weekly inspection visit sheet and 
reviewed for progress.

In addition, the contractor’s statutory 
compliance report which documents 
important maintenance and service checks 
has been reviewed.

Work to the school changing room floors was 
completed on 9th June.

Positive comments about the replacement 
male changing room flooring have been 
received.

Upgrade work has been carried out in the 
plant room with the replacement of 3 pumps, 
an upgrade of the Alum dosing unit to a new 
PAC system.

The window frames in the fitness suite have 
been replaced.

Upgrade to the electricity supply at the 
Castle Sports Complex has been completed.

d. That the blue overshoe policy is reviewed
immediately and a new, more effective
policy is put in place within three months;

This has been reviewed and seriously 
considered.  A suitable alternative is not 
available at this time. Blue overshoes are 
industry standard.
Consideration was also given to other 
physical measures, such as a turnstile to 
ensure that each person entering the 
changing room area puts on the overshoes 
but this has been discounted due to 
emergency access in and out.

Additional signage has been installed and 
customers are being requested to wear the 
blue overshoes – this has been positively 
recognised by pool users.

Regular inspections show that blue shoes 
are available to visitors and that staff 
continue to advise that these need to be 
worn.  The additional signage is clear and 
visible.

Page 230



e. That these recommendations are
allocated to an identified officer to ensure
they are actioned and that an update is
received by the Performance Monitoring
Panel on actions against these at 7
February 2017 meeting; and

The Communities Manager has responsibility 
for all of these actions.

f. That the Performance Monitoring Panel is
involved in the consultation stage of any
future option appraisals in respect to
Leisure Facilities provision in South
Holland as detailed

Work has commenced (although still in the 
early stages) on preparation for the re-
procurement of a leisure contract.  PMP will 
be kept informed and engaged and this 
project develops.

Page 231



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director - Place

To: Performance Monitoring Panel Tuesday, 7 November 2017 

(Author: Gerry McKevitt Property Asset Manager)

Subject Re-Letting of Void Properties Task Group

Purpose: To provide the panel with an update on progress against the Task Groups 
recommendations

Recommendation(s): 

1) That the content of the report be noted

2) That the panel identifies the frequency of updates

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Re-Letting of Voids Task Group was set up with the following scope:

• To consider performance, in relation to the time a property is void;
• To make recommendations on how to improve this performance.

The recommendations of the Task Group were approved by Cabinet on 25th July 2017, and 
the Performance Monitoring Panel have requested an update on the progress of the 
recommendations as detailed within this report and the attached Appendix.

1.2 Following the Place Review, progress has been made through the establishment of one 
team to take control of the voids which is key to driving up performance.  We are currently 
in a transition phase whereby vacant posts are still being filled and old procedures are 
being overhauled to properly exploit the opportunities the review brings.  

1.3 The review of targets to measure business critical performance including the inclusion of 
lost rent is underway and is part of a wider piece of work within the Place Directorate.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Do nothing

2.2 Note the contents of the report

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 So those members of the Performance Monitoring Panel have assurance that the future 
improved management of void properties is consolidated and that there is improvement in 
the quality of the service provided.

Page 233

Agenda Item 11



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 Improvements in the delivery of the service, increased customer satisfaction and reductions 
in lost rent.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Financial

5.1.1 To increase rental income through a reduction in void turn around times and provide value 
for money.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 Services are provided for all those living within the district

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Gerry McKevitt Property Asset Manager
Telephone Number 01775 764424
Email: gerrymckevitt@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Void Task Group update

Page 234



Appendix A
Update – Void Performance

Recommendations Action to Date
That the voids process is amalgamated into one 
voids team and the process along with a number 
of actions within this are refined and/or removed. 
This is for all properties within
the housing stock (sheltered or general needs 
housing). This may rely upon digital applications, 
key safes at properties to allow quicker access 
once vacated and automated communications 
with customers;

As stated the management of void properties has 
now been brought together under one team and 
work has now begun to look at existing practices 
with a view to streamlining the way resources are 
allocated in order to service the number of voids 
within an acceptable timeframe.  The 
improvement and optimisation of digital 
applications is part of a wider IT review across the 
whole of Housing to ensure true integration of the 
service - this has just started.

That the management of tenancies is overhauled 
to ensure property standards are maintained 
and/or recharges for repairs are appropriately 
received. This includes procedures used at the 
commencement of any new tenancy to ensure
the efficiency and effectiveness of tenancy 
management and to ensure everyone, including 
the tenant, is aware of their duties and 
responsibilities during their tenancy. This
includes a need for clear communication of 
procedures to be followed during and at the end 
of the tenancies, such as the handing in of notice 
and the timescales/method to be followed for the 
return of keys. This way of working will ensure 
swift timescales at the start of the process and 
support subsequent actions in the process to 
meet turnaround times;

The increase in the number of home visits by 
Housing Neighbourhood Officers during tenancies 
to support tenants in keeping their homes in good 
order will begin once all vacant posts have been 
filled (interviews were completed w/c 23/10/17). 
One of the key objectives of the Place Review was 
to shift the culture towards a proactive 
interventionist approach to tackle issues at an 
early stage.

That the marketing of properties is undertaken, 
with new methods actively sought. In the first 
instance it is recommended that the Council 
website and Facebook page is utilised to market 
properties, especially those where interest has 
been lacking. Other techniques such as choice
based lettings should be investigated further and 
where appropriate put into action;

As a consequence of the Place Review transition a 
new team has been created. Initially processes 
and digitalisation issues are being addressed. 
Marketing and systems administration to open up 
available properties via social media will follow 
once the initial building blocks are in place, the 
viability of choice based lettings will be 
considered at this point and brought back to 
Members.

That the current contracts are reviewed, that 
directly impact the voids timeline, potentially 
seeking to bring back in-house some services such 
as Energy Performance Certificate assessing;

The review of contracts delivering external 
support such as the asbestos surveys is underway 
with view to bringing it in-house to save time 
however; the cost to insure this activity may be 
prohibitive.

That the current allocations policy is reviewed for
effectiveness alongside a strategic property 
review for hard to let properties within the 
housing stock

Work in progress – Matthew Hogan, Phil Stacey 
and Martin Cregg.

Page 235



Appendix A
Update – Void Performance

That the Housing Allocations policy is reviewed to 
ensure that waiting lists are appropriate for the 
housing need of South Holland;

Work in progress – Phil Stacey

That the voids process provides high quality 
properties within a consistent turn around that 
meets the needs of our tenants;

The void letting standard will be reviewed as part 
of the process overhaul being undertaken in 
conjunction with Ian Lambert the Service 
Improvement Analyst.

Page 236



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director Strategy and Governance

To: Performance Monitoring Panel, 7th November 2017 and Cabinet, 21st 
November 2017

Author: Greg Pearson – Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager

Subject: Performance Overview Report – Quarter 2 2017/18

Purpose: To provide an update on Council performance for the period 1 July 2017 to 
30 September 2017

Recommendation(s): 

1) To note the content of the report

1.0 BACKGROUND

The Quarter 2 2017/18 Performance Report (Appendix A) aims to provide Members and 
residents with information about how the Council is delivering its services and how it is 
progressing against its Corporate Priorities.  The covering report highlights in further detail 
some of the indicators within the performance report.

Areas where performance has improved are brought to Members’ attention, as are areas of 
concern where performance is below expected levels or is considered to be worsening.

1.1 Key Performance Indicators

Quarter 2 saw performance improve in in comparison to quarter 1. Performance is rated as 
‘moderate’ with 11 indicators being green (55%) which indicates good performance. There 
are 3 (15%) amber indicators and 6 red indicators (30%); highlighting lower than expected 
performance. There are 6 indicators which are classified as data only; this means that they 
are monitored without requiring a target.  

Page 237

Agenda Item 12



1.2       Complaints Upheld
There has been a decrease of about 25% in the number of stage 1 complaints received in 
in this quarter when compared to quarter 2 last year, out of the 32 complaints received only 
5 of them were upheld. This shows that as the council is upholding less complaints when 
compared to last year and can indicate that the Council is learning the lessons from 
previous complaints and making service changes. 

Calls abandoned
The abandonment rate of calls has reduced by half from 10.15% to 5.31% since the last 
quarter. In terms of figures there were 28,444 calls received last quarter with 2,887 
abandoned and 26,442 received this quarter but only 1,404 of those calls were abandoned. 

Wait time in seconds
The average wait time in seconds across revenues, benefits and customer contact has 
reduced significantly in since the last 2 quarters. Q4 16/17 saw this figure at 107 seconds 
with Q1 17/18 at 129 seconds, we are now at 78 seconds overall for Q2 so this is very 
positive and demonstrates the work being done by customer contact to improve call 
resolution and pick up times.

Page 238



Planning Applications
The performance of the planning team continues to be reported above target with 95.16% 
of applications determined within time, this refers to 183 applications.

Revenues and Benefits
Following on from the performance improvements seen in 2016/17, this has continued with 
quarter 2 following similar performance trend as quarter 1 and showing an error rate of 
0.16%, the rate remains within target and on track to receive 100% subsidy for 2017/18.

1.3       Areas of Concern

The following areas are either not achieving their target or are experiencing a significant 
decline in performance:

Staff Turnover

Staff turnover for this quarter is at 10.97% which is the highest figure seen since we started 
recording this figure (Q1 15/16). Whilst this figure is high and well above the 2.5% 
threshold, we are aware of the service reviews that have taken place within the place 
directorate this quarter which makes up over 90% of the 27 leavers in this period.

Cases prevented from homelessness per 1,000 households
This figure has dropped from 2.6 in Q2 16/17 to 1.5 as it currently stands, the housing team 
have been focusing on transitional projects as well as preparation work for the 
homelessness prevention act. Although this is not a targeted measure we will continue to 
monitor this as homelessness prevention is a key area of the council and overall cases 
prevented from homelessness has seen a downwards trend over the last 4 quarters.

Housing Voids

Overall most of the housing void times have improved following on from last quarter, this 
shows positive effects of the service review and restructure of the teams and processes 
surrounding void properties. However there are a few housing PIs such as key to key for 
general needs and contractor times for general needs which are both at 33 days and above 
the maximum target of 28 days for key to key and 25 for contractor times. The reason for 
this is because the changes of the service review, in these areas specifically, is likely to 
need more time to bed in and impact on the overall performance. The contractor days and 
overall general needs times will reduce if the condition of the properties returned are 
improved. This is looking to be done with a more stringent process of tenancy checks, this 
will take time to come into force and start to see a positive change.

Business Rate in Year Collection Rate

Business Rate in year collection rates are currently 0.93% behind target. This is the first 
year of a new rating list following the 2017 Revaluation. A reduction in collection rates is 
anticipated (compared to previous years) over the next few months as the team continues 
to rebill those businesses that qualify for the new reliefs (announced by the Government in 
the spring budget) which are specifically designed to assist those ratepayers most 
adversely affected by the revaluation.

In year collection was also affected due to the Valuation Office Agency notifying the 
revenues team of two large, backdated changes to business assessments in the rating list. 

Whilst this figure is currently red and needs to be monitored, the revenues department do 
anticipate achievement of the end of year target and performance will be in line with 
previous year's performance.

Page 239



2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Members are asked to consider the information contained within the report.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 Report for consideration, in order to fulfil the Performance Monitoring Panel’s remit.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Council’s performance is properly scrutinised.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 It is the opinion of the author that there are no carbon footprint or environmental 
implications.

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 The report is made within the terms of reference of the Performance Monitoring Panel.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct contract implications.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 The report presents progress monitoring of performance of the corporate priorities.

5.5 Crime and Disorder

5.5.1 It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct crime and disorder implications.

5.6 Equality and Diversity/Human Rights

5.6.1 It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct equality or human rights implications.

5.7 Financial

5.7.1 The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some 
information relating to financial matters.

5.8 Health and Wellbeing

5.8.1 It is the opinion of the author that there are no health or wellbeing implications.

5.9 Reputation

5.9.1 Performance issues can cause some reputational consequence.  It is the purpose of this 
report to highlight performance issues at an early stage.

Page 240



5.10 Risk Management

5.10.1 Performance issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect Council 
interests.

5.11      Safeguarding

5.11.1 It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct safeguarding implications as a result 
of this report

5.12 Staffing

5.12.1 The report contains information relating to staffing issues.

5.13   Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales

5.13.1 It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct implications arising from this report.

5.14 Transformation Programme

5.14.1 It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct implications arising from this report.

5.15 Other

5.15.1 It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct implications arising from this report

6.0     WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

6.1     No Wards or Communities are affected 

7.0     ACRONYMS 

7.1     None

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Greg Pearson – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Manager
Telephone Number: 01362 656866
Email: greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Greg Pearson – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Manager

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 

Page 241

file:///C:/Users/CharlottePaine/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


Appendix A Quarter 2 Performance Report

Page 242



1

2017/18 Q2 SHDC PMP Report

Generated on: 16 October 2017

         

         

Indicator % of Customer Complaints Upheld - Stage 1 Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

# of complaints upheld Total # of complaints Value

Q2 2016/17 11 42 26.19%

Current Performance

# of complaints upheld Total # of complaints Value

Q2 2017/18 5 32 15.63%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Complaints upheld as a % 
of all stage 1 complaints 
closed in period 
This is calculated using the 
number of complaints 
upheld divided by the total 
number of complaints 
closed in the period 

 

25%
 

A lower % is better as we look to reduce the 
number of complaints upheld for an SHDC 
error 

7 complaints received in period with 2 being upheld. This figure has 
greatly improved from Q2 of last year where we had nearly 25% more 
complaints.

       

 

 

         

P
age 243



2

Indicator % of Customer Complaints Upheld - Stage 2 Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

# complaints upheld Total # of complaints Value

Q2 2016/17 1 8 12.5%

Current Performance

# complaints upheld Total # of complaints Value

Q2 2017/18 0 2 0%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Complaints upheld as a % 
of all stage 2 complaints 
closed in period 
This is calculated using the 
number of complaints 
upheld divided by the total 
number of complaints 
closed in the period 

 

25%

 

A lower % is better as we look to reduce the 
number of complaints upheld for an SHDC 
error 

2 complaints received for the quarter, neither of which were upheld, 
we have seen a great drop in the number of stage 2 complaints 
received compared to last year.P

age 244



3

Indicator % of Calls Abandoned Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Calls Abandoned Calls Received Value

Q2 2016/17 1,916 27,501 6.97%

Current Performance

Calls Abandoned Calls Received Value

Q2 2017/18 1,404 26,442 5.31%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of calls that are 
abandoned (call 
terminated prior to 
answering), excluding 
those abandoned within 5 
seconds. 

This is a combined 
measure across Customer 
Contact, Revenues and 
Benefits calls 

 

No Target 

 

A lower % is better as we look to answer more 
calls

In terms of call volume there have only been around 1,000 less calls 
this quarter compared to last year’s Q2 data, however it is pleasing 
to see that while call volumes remained near enough the same there 
has been nearly a 1% drop in abandonment rates which equates for 
around 500 less calls abandoned this quarter compared to last, also 
when comparing to Q1s performance it is pleasing to note the 
abandonment rates have halved.

       

 

 

         

P
age 245



4

Indicator Average Wait Time in Seconds Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 113.22

Current Performance

Value

Q2 2017/18 N/A N/A 78.56

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Average time to answer 
phone calls in seconds 
This is measured across 
customer services, 
revenues and benefits 
calls. 

 

No Target 

 

A lower number is better as it indicates less 
time waiting for a call to be answered

This Quarter has seen a great improvement on the average wait time 
in seconds, there has been a 33% decrease in wait time in seconds 
compare to last quarter and a 30% decrease when compared to last 
year’s Q2.

         

     

 

  

P
age 246



5

Indicator % of household waste recycled or composted Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Tonnage of recycling 
and composting

Total Tonnage 
Collected

Value

Q2 2016/17 2648.62 7886.38 33.15%

Current Performance

Tonnage of recycling 
and composting

Total Tonnage 
Collected

Value

Q2 2017/18 2613.59 7946.68 33.45%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of household waste 
which has been recycled 
and composted (includes 
garden waste) against all 
the household waste 
collected

 

 

 

A higher % is better as we look to recycle or 
compost more waste

Following a drop in percentage at the end of 16/17 it is pleasing to 
note to % of household waste recycled or composted is now at 
33.45% for the quarter.

P
age 247



6

Indicator Missed Waste Collection Rate Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of missed 
collections

Per 100,000 collection 
figure

Value

Q2 2016/17 407 10.185 40.0

Current Performance

Number of missed 
collections

Per 100,000 collection 
figure

Value

Q2 2017/18 393 10.185 38.6

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of missed 
collections per 100,000 
people 

 

33.0

 

A lower number is better as we look to ensure 
fewer waste collections are missed

We are seeing positive improvement in the missed waste collection 
rates since Q2 last year, as it stands we are achieving a collection 
rate of 99.67% of all bins in the district collected for Q2. The team is 
also looking a periodically running reports on the number of times 
they have returned to the properties to make a second collection as 
opposed to the number of times customer services log a call under 
the category of ‘missed collections’.

         

        

 

P
age 248



7

Indicator Waste sent to 'Energy from Waste' per Household (kg) Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q2 2016/17 5730.84 39,450 48.4

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q2 2017/18 5867.28 39,450 49.6

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of Kg’s of residual 
waste collected per 
household sent to Energy 
from Waste 
Calculated by 'residual 
waste collected' x 1000 
then divided by number of 
households waste has 
been collected from 

 

45.0

 

A lower number is better as we look to reduce 
the amount of waste sent for incineration 

The production of an updated Joint Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy for Lincolnshire is underway which will address all matters 
related to waste management in Lincolnshire. This includes, but is 
not restricted to, issues such as reducing the amount of waste 
produced, reducing the amount of that waste sent to the energy from 
waste plant and increasing the quantity and quality processed for 
recycling.    

P
age 249



8

         

         

Indicator Commercial Property Occupancy Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of units let Total number of units Value

Q2 2016/17 50 50 100%

Current Performance

Number of units let Total number of units Value

Q2 2017/18 50 50 100%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Occupancy levels of the 
council's industrial units 

 

90%
 

A higher number is better as we look to rent 
out as many council owned industrial units as 
possible

Occupancy continues to remain at full capacity which brings in 
income for the Council

     

 

   

P
age 250



9

         

Indicator Staff turnover % Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of leavers in 
period

Total number of staff 
in period

Value

Q2 2016/17 5 256 1.95%

Current Performance

Number of leavers in 
period

Total number of staff 
in period

Value

Q2 2017/18 26 237 10.97%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of total leavers against 
total number of staff 
employed in period 
(includes involuntary 
leavers) 
 

 

2.5%

 

Lower is better as we look to retain staff Whilst this figure is high and well above the target threshold this is 
expected due to the ongoing moving forward programme which 
includes a number of service reviews, this period has seen the place 
directorate review a number of teams.

     

 

   

         

P
age 251



10

Indicator Working Days Lost to Sickness per FTE Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of days lost Number of FTE Value

Q2 2016/17 440.36 233.79 1.91

Current Performance

Number of days lost Number of FTE Value

Q2 2017/18 496.38 204.54 2.4

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total number of working 
days lost per Full Time 
Equivalent. 
This is calculated by taking 
the number of days lost to 
sickness and dividing it by 
the number of full time 
equivalent staff in the 
period 

 

2.2.5

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of working time lost to sickness 

Working days lost to sickness overall has improved over the last few 
quarters but does remain higher than the figures for last quarter, HR 
have now launched a flu voucher scheme which will provide flu 
vouchers for staff who want them which will in turn look to reduce 
short term sickness cases.

Indicator Working Days Lost to Long Term Sickness per FTE Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of days lost - 
long term

Number of FTE Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance

Number of days lost - 
long term

Number of FTE Value

Q2 2017/18 414.91 204.54 2.029

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of working days 
lost per Full Time 
Equivalent for long term 
sickness. 
This is calculated by taking 
the number of days lost to 
long term sickness and 
dividing it by the number 
of full time equivalent staff 
in the period 

 

No Target

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of working time lost to sickness 

Working days lost to long term sickness remains near enough the 
same per FTE as it was last quarter, work is underway to ensure we 
have accurate and benchmarked targets.

P
age 252



11

Indicator Working Days Lost to Short Term Sickness per FTE Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of days lost - 
short term

Number of FTE Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance

Number of days lost - 
short term

Number of FTE Value

Q2 2017/18 81.51 204.54 0.39

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of working days 
lost per Full Time 
Equivalent for short term 
sickness. 
This is calculated by taking 
the number of days lost to 
long term sickness and 
dividing it by the number 
of full time equivalent staff 
in the period 

 

No Target

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of working time lost to sickness 

Working days lost to short term sickness has reduced significantly 
since the last quarter from 0.561 to 0.398 per FTE, work is currently 
underway to ensure we have accurately benchmarked targets 
compared to other local authorities.

        

 

         

P
age 253



12

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (total ave. key to key) All Tenures Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void Total # properties void Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 27 days

Current Performance

Total # days void Total # properties void Value

Q2 2017/18 1,394 45 31 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days from 
keys in to keys out - 
including major works for 
all tenures (General Needs 
and Sheltered Housing) 
This is calculated by total 
number of days properties 
remain vacant divided by 
the number or properties 
vacant in the period 

 

28 days

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
number of days vacant and therefore not 
receiving rent payments 

The indicators demonstrate some variance from the same period in 
Q2 16/17 but do not show the same swings that were a marked 
feature of recent times. This is largely down to how resources were 
being utilised at the time there was a spike in homelessness cases 
and the turnover of emergency accommodation which meant CSU 
operatives were directed to work on priority needs.

In seeking improvement in void performance a number of key 
structural changes have been made, most notably the creation of an 
Available Homes team that has brought all the elements of void 
management and allocations within one team under a responsible 
manager and created a distinct client/contractor partnership with the 
Operational Housing Repairs Team (previously CSU).

P
age 254



13

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Keys In to Keys Back from Contractor) - All Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days 
void 
(contract)

Total # 
properties 
void

Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 17 days

Current Performance

Total # days 
void 
(contract)

Total # 
properties 
void

Value

Q2 2017/18 1,334 45 30 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to 
works completed by the 
contractor and the 
property is ready to be let 
This is calculated by total 
number of days all 
properties remained 
vacant whilst the keys are 
with the contractors to 
complete works divided by 
the total number of 
properties vacant in the 
period 

 

25 days

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant whilst 
works are completed 

This particular figure has improved dramatically from 39 days in Q1 
17/18 to 30 days for Q2 which shows a positive reflection on the 
service and process reviews within that area along with the 
implementation of the new teams, there is still work to be done on 
improving this figure overall as this figure was at 21 days for Q2 
16/17

P
age 255



14

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Contractor) - General Needs Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void 
(contract)

Total # properties void Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 21 days

Current Performance

Total # days void 
(contract)

Total # properties void Value

Q2 2017/18 1,012 31 33 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to 
works completed by the 
contractor and the 
property is ready to be let. 
This is only for 'general 
needs' properties 
This is calculated by total 
number of days general 
needs properties remained 
vacant whilst the keys are 
with the contractors to 
complete works divided by 
the total number of 
general needs properties 
vacant in the period 

 

25 days

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant whilst 
works are completed 

This figure has improved from last quarter as we hopefully look to 
see the positive outcomes of the service review

P
age 256



15

         

         

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Contractor) - Sheltered Housing Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void 
(contract)

Total # properties void Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 13 days

Current Performance

Total # days void 
(contract)

Total # properties void Value

Q2 2017/18 322 14 23 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to 
works completed by the 
contractor and the 
property is ready to be let. 
This is only for 'sheltered' 
properties 
This is calculated by total 
number of days sheltered 
properties remained 
vacant whilst the keys are 
with the contractors to 
complete works divided by 
the total number of 
sheltered properties vacant 
in the period 

 

25 days

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant whilst 
works are completed 

Whilst still within the targeted thresholds we have seen a rise in the 
number of days taken for this figure, key factors behind this have 
been an increase in the turnover of tenants due to several passing 
away.

   

 

 

 

   

         

P
age 257



16

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Letting) - General Needs Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void 
(letting)

Total # properties void Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 3 days

Current Performance

Total # days void 
(letting)

Total # properties void Value

Q2 2017/18 64 35 2 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days for 
properties to be let after 
the works were completed 
by the contractor. This is 
only for 'general needs' 
properties 
This is calculated by total 
number of days general 
needs properties remained 
vacant whilst the property 
is waiting to be let after 
the contractors completed 
works divided by the total 
number of general needs 
properties vacant in the 
period 

 

3 days

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant for letting 
post works completion 

We have seen a day reduction in times since last quarter which 
reflects the positive work and process changes within the service that 
deals with these areas.

P
age 258



17

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Letting) - Sheltered Housing Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void 
(letting)

Total # properties void Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 22 days

Current Performance

Total # days void 
(letting)

Total # properties void Value

Q2 2017/18 35 14 3 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days for 
properties to be let after 
the works were completed 
by the contractor. This is 
only for 'sheltered' 
properties 
This is calculated by total 
number of days sheltered 
properties remained 
vacant whilst the property 
is waiting to be let after 
the contractors completed 
works divided by the total 
number of sheltered 
properties vacant in the 
period 

 

3 days

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant for letting 
post works completion 

This quarter has shown a really positive set of figures, there were not 
any properties this quarter without a waiting list which resulted in the 
total times being lower than previous months. The highest month in 
Q2 was August which saw 6 properties void at a total of 26 days void 
all together.

       

 

 

         

P
age 259



18

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Key to Key) - General Needs Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void (ktok) Total # properties void Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 22 days

Current Performance

Total # days void (ktok) Total # properties void Value

Q2 2017/18 1,017 31 33 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to keys 
out to the new tenant. This 
is only for 'general needs' 
properties 
This is calculated by total 
number of days general 
needs properties remained 
vacant divided by the total 
number of general needs 
properties vacant in the 
period 

 

28 days

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
number of days vacant and therefore not 
receiving rent payments 

Whilst this figure is still red we have noted that there has been a 10 
day reduction since last quarter in key to key times for general 
needs, this is reflecting the team structure and process changes that 
have come out of the service review which focuses on reducing these 
times.

 

      

 

 

         

P
age 260



19

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Key to Key) - Sheltered Housing Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void (ktok) Total # of properties 
void

Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 31 days

Current Performance

Total # days void (ktok) Total # of properties 
void

Value

Q2 2017/18 125.667 4.667 27 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to keys 
out to the new tenant. This 
is only for 'general needs' 
properties 
This is calculated by total 
number of days general 
needs properties remained 
vacant divided by the total 
number of general needs 
properties vacant in the 
period 

 

28 days

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
number of days vacant and therefore not 
receiving rent payments 

A positive reduction in key to key times for sheltered housing since 
last quarter which results in the Q2 figure in the green target 
threshold. This is largely due to the properties that were void having 
a waiting list of perspective tenants which greatly reduces void times.

P
age 261



20

Indicator Cases Prevented from Homelessness per 1,000 households Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 2.6

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q2 2017/18 59 38.693 1.5

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

P1E Return - Prevention 
and Relieving of 
Homelessness 
Number of potentially 
homeless cases diverted 
from homelessness per 
1,000 households 

 

 No Target

 

This is not a targeted measure. The number 
does not reflect % of cases prevented from 
homelessness and therefore will fluctuate 
dependent upon demand to the service. 

There has been a slight drop in the number of cases of homelessness 
prevented following on from last quarters value of 1.9 in Q1. An 
overall downwards trend can be observed overall in the quarter 59 
cases of homelessness have been prevented, the slight drop in 
numbers compared to last quarter is largely due to the housing team 
focusing on transition projects and preparation for the homelessness 
prevention act.

P
age 262



21

Indicator % of all planning applications determined within time Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

# plan apps determd in 
time

# planning applications 
recvd

Value

Q2 2016/17 66 72 91.67%

Current Performance

# plan apps determd in 
time

# planning applications 
recvd

Value

Q2 2017/18 175 183 95.63%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of planning 
applications determined 
within their statutory times 
divided by total number of 
applications received. 
Includes all application 
types (majors, minors, 
others) 

 

70%

 

Higher is better as we look to determine as 
many as possible within their timescales 

Significantly above target, reflecting effective use of extensions of 
time. 14 extensions of time agreed.

P
age 263



22

Indicator Housing Benefit LA Error Rate Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expend

Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 0.54%

Current Performance

Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expend

Value

Q2 2017/18 14,245.11 8,637,760.99 0.16%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Local Authority error in 
Housing Benefit 
overpayment 
Amount of benefits 
overpaid divided by 
benefits paid (% of overall 
expenditure) 

 

0.42%

 

Lower is better as we look to minimise the 
amount of money paid in error and reduce the 
risk of financial penalty (which occurs above 
0.48%) 

The Housing Benefit LA Error rate remains within target and on track 
to receive 100% subsidy for 2017/18.

P
age 264



23

         

         

Indicator Business Rate In Year Collection Rate Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 58.31%

Current Performance

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q2 2017/18 15,101,263.96 26,323,412.18 57.37%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Amount of Business Rates 
collected in the year 
against the total 
collectable debit 

 

58.3%

 

Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the business rates debit as possible 

We are currently 0.93% behind target.  This is the first year of a new 
rating list following the 2017 Revaluation.  We anticipate a reduction 
in collection rates over the next few months as we continue to rebill 
those businesses that qualify for the new reliefs which are specifically 
designed to assist those ratepayers most adversely affected by the 
revaluation. 

P
age 265



24

         

         

Indicator Council Tax In Year Collection Rate Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 58.35%

Current Performance

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q2 2017/18 25,038,314.22 43,185,387.07 57.98%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Amount of Council Tax 
collected in the year 
against the total 
collectable debit 

 

58.35%

 

Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the Council Tax debit as possible 

We are currently 0.37% behind target. Our pro-active work in 
bringing new properties into valuation results in an increase in the 
collectable debit which becomes payable over future instalments. We 
will be conducting some analysis work around collection in October 
and we anticipate that the end of year performance will be in line 
with previous year's performance. 

       

 

P
age 266



25

         

Indicator New Homes - Affordable Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q2 2016/17 N/A N/A 0

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q2 2017/18 N/A N/A 6

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of affordable 
homes completed in the 
District the period 

 

No Target 

 

Higher is better as we look to increase the 
number of affordable properties in the District 

There were two affordable homes completed in September. 
(These were two affordable rent properties in Tydd Gote.)
There were two affordable homes completed in August. 
(These were two affordable rent properties in Spalding.)
There were two affordable homes completed in July. 
(These were two affordable rent properties in Spalding.)

P
age 267



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Report of: Mark Stinson - Executive Manager Governance 

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 7 November 2017 
Full Council 17 January 2018 

Subject: Constitution Amendments 

Purpose: To consider a number of amendments to the Constitution 

Recommendations: 

That the amendments detailed in Appendices A to F of this report be approved and the 
Constitution be amended accordingly. 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Council's current Constitution was approved by full Council at its meeting on 20 
January 2016.

1.2 Under Article 14 of the Constitution any proposed changes may only be approved by full 
Council unless the change is: 

 A minor variation; or
 Is required to be made to remove any inconsistency or ambiguity; or 
 is required to be made so as to put into effect any decision of the Council or its committees 

or the Cabinet.

1.3 In such circumstances the change may be made by the Monitoring Officer and comes into 
force immediately, but must be reported to full Council as soon as reasonably possible.  
Any change then continues to have effect only if full Council agrees. 

1.4 There are a number of proposed changes to the Constitution, most of which are only minor.  
As none of the minor changes are considered to be urgent the Monitoring Officer has not 
made the changes under her delegated powers.  Rather, this report is to seek approval for 
the proposed minor, and other, changes.

2.0 PROPOSED CHANGES 

2.1 Call-in 

2.1.1 Urgent executive decisions which are not key decisions 

(a) Executive decisions are decisions taken by: 

 the Leader, 
 the Cabinet, 
 a committee of the Cabinet, 
 a portfolio holder or 

Page 269

Agenda Item 13



 an officer under powers delegated by any of the above. 

(b) All executive decisions are subject to call-in.  This means that an executive decision 
cannot be implemented until formal notice of the decision has been published, and 5 
working days have expired during which period a ward representative, or 2 
members of the Performance Monitoring Panel, or any 3 members of the Council 
may formally request in writing that the decision be called-in for review.  If a decision 
is called-in the decision is initially reviewed by the Performance Monitoring Panel, 
who may refer the decision back to the decision maker(s), or (in certain 
circumstances) refer the decision to full Council, or take no further action. 

(c) Under Rules 12 and 13 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out at Part 
4D of the Constitution, the call-in procedure does not apply in two circumstances.  
These circumstances are explained in the following paragraph.

(d) An executive decision which is also a key decision (because it has a significant 
effect on two or more wards, or because of its financial value) cannot be made until 
formal notice that a key decision will be made has been published, and 28 days 
have elapsed since publication.  Where, for whatever reason, notice of a proposed 
key decision has not been published, but where the decision must be taken so 
urgently that there is insufficient time to wait the required 28 days, then there are 
two alternative procedures in Rules 12 and 13 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules.  Depending upon how urgent the decision is, one rule allows an 
Officer to approve the exclusion of call-in, the other rule requires the consent of the 
Chairman of the Performance Monitoring Panel  

(e) There have been times when there has been a need to exclude call-in of decisions 
which are NOT key decisions.  On these occasions the Chairman of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel has determined whether or not to allow such 
exclusion.  It is therefore proposed that this process is formalised with clear 
procedures and appropriate checks and balances.  Exclusion of call-in in these 
circumstances will only be permitted where any delay likely to be caused by the call-
in process would seriously prejudice the Council's or the public's interest.  
Requirements of the process are proposed below: 

 the Chairman of the Performance Monitoring Panel agreeing both that the 
decision proposed is reasonable in all the circumstances and to it being treated 
as a matter of urgency (in the absence of the Chairman, the Chairman of the 
Council or in his/her absence the Vice-Chairman of the Council's consent shall 
be required.  In the absence of all three, the Head of the Paid Service or his/her 
nominee's consent shall be required); and 

 the decision notice stating that the decision is not subject to call-in and the 
reasons why the delay caused by the call-in procedure is considered to be 
seriously detrimental to the Council's or the public's interest; and 

 a report being submitted to the next available meeting of full Council indicating 
the reasons for the urgency.  

.
(f) It should be noted that whilst the law provides that the Council's executive 

arrangements must make provision to allow the executive decisions to be 
scrutinised, the law does not prevent the Council from restricting this ability in 
certain circumstances.   

(g) The proposed amendments to enable this additional procedure to be adopted are 
shown in full in appendix A to this report.  

Page 270



2.1.2 Executive decisions which are subject to external deadlines 

(a) On occasions a situation may arise where a matter is not necessarily urgent, but is 
subject to deadlines imposed by external organisations which restrict the ability of 
the decision to be subject to call-in.  The recent devolution process was one such 
example.  The decision was a key decision (though it is not suggested that this 
process should be restricted to key decisions) and reference had been included in 
the forward plan, but the deadline was fixed by the government and certain 
information was not available to make the decision until close to that deadline 
(meaning there was insufficient time to allow for call-in/scrutiny). The Constitution 
did not allow for this scenario.

(b) It is suggested in such circumstances that, rather than the decision being made and 
then being subject to a 5 day call-in period, and as a proposed alternative to 
excluding scrutiny altogether, the proposed decision could instead be subject to pre-
decision scrutiny by the Performance Monitoring Panel. Such scrutiny could, if need 
be, take place on the same day as (but before) the Executive decision is made.   
This could only happen with the approval of the Chairman (or Vice-Chairman) of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel, and it is suggested that the process should work in 
much the same way as a post-decision call-in so that:

 The Leader, Deputy Leader, relevant portfolio holder or (where the decision will 
be taken by an officer) the relevant officer should be in attendance at the 
meeting of the Panel to answer relevant questions

 The Performance Monitoring Panel should be required to set out in writing any 
concerns about the proposed decision 

 The decision-maker should then make the final decision taking into account any 
concerns raised by the Panel, and the final decision notice should explain the 
decision in relation to the concerns raised by the panel

 The decision would take effect immediately the decision is made.

(c) It is not anticipated that this scenario will arise very often, but it provides an 
alternative process in the event of difficulties.

(d) The proposed amendments to enable this additional procedure to be adopted are 
also shown in full in appendix A to this report.  

2.2 Membership of the Cabinet - Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council 

2.2.1 A query has recently been raised about whether it is possible for the Chairman or Vice-
Chairman of the Council to be a member of the Cabinet.  The answer is that it is not 
possible, as this is specifically prevented by section 9C(4) of the Local Government Act 
2000 which states that "a local authority executive may not include the Chairman or Vice-
Chairman of the authority".

2.2.2 Whilst this is specifically stated in law, it is felt that it would be useful to include reference 
within the Constitution so as to reinforce and clarify the point.  The amendments at 
Appendix B of this report are therefore proposed. 

2.2 Appointments to Outside Bodies 

2.3.1 The Constitution currently (but see following paragraphs) makes provision for the full 
Council and the Cabinet to make appointments to outside bodies.  The Constitution has not 
previously made it clear that such appointments can be made for more than one municipal 
year, although at the annual Council meeting on 24 May 2017 it was agreed that the 

Page 271



Constitution be amended to allow members to be appointed to outside bodies for the two 
year period May 2017 to May 2019.  It is now suggested that the Constitution be further 
amended to clarify that, after the end of the 2017-2019 period, members may be appointed 
to outside bodies for more than one year.

2.3.2 The Constitution apparently allows both the Cabinet and the full Council to appoint 
members to outside bodies. This function is included under Schedule 2 of the Local 
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 ("the 2000 
Regulations").  This Schedule relates to "functions which may be (but need not be) the 
responsibility of an authority's executive".   There is some confusion here: this is because:

 Reference to appointing members to outside bodies is made twice in the list of 
Council functions and once in the list of Cabinet functions; and

 There are some conflicting provisions in the Constitution making it difficult to 
determine which appointments should be approved by which body (Cabinet or 
Council). This needs to be clarified.

2.3.3 As Schedule 2 of the 2000 Regulations gives the Council a choice of which body appoints 
outside bodies, it is suggested that both Cabinet and full Council should be able to make 
any outside body appointments (which was the original intention), and that the Constitution 
be amended to reflect this.

2.3.4 It is therefore suggested that the amendments proposed at Appendix C to this report be 
made.

2.4 Standing Committees 

2.4.1 Standing Order No. 30 currently states as follows: 

"Appointment of Committees for Non-Executive Functions

30.1 The Council shall at the Annual Meeting appoint such Committees as they are 
required to appoint by or under any statute or under Standing Order No. 32 
(Standing Committees), and may at any time appoint such other Committees as are 
necessary to carry out the Non-Executive Functions of the Council, but, subject to 
any statutory provision in that behalf:-
(a) shall not appoint any member of a Committee so as to hold office later than the 
next annual meeting of the Council;
(b) may at any time dissolve a Committee or alter its membership."

2.4.2 Members will note that the Standing Order makes reference to the Council appointing "such 
Committees as they are required to appoint by or under any statute or under Standing order 
No. 32 (Standing Committees) …".

2.4.3 In fact, Standing Order No. 32 does not relate to Standing Committees, and there is no 
alternative Standing Order which lists the Standing Committees. Reference was included 
within the original draft amended Constitution, but this was deleted on the recommendation 
of outside consultants who did not consider it necessary to list the Council's Standing 
Committees.

2.4.4 It is therefore necessary to amend Standing Order No. 30 so as to delete reference to 
Standing Order No. 32.

Page 272



2.4.5 At the same time, because there are a number of references to "standing committees" 
within the Constitution, it is recommended that a definition of "Standing Committee" be 
added to the Glossary of Terms at the front of the Constitution. 

2.4.6 Finally, at the annual Council meeting on 24 May 2017 it was agreed that the Constitution 
be amended to allow members to be appointed to Standing Committees for the two year 
period May 2017 to May 2019.  Presently this is prevented by Standing Order no. 30 set out 
in paragraph 2.4.1 above.  It is perfectly lawful for the Council's Standing Committees to be 
established for more than one year at a time and it is now suggested that the Constitution 
be amended further to allow, after the end of the 2017-2019 period which has already been 
approved, members to be appointed to Standing Committees for more than one year. This 
will allow flexibility for the Council to choose a longer period of appointment, should it so 
wish.  

2.4.7 Proposed amendments to effect the Council’s wishes are shown at Appendix D to this 
report.

2.5 Performance of Executive Functions 

2.5.1 Whilst all executive decisions should normally only be taken if they fall within the Policy 
Framework and comply with the Budget, Standing Order no. 26 states as follows: 

"Urgent Action
26.1 Subject to the advice of the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer and the Section
151 Officer (or their representatives) the Cabinet can authorise action which either involves 
expenditure not wholly in accordance with the Budget or is contrary to the Policy 
Framework in accordance with the Finance Procedure Rules."

2.5.2 Part 3 Section D1 (General Provisions relating to Executive Powers) currently at page 32 of 
the Constitution, states as follows:

"3. Executive Functions may only be exercised if
(a) they fall within the Policy Framework and 
(b) they are within the Budget.

2.5.3 It is considered that this should be amended slightly to refer to the reference within 
Standing Order No. 26.  Proposed amendments are shown in appendix E to this report.

2.6 Modern Slavery Act 2015 

2.6.1 The Modern Slavery Act 2015 is aimed at combating crimes of slavery and human 
trafficking.  Under sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Act it is an offence for any person: 

 to held another person in slavery or servitude
 to require another person to perform forced or compulsory labour 
 to arrange or facilitate the travel of another person with a view to that other person 

being exploited
 to commit any offence with the intention of arranging or facilitating the travel of 

another person with a view to that person being exploited.   

2.6.2 Regulation 57 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 states that contracting authorities 
shall exclude an economic operator from participation in a procurement procedure where 
they have established that the economic operator has been convicted of (amongst others) 
any offences under sections 1, 2 or 4 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015. There is currently no 

Page 273



reference within the Council's Contract Procedure Rules to the mandatory exclusions 
provided under Regulation 57 and it is felt that reference to this Regulation would be a 
useful reminder to officers.

2.6.3 Section 54 also requires commercial organisations which operate in the United Kingdom 
and which have a global turnover above £36 million, to publish a slavery and human 
trafficking statement for each financial year that ends on or after 31 March 2016.  A slavery 
and human trafficking statement is a statement of the steps the organisation has taken 
during the financial year to ensure that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in 
any of its supply chains and in any part of its own business. 

2.6.4 Whilst there is no specific requirement for the Council to ensure that these statements are 
provided, Rule 1 of the Council's Contract Procedure Rules states that all procurement 
procedures must (amongst other things) be consistent with the highest standards of 
integrity.  It is felt that this should include ensuring that all measures are taken to ensure 
that contractors comply with section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015. 

2.6.5 It is therefore recommended that the Council's Contract Procedure Rules be amended as 
shown in Appendix F to this report. 

3.0 CONSULTATION

3.1 The Performance Monitoring Panel is being consulted on the proposals.
.
4.0 OPTIONS

4.1 Members have the option to agree or disagree each proposed amendment, or to require 
alternative amendments. 

5.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 The amendments are proposed in order to provide clarity within the Constitution, ensure 
consistency, and eliminate errors. 

6.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

6.1 To provide clarity and consistency within the Constitution and eliminate errors.

7.0 IMPLICATIONS

7.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

7.1.1 none

7.2 Constitution & Legal

7.2.1 There are no specific legal implications.  The proposed amendments are recommended in 
order to provide clarity and consistency within the Constitution, and eliminate errors. 

7.3 Contracts

7.3.1 None 

7.4 Corporate Priorities

Page 274



7.4.1 None 

7.5 Crime and Disorder 

7.5.1 None 

7.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

7.6.1 None 

7.7 Health and Wellbeing

7.7.1 None 

7.8 Financial 

7.8.1 None 

7.9 Risk Management 

7.9.1 None 

7.10 Staffing

7.10.1 None 

7.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

7.11.1 None 

8.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

8.1 None 

9.0 ACRONYMS 

9   .1 None 

Background papers:- Council's Constitution 

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Mark Stinson – Executive Manager, Governance 
Telephone Number: 01775 761161
Email: rmark.stinson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No. 

Appendices attached to this report:

Page 275

mailto:rmark.stinson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


APPENDIX A  - Call-In - Urgent Executive Decisions which are not Key Decisions (paragraph 
2.1.1) and Executive Decisions which are subject to External Deadlines (paragraph 2.1.2) – 
Proposed amendments to Constitution 
APPENDIX B – Membership of the Cabinet - Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council - 
Proposed amendments to the Constitution 
APPENDIX C – Appointment to Outside Bodies - Proposed amendments to the Constitution
APPENDIX D – Standing Committees - Proposed amendments to the Constitution
APPENDIX E – Performance of Executive Functions - Proposed amendments to the Constitution
APPENDIX F – Modern Slavery Act 2015 – Proposed amendments to the Constitution 

Page 276



APPENDIX A  - Call-In - Urgent Executive Decisions which are not Key Decisions (paragraph 
2.1.1) and Executive Decisions which are subject to External Deadlines (paragraph 2.1.2) – 
Proposed amendments to Constitution 

Proposed amendment 1 

Part 3 Section D – Delegations to Committees – Overview and Scrutiny - Call-In Procedure for 
Executive Decisions

The following additional wording be added immediately after the heading "Call-In Procedure for 
Executive Decisions" at page 40.

"(Call-in does not apply to Executive Decisions taken under Rules 12 to 15 of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules)" 

Proposed amendment 2

Access to Information Procedure Rules 

Existing Rules 14 to 18 be renumbered 16 to 20, and the following additional Rules be added: 

"14.0 Special Urgency – Non-Key Decisions – Application of Call-In 

14.1 Where for any Non-Key Decision any delay likely to be caused by the call-in process would 
seriously prejudice the Council's or the public's interest the Executive Decision shall not be 
subject to call-in subject to:

 the Chairman of the Performance Monitoring Panel agreeing both that the decision 
proposed is reasonable in all the circumstances and to it being treated as a matter 
of urgency (in the absence of the Chairman, the Chairman of the Council or in 
his/her absence the Vice-Chairman of the Council's consent shall be required.  In 
the absence of all three, the Head of the Paid Service or his/her nominee's consent 
shall be required); and 

 the decision notice stating that the decision is not subject to call-in and the reasons 
why the delay caused by the call-in procedure is considered to be seriously 
detrimental to the Council's or the public's interest; and 

 a report being submitted to the next available meeting of full Council indicating the 
reasons for the urgency.

15.0  Special Urgency  - Executive Decisions subject to External Deadlines – Application of  Call-In  

15.1 Where any Executive Decision (whether Key Decision or Non-Key Decision) is subject to 
external (eg Government) deadlines such that it is not possible for the decision to be 
subject to the usual call-in procedure the proposed decision may instead be subject to a 
pre-decision scrutiny by the Performance Monitoring Panel subject to: 

 the Leader, Deputy Leader, relevant Portfolio Holder or (where the decision will be 
taken by an officer) the relevant officer being in attendance at the meeting of the 
Panel to answer relevant questions

 the Performance Monitoring Panel being required to set out in writing any concerns 
about the proposed decision 

Page 277



 the decision-maker then making the final decision taking into account any concerns 
raised by the Panel, and the final decision notice explaining the decision in relation 
to the concerns raised by the panel

 the decision taking effect immediately the decision is made.

15.2 When this Rule applies such scrutiny could, if need be, take place on the same day as (but 
before) the Executive Decision is made." 

Proposed amendment 3

Access to Information Procedure Rule 1.0, be amended as follows:

In paragraph (c), which states that Rules 11-18 apply to Cabinet, Committees of the Cabinet, 
Cabinet Members, officers making Executive Decisions and any Executive joint committees, 
reference to Rules 11-18 be amended to refer to paragraphs 11-20

In paragraph (d), which states that Rules 14 and 17 also apply to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees,  reference to Rules 14 and 17 be amended to refer to paragraphs 15 and 19 

Proposed amendment 4 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.5 be amended so that it refers to Rules 11-20 (rather 
than Rules 11-18) applying to Cabinet,  Committees of the Cabinet, Individual Cabinet Members, 
officers an any Joint Arrangements. 

Page 278



APPENDIX B – Membership of the Cabinet - Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council - 
Proposed amendments to the Constitution 

Proposed amended wording is shown underlined and in italics 

Proposed amendment 1

Article 7 paragraph 2.0 (currently at page 15) 

" 2.0 Form and Composition of the Cabinet
2.1 The Cabinet will consist of:-
(a) the Leader; and
(b) at least two but not more than 9 Councillors appointed to the Cabinet by the
Leader, but the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council may not be appointed as Cabinet 
members"

Proposed amendment 2

Executive Powers – Arrangements by Leader for Cabinet Delegations - second column (currently 
at page 32) 

"Maximum 9 members (excluding the Leader). The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council 
may not be appointed as Cabinet members"

Proposed amendment 3  

Standing Order no. 22.2 (currently at page 75) 

" The Leader shall have the power to appoint up to eight nine Cabinet Members (including the 
Deputy Leader).  Any of these appointments or changes will become effective on receipt of formal 
notification in writing by the Chief Executive.  The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council may 
not be appointed as Cabinet members." 

Proposed amendment 4

Standing Order no, 23 (currently at page 76) 

"23.1 the Cabinet shall consist of the Leader and the Cabinet Members. The Chairman and Vice-
Chairman of the Council may not be appointed as Cabinet members." 

Page 279



APPENDIX C – Appointment to Outside Bodies - Proposed amendments to the Constitution 

Proposed amended wording is shown crossed out, underlined and in italics 

Proposed amendment 1 

Part 3 Section D – Delegations to Committees – Full Council (currently at page 28)
Functions/Terms of Reference 

"1. (g) Appointment of representatives to joint authorities, and joint committees and other outside 
bodies unless the appointment is a Cabinet function or has been delegated by the Council (Non-
Executive Functions only)."

Proposed amendment 2 

Part 3 Section D – Delegations to Committees – Full Council (currently at page 31)
Functions/Terms of Reference 

"28.  As detailed in paragraph 19 of Schedule 2 of the 2000 Regulations, The appointment of any 
individual 
(a) To any office other than an office in which he/she is employed by the Council where this is 

an executive function 
(b) To any body other than: the Council; a joint committee of two or more authorities; or to any 

committee or sub-committee of such a body, and 
and the revocation of any such appointment.

(The above function is detailed at Schedule 2 of the 2000 Regulations and may be carried out by 
both the full Council and the Cabinet.) (Appointments to outside bodies may be made for more 
than one municipal year, including periods up to the date of the next District Council election)." 

Proposed amendment 3 

Part 3 Section D – Delegations to Committees – Arrangements by Leader for Cabinet Delegations 
– D3 – Delegations to Cabinet (currently at page 35)

That the existing item 3(h) on page 35 of the Constitution be renumbered to become 2(r) subject to 
the following amendments:

"2 (r)  The appointment of any individual:

(c) To any office other than an office in which he/she is employed by the Council where this is 
an executive function 

(d) To any body other than: the Council; a joint committee of two or more authorities; or to any 
committee or sub-committee of such a body, and 

and the revocation of any such appointment.

(The above function is detailed at Schedule 2 of the 2000 Regulations and may be carried out by 
both the full Council and the Cabinet.) (Appointments to outside bodies may be made for more 
than one municipal year, including periods up to the date of the next District Council election)." 

Page 280



APPENDIX D – Standing Committees - Proposed amendments to the Constitution 

Proposed amended wording is shown crossed out, underlined and in italics 

Proposed amendment 1 

Glossary of terms – Miscellaneous Definitions (currently at pages 3 and 4)

Add the following definition: 

"Standing Committee" means a Committee (whether required by statute or otherwise) which has 
been established by the full Council on a permanent basis to do its assigned work on an ongoing 
basis.  The Standing Committees established by the full Council are detailed in Part 3 Section D of 
the Constitution (Delegations to Committees) and exclude full Council, Cabinet, and any 
Committees of the Cabinet (there are presently no Committees of the Cabinet)."

Proposed amendment 2 

Standing Order No. 30 (currently at page 77)

"Appointments of Committees for Non-Executive functions

30.1 The Council shall at each Annual Meeting or at the Annual Meeting after the appointment of 
each Standing Committee expires (as appropriate) appoint such Committees as they are required 
to appoint by or under any statute or under Standing Order No. 32 (Standing Committees), the 
members of its Standing Committees, and may at any time appoint such other Committees as are 
necessary to carry out the Non-Executive Functions of the Council, but, subject to any statutory 
provision in that behalf:-
(s) shall not appoint any member of a Committee so as to hold office later than the next annual 
meeting of the Council; 
(b) may at any time dissolve a Committee or alter its membership.  Appointments to Standing 
Committees may be made for more than one municipal year, including periods up to the date of the 
next District Council election "

Proposed amendment 3 

All references to "standing committee" be amended to read "Standing Committee". 

Proposed amendment 4 

Standing Order no. 34 (currently at page 78)

"Election of Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Committees

34.1 Every Committee shall continue in being until its successor is appointed.

Page 281



34.2 At the Annual Meeting of the Council or as soon as possible thereafter, or (where the Council 
has appointed a Standing Committee for more than one year under Standing Order no. 30) at the 
Annual Meeting of the Council after the appointment of that Standing Committee expires,  and from 
time to time as necessary, the Council shall appoint the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of
each Standing Committee.

34.3 In the absence from a meeting of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman, a Chairman for
that meeting shall be appointed by the Committee."

Page 282



APPENDIX E – Performance of Executive Functions - Proposed amendments to the 
Constitution 

Proposed amended wording is shown underlined and in italics 

Proposed amendment 1 

Part 3 Section D (Delegations to Committee) 
D1 – General provisions relating to Executive Powers (currently at page 32)

"3. Subject to Standing Order no. 26, Executive Functions may only be exercised if
(a) they fall within the Policy Framework and 
(b) they are within the Budget."

Page 283



APPENDIX F – Modern Slavery Act 2015 – Proposed amendments to the Constitution 

Proposed amended wording is shown underlined and in italics 

Proposed amendment 1 

Contract Procedure Rule 2.1 (currently at page 106)

"2.1 Officers 

Officers will comply with 
(a) these Contractor Procedure Rules (CPRs) 
(b) the Council's Constitution 
(c) all UK and EU legal requirements (including ensuring that any contractors are mandatorily 

excluded from participation in a procurement procedure where Regulation 57 of the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 applies)"

Proposed amendment 2 

Contract Procedure Rule 2.2 (currently at page 107) 

2.2.1 Chief Officers/ Deputy Chief Officers will:

(a) ensure their Service Grouping complies fully and are familiar with the requirements of these 
Contract Procedure Rules

(b) ensure contracts are recorded in the Contracts Register as held and maintained by 
Corporate Improvement and Performance team 

(c) ensure compliance with English Law, UK and EU legislation and Council policy (including 
ensuring that any contractors are mandatorily excluded from participation in a procurement 
procedure where Regulation 57 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 applies) 

(d) " etc  

Proposed amendment 3 

Contract Procedure Rule 18.1.6 (currently at page 122)

"18.1.6   In addition, every Relevant Contract for purchases over £25,001.00 for works,
£25,001.00 for supplies of goods, materials or services and £10,000.00 for consultants
must also as a minimum state clearly:

(a) that the contractor may not assign or sub-contract without prior written consent;

(b) any insurance and liability requirements;

(c) health and safety requirements;

(d) ombudsman requirements;

(e) data protection requirements if relevant;

Page 284



(f) that charter standards are to be met if relevant;

(g) requirements under the Equalities Act 2010;

(h) obligations under the Care Act 2014 in safeguarding adults and children;

(i) a right of access to relevant documentation and records of the contractor for
monitoring and audit purposes, including obligations under the Freedom of
Information Act 2000 and 2015 Transparency Code;

(j) requirements under the Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015 and Prevent
Strategy where applicable;

(k) Obligations under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 including employee
whistleblowing.

(l) statement requirements under the Modern Slavery Act 2015" 

Page 285



Page 286



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Shared Executive Manager, Governance – Mark Stinson

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 7 November 2017

Author: Christine Morgan – Democratic Services Officer

Subject: Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel

Recommendation:

a) That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion; 

b) That the Panel notes the updated information provided in the draft Action Plan at Appendix C to 
the report; and

c) That the Panel considers the issues added to its Work Programme at Appendix A, and agrees 
the way forward.  

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 
inclusion on its Work Programme.

1.2 Issues

1.2.1 Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration.  These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet.  This appendix will be updated as new 
items are identified.

1.2.2 Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The table 
shows:

 The name of the task group
 What it wants to achieve
 Key dates
 Membership of the task group
 When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel

1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a 
standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide the 
opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme.

1.3 Potential Work Programme items suggested by the Panel on 4 July 2017

1.3.1 At its meeting on 4 July 2017, the Panel had considered its Work Programme, how it 
could be progressed, and issues the Panel or its Task Groups should be involved in 
scrutinising.  The Executive Director Commercialisation had been in attendance to facilitate 

Page 287

Agenda Item 14



the discussion.

1.3.2 These issues had been raised, and incorporated into a draft Action Plan which was 
considered at the Panel’s last meeting.  Since then, officers have again met with the 
Chairman and Vice Chairman to consider prioritisation of these issues.  The draft Action 
Plan is again attached at Appendix C, and has been updated to reflect these discussions.  
Each item has provisionally been scheduled into the Panel’s Work Programme, attached at 
Appendix A.  Members are requested to consider this information.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.

2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow councillors to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the 
Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide councillors 
with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar items and 
proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 There are no direct carbon footprint and environmental issue implications associated with 
this report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their carbon 
footprint and environmental issue implications will be assessed.  

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 There are no direct constitution and legal implications associated with this report.  As 
individual items are progressed through the work programme, their constitution and legal 
implications will be assessed.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 There are no direct contract implications associated with this report.  As individual items are 
progressed through the work programme, their contract implications will be assessed.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, councillors consider the 
suitability of the subject, taking into account such considerations as whether the issue is 
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.  One of the 
indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how strongly the topic 
links to the Council’s key aims and priorities. 

Page 288



5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1 There are no direct crime and disorder implications associated with this report.  As 
individual items are progressed through the work programme, their crime and disorder 
implications will be assessed.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1 There are no direct equality and diversity and human rights implications associated with this 
report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their equality and 
diversity and human rights implications will be assessed.

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report. As individual items are 
progressed through the work programme, their financial implications will be assessed.

5.8 Health and Wellbeing

5.8.1 There are no direct health and wellbeing implications associated with this report.  As 
individual items are progressed through the work programme, their health and wellbeing 
implications will be assessed.

5.9 Reputation

5.9.1 There are no direct reputational implications associated with this report. As individual items 
are progressed through the work programme, any reputational implications for the Authority 
will be assessed.

5.10 Risk Management 

5.10.1 There are no direct risk management implications associated with this report.  As individual 
items are progressed through the work programme, their risk management implications will 
be assessed.

5.11 Safeguarding

5.11.1 There are no direct safeguarding implications associated with this report.  As individual 
items are progressed through the work programme, their safeguarding implications will be 
assessed.

5.12 Staffing

5.12.1 There are no direct staffing implications associated with this report.  As individual items are 
progressed through the work programme, their staffing implications will be assessed.

5.13 Stakeholders / Consultation  / Timescales

5.13.1 There are no direct stakeholder/consultation/timescale implications associated with this 
report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their 
stakeholder/consultation/timescale implications will be assessed.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 When a task group is considered for inclusion on the Panel’s Work Programme, it is 

Page 289



assessed against criteria covering ‘Importance’, ‘Impact’ and ‘Value for Money’.  The 
‘Impact’ and ‘Value for Money’ score indicators consider how strongly the issue will affect a 
ward(s), customer group(s) or service area(s).  Only issues scoring highly will be included 
on the Work Programme.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post: Christine Morgan
Telephone Number: 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Work Programme Calendar
Appendix B Task Group Work Programme 2017/18
Appendix C Draft Action Plan for items to be considered for inclusion on the 

Panel’s Work Programme

Page 290



 APPENDIX A

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME 
ITEMS

Date of Meeting Agenda items

7 November 
2017

 Crime and Disorder – Update report on community safety and 
how it is being delivered through the various tiers of Groups 
and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly formed 
Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six months 
by the Portfolio Holder for Community Development.  A report 
will be provided by the Communities Manager and will also 
address issues around CCTV and the Council’s Anti-Social 
Behaviour Policy, raised by the Panel under its Work 
Programme on 4 July 2017.

 Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group – 
update on progress of recommendations (last update received 
16 May 2017)

 Update on the current position regarding SHDC’s Leisure 
Strategy

 Voids Task Group – Update report on progress in actioning 
recommendations of the Task Group 

 Constitution changes, including amendments to Call-In – to 
discuss (Sarah Wolstenholme-Smy)

 Performance Overview Report – Quarter 2, 2017-18
 Chief Executive to attend meeting to give Panel the 

opportunity to question her on her role and achievements 
6 February 
2018

 Performance Overview Report – Quarter 3, 2017-18
 Enforcement– report addressing the various types of 

enforcement (e.g planning/building control/littering) and how 
these would be dealt with in the future, following the Authority-
wide reorganisation.

 What is the Authority doing to combat fly-tipping, and how is it 
investigated?  To include data on number of prosecutions and 
percentage of prosecutions to reports.  

 Streetscene – how is this undertaken and managed?
 Local Council Tax Support Scheme – has this saved the 

money that was intended and have local residents been 
affected by the changes?

 What is LCC’s policy with regard to the filling of pot holes?  
Panel to consider inviting an officer from LCC’s Highways 
Department to provide further information. 

1 May 2018  Performance Overview Report – Quarter 4, 2017-18
 Emergency response – Report to detail SHDC’s procedure for 

dealing with and emergency response.
 Housing Allocations Policy – performance and amendments
 Section 106 monies – report detailing how the Authority 

proactively manages S106 agreements presently and how it 
will maximise opportunities in the future.

 Economic development – further information to be provided on 
what has been done, what lessons can be learned, and what is 

Page 291



to be done in the future. Panel to consider timeline for this 
report.

 1. Commercialisation – how effectively is the Authority 
managing commercial opportunities?  First report on Delivery 
Plan. 

Future meetings 
2018/19 
municipal year, 
and items yet to 
be allocated.

 2. Commercialisation – how effectively is the Authority 
managing commercial opportunities?  Second report, a 
general report around commercialisation.

 Cost of running the South Holland Centre – officers to be 
liaised with regarding timeline, and programmed into Panel’s 
Work Programme accordingly.

 What areas or risk existed within Public Services for cost 
shunting, and how could this be avoided?  Summer 2018 

 Are the financial savings predicted from various 
reorganisations being delivered?

 Health Inequality – Health Commissioning Group to be invited 
to a meeting to provide a presentation

For consideration later in the year

 Note: Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and PDP have 
requested that a special Joint Meeting will be held to discuss the setting up 
of the South Holland Building Consultancy prior to it being considered by 
Cabinet (date to be confirmed).

****************
To be considered annually:

The Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group presented its Final Report to 
Council on 21 January 2015.  Its first recommendation was:

That the Council (i) advises the Charity Commission that the Task Group has 
considered the Commission’s Guidance on public benefit and is satisfied that the 
Council is compliant; (ii) provides a copy of this report to the Commission in order to 
outline the actions proposed by the Council; and (iii) invites  the Performance 
Monitoring Panel to appoint a Task Group on an annual (single meeting) basis 
for the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council remains compliant with 
Charity Commission Guidance.

Membership of Task Group to be agreed and meet on an annual basis to 
consider the issue.

Page 292



APPENDIX B

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2017/2018

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Swimming Pool and 
Leisure Centre Contract 
Task Group

To review the Spalding swimming pool and 
leisure centre, specifically:
 To consider performance, in relation to the 

contract, by the Authority and the 
contractor, particularly with reference to 
building maintenance and cleanliness, 
promotion of the facilities and reinvestment 
in the facilities;

 To look at the Council’s performance in 
monitoring the leisure facilities; and

 To learn from the outcomes of this scrutiny, 
to inform future contracts and contract 
monitoring.

1 December 
2015

21 January 
2016

J R Astill
T A Carter
G K Dark 
(Chairman)
J L King
A M Newton

30 August 2016

To Cabinet 8 
November 2016

Response and 
update on 
progress PMP 
4/2/17 and 
16/5/17. Next 
update 7/11/17.

Performance of the re-
letting of voids Task 
Group

To review the Council’s performance of re-
letting void properties and to make 
recommendations to help improve

15 June 
2016

3 October 
2016

GR Aley 
(Chairman)
MD Booth
CJTH Brewis
TA Carter

16 May 2017

To Cabinet 25 
July 2017

First update on 
progress PMP 
7/11/17

P
age 293



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Sir Halley Stewart Playing 
Field Task Group

Recommendation of the original Task Group to 
appoint a Task Group on an annual (single 
meeting) basis for the specific purpose of 
ensuring that the Council remained compliant 
with Charity Commission Guidance.

15 June 
2016

Upon 
completion of 
Voids Task 
Group

GR Aley
JR Astill
GK Dark
PC Foyster
AM Newton

Effectiveness of CCTV 
Task Group

Purpose of Review – To establish the current 
situation with regard to CCTV and make 
recommendations to Cabinet on the way 
forward.

Terms of Reference – To examine the 
effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service and 
prospects for future provision.

Panel received update on 8 April 2014 from the 
Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society 
on the position regarding CCTV.  Performance 
information will be available on the new system 
in the future, once it becomes operational.  
The Task Group will remain in operation to 
scrutinise performance and will start to do 
this once the information becomes 
available.

6 November 
2012 

21 November 
2012 

B Alcock
M Howard
R M Rudkin
D J Wilkinson 
(Chairman)

  
Membership 
to be 
considered 
following 
District 
Council 
Election 

Interim report to 
PMP 29 January 
2013 
Interim report to 
Cabinet 19 
February 2013.
Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 26 March 
2013
Updates to PMP:
8 April 2014
16 September 
2014
25 November 
2014
16 September 
2015

Leisure Facilities Task 
Group

To make recommendations, regarding the 
present and future leisure     provision in South 
Holland.

30 May 
2012

21 January 
2014

G R Aley 
(Chairman)
D Ashby

Interim report 
presented to joint 
PMP/PDP – 19 

P
age 294



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Joint Task Group 
incorporating members of 
the Performance 
Monitoring and Policy 
Development Panels. 

1. By establishing what leisure provision the 
District Council presently provides, 
examining costs, resident satisfaction and 
competitiveness in order to identify ways of 
increasing income or reducing expenditure;

2. To understand what the District Council 
wishes to provide and what the public and 
major employers need; 

3. To examine the options for future provision 
either to be supplied by the Council, the 
private sector or shared management.

Agreed at PMP 25 November 2014 – A date 
for completion of the Business Plan looking at 
Leisure Services provision, being drawn 
together by the Community Development and 
Health Manager, be confirmed by the Assistant 
Director Community, and that a joint meeting of 
the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy 
Development Panel, for consideration of the 
document, be arranged.

Following consideration of the update to PMP 
on 3 March 2015 (PDP members were invited 

A Casson
G K Dark
R Perkins
S Slade
E Sneath
S Wilkinson

Lead Officer: 
Phil Adams

Membership 
to be 
considered 
following 
District 
Council 
Election

August 2014 
To Cabinet 7 
October 2014
Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 25 
November 2014
Update on leisure 
options to PMP 3 
March 2015 (PDP 
members to 
attend PMP 
meeting)

P
age 295



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

to attend), it was agreed that leisure provision 
must be a priority for the Council, and must be 
considered as a priority by the next 
administration following the District Council 
election.

The effectiveness of 
management companies 
set up to undertake 
maintenance on 
residential estates 
throughout the district 
past, present and for the 
future.

Scope to be confirmed. 25 
November 
2014

To be 
confirmed

To be 
confirmed

To be confirmed

P
age 296



1

APPENDIX C

SUGGESTIONS FOR PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18

ISSUES RAISED BY PANEL CIP (CORPORATE 
IMPROVEMENT) 
LEAD/SERVICE HEAD

STATUS NEXT STEPS/PRIORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION

EXISTING ISSUES

CCTV
 Performance figures showing benefits of 

system still not provided.
 Has installation of the system been 

completed?
 Element of frustration at inability to finish 

this work 
 Potentially need to scrutinise deployment 

and roll out process 
 Confirmation that value for money is being 

achieved and that the Police are getting 
good use from the CCTV system.

 Is CCTV being monitored in all areas?

CIP Team – Corporate 
Improvement and 
Performance Manager, 
Greg Pearson

Communities Manager – 
Emily Holmes

Report to be provided to the Panel on 1 
November 2017 by the Communities 
Manager, working with the CIP Team, as 
part of the Crime and Disorder report 
already scheduled for this meeting, and 
will specifically address these issues.

Report to be provided to 
Panel on 7 November 2017.

Options – Report and/or 
Task Group

Emergency response (current item on the Work 
Programme – Scrutiny of the Authority’s 
Emergency Plan) – In light of the recent Grenfell 
Tower disaster, how would the Authority deal 
with a similar situation within the district?

Emergency Planning Officer 
– Angharad Morgan

To be programmed into a future PMP 
meeting.

Report detailing SHDC’s 
procedure for dealing with 
an emergency response – to 
meeting on 6 February or 1 
May 2018

Report to be presented to 
the Committee – Panel to 
consider which meeting.

P
age 297



2

ISSUES RAISED BY PANEL CIP (CORPORATE 
IMPROVEMENT) 
LEAD/SERVICE HEAD

STATUS NEXT STEPS/PRIORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION

Leisure facilities
 The future of leisure facilities within the 

district was often raised however members 
reiterated that they should be able to feed 
into any decisions made.

 Leisure fed into the economic development 
of the district – what was the current 
situation?

 The work of the Leisure Facilities Task Group 
that had produced an interim report in 2014 
should be used as part of any consideration 
of future leisure provision.

Shared Executive Director 
Place – Rob Walker/
Environmental Services 
Manager – Emily Spicer

Sports and leisure (plus pitches) and 
community facilities - review to be 
commissioned in order to set strategy.
Procurement process and preparations to 
commence.
The work of the 2014 Task Group, and 
these comments, will be fed into that 
process.

Update report on current 
situation around leisure 
facilities to be provided to 
Panel on 7 November 2017. 

NEW ISSUES

Housing Allocations Policy – Performance and 
amendments

CIP Team - Corporate 
Improvement and 
Performance Manager, 
Greg Pearson

Service Head – To be 
confirmed

Report to be provided to the Panel. Information report to 
meeting on 6 February or 1 
May 2018

Report to Committee – 
Panel to consider which 
meeting

Effectiveness of the Council’s Anti Social 
Behaviour Policy – there is a belief that the 
current system is not effective. 

Communities Manager – 
Emily Holmes

Report to be provided to the Panel on 7 
November 2017, as part of the Crime and 
Disorder report already scheduled for this 
meeting.

Report to be provided to 
Panel on 7 November 2017. 
Councillor Chandler (who 
sits on the Lincolnshire 
Police and Crime Panel) also 
invited to attend to hear 
Councillors’ concerns and be 

P
age 298



3

ISSUES RAISED BY PANEL CIP (CORPORATE 
IMPROVEMENT) 
LEAD/SERVICE HEAD

STATUS NEXT STEPS/PRIORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION

able to report directly to the 
Police and Crime 
Commissioner if necessary

Section 106 monies – what is this money spent 
on?

Finance – Ray Fleming
Legal – Jacqui Berridge
Planning – Richard Fidler 

To be programmed into a future PMP 
meeting

Information report to 
meeting on 1 May 2018 
detailing how Authority 
proactively manages S106 
agreements presently and 
how it will maximise 
opportunities in the future.  

Report to be presented to 
the Committee – Panel to 
consider which meeting.

Fly tipping 
 What is the Authority doing to combat fly-

tipping?  How is fly-tipping investigated? 
What can the Authority do?  Does the policy 
on the amount of waste that can be taken to 
the Household Waste Recycling Centre have 
an effect on fly-tipping?     

 Are serious fly-tippers being dealt with, or 
only the cases that are easier to deal with?

CIP Team - Corporate 
Improvement and 
Performance Manager, 
Greg Pearson

Environmental Services 
Manager – Emily Spicer

South Holland District Council takes a zero 
tolerance on fly tipping. Where evidence is 
gathered we will progress the case and 
take legal action. Evidence can be a 
witness statement, interview under 
caution of the offender, evidence in the 
actual fly tip, photographs, vehicle 
registration number taken and/or overt 
camera footage. The majority of fly tipped 
materials is commercial waste and/or 
construction materials that would not be 
able to be taken to the Household Waste 
Recycling centre. The authority has seen an 
increase in residents using rogue traders 

Information report on fly 
tipping to meeting on 6 
February 2017. To include 
data on number of 
prosecutions and 
percentage of prosecutions 
to reports.

The Environmental Services 
Manager can provide the 
Panel with a briefing on fly 
tipping, alongside a briefing 
on Streetscene (as detailed 
below).

P
age 299



4

ISSUES RAISED BY PANEL CIP (CORPORATE 
IMPROVEMENT) 
LEAD/SERVICE HEAD

STATUS NEXT STEPS/PRIORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION

who advertise on social media at a very 
low cost for clearance services. As such, 
the authority is increasing its education for 
residents to inform them that they are still 
liable for the waste if it has been fly tipped 
by someone else. This is known as ‘duty of 
care’.  

Economic development – How is economic 
development undertaken and promoted?  Is it 
effective?

Executive Manager Growth 
and Prosperity – Tim Mills
Inward Investment 
Manager – Nigel Burch

Briefing note provided to meeting 5 
September 2017. 

Presentation on economic 
development to provide 
further information on what 
has been done, how this can 
be learnt from and what is 
being done in the future. To 
meeting on 1 May 2018 or 
later in the year.

Options – Report and/or 
Task Group

Commercialisation – How effectively is the 
Authority managing commercial opportunities?
 Have current commercial opportunities 

realised their projected aims, and if not, 
why?

 Were current commercial opportunities 
being used to their full potential?

 Should some commercial ventures, such as 
the Green Waste Scheme which has been 
very successful, be progressed more 

CIP Team - Corporate 
Improvement and 
Performance Manager, 
Greg Pearson

Interim Project Consultant - 
Mark Astbury
Strategic Project Delivery  - 
Richard Hodgson
Strategic Housing Manager 

To be programmed into a future PMP 
meeting.

Two reports to come to 
Panel.
First report on Delivery Plan 
– 1 May 2018?
Second report, a general 
report around 
commercialisation – 
meeting in the summer of 
2018.

P
age 300



5

ISSUES RAISED BY PANEL CIP (CORPORATE 
IMPROVEMENT) 
LEAD/SERVICE HEAD

STATUS NEXT STEPS/PRIORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION

quickly?
 Was there the ability to react to success or 

lack or it?

- Matthew Hogan
Executive Director Place - 
Rob Walker
Executive Director 
Commercialisation - 
Christine Marshall

Report to be presented to 
the Committee – Panel to 
consider which meeting

Resourcing of Scrutiny – Are there sufficient 
resources available for the Panels to undertake 
their work? (Suggested in response to some 
disappointment around outcomes of previous 
Task Groups, delays in setting up Task Groups)

Executive Manager 
Governance – Mark Stinson

More involvement with the CIP Team and 
relevant services on a topic by topic basis.

Director to attend each 
meeting. 

Cost of running the South Holland Centre Programme Delivery 
Manager – Jenny Stephens

This is already part of the Growth and 
Commercialisation Programme, and a 
review is underway.  Progress will be 
reported back to the Panel in due course.

Liaise with officers for 
timescales.  Confidential 
update report to be 
presented to Panel in due 
course.

Report to be provided to the 
Panel, which will be kept 
updated in a similar way to 
the Priory Road project – 
member briefings etc.

What areas of risk exist within Public Services 
for cost shunting, and how may this be avoided?

Executive Director 
Commercialisation – 
Christine Marshall

To be programmed into a future PMP 
meeting

Report to Panel summer 
2018 
Report to be presented to 
the Committee – Panel to 
consider which meeting.

P
age 301



6

ISSUES RAISED BY PANEL CIP (CORPORATE 
IMPROVEMENT) 
LEAD/SERVICE HEAD

STATUS NEXT STEPS/PRIORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION

What was LCC’s policy with regard to the filling 
of pot holes?  Money was currently being 
wasted on an ineffective policy.

Place Manager – Paul 
Jackson

https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/transport-
and-roads/highways-
maintenance/potholes/36679.article

Officer from LCC to be 
invited to meeting 6 
February 2018.

Link to LCC website has 
been attached.
Panel should consider 
whether it wishes to invite a 
representative from LCC 
Highways to a future 
meeting to provide further 
information, if required.

Streetscene – how is this undertaken and 
managed?

Environmental Services 
Manager – Emily Spicer

To be programmed into a future PMP 
meeting.

Information report on 
streetscene to meeting on 6 
February 2017.

Report to be presented to 
the Committee – Panel to 
consider which meeting.
The Environmental Services 
Manager can provide the 
Panel with a briefing on this 
issue, alongside a briefing 
on fly tipping (as detailed 
above), if required. She can 
attend the meeting on 6 
February 2018.

P
age 302

https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/transport-and-roads/highways-maintenance/potholes/36679.article
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/transport-and-roads/highways-maintenance/potholes/36679.article
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/transport-and-roads/highways-maintenance/potholes/36679.article


7

ISSUES RAISED BY PANEL CIP (CORPORATE 
IMPROVEMENT) 
LEAD/SERVICE HEAD

STATUS NEXT STEPS/PRIORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION

Enforcement (planning/building control/littering 
etc) – a report was requested in six months time 
addressing how the various types of 
enforcement (e.g. planning/building 
control/littering) would be dealt with in the 
future, following the re-organisation taking 
place throughout the Authority.  

Place Manager - Paul 
Jackson

The Panel agreed at its meeting on 4 July 
that a report be produced in six months 
time.  This has been added to the meeting 
on 6 February 2017

Information report on how 
various types of 
enforcement will be dealt 
with across the Authority to 
meeting on 6 February 2017

Local Council Tax Support Scheme – had this 
saved the money that was intended and had 
local residents been affected by the changes

Head of Service, Revenues 
and Benefits – Sharon 
Hammond

To be programmed into a future PMP 
meeting.

Information report on 
situation at SHDC to PMP 
meeting 6 February 2017.

Report to be presented to 
the Committee – Panel to 
consider which meeting.

How might dual-hatted members contribute 
most effectively to cooperative working across 
both tiers of government (District and County).

Executive Director 
Commercialisation – 
Christine Marshall

To discuss. No action.

Are the financial savings predicted from various 
reorganisations being delivered?

CIP Team - Corporate 
Improvement and 
Performance Manager, 
Greg Pearson
In conjunction with 
relevant service areas.

A report will be brought to the Panel once 
all reviews as part of the Moving Forward 
programme are complete.
The CIP Team will be working on the 
delivery of the programme.

Report to be brought to 
Panel as soon as possible-
date to be agreed.

To be programme into the 
Work Programme 

Health inequality
(added at meeting between Chairman, Vice 
Chairman and Executive Director 
Commercialisation on 11/10/17

Executive Director 
Commercialisation

Health Commissioning 
Group to be invited to 
meeting to provide a 
presentation 

P
age 303



8

P
age 304


	Agenda
	4 Crime & Disorder Update
	Appendix A for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix B for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix C for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix D for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix E for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix F for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix G for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix H for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix I for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix J for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix K for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix L for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix M for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix N for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix O for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix P for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix Q for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix R for Crime & Disorder
	Appendix S for Crime & Disorder

	5 Minutes
	9 Key Decision Plan
	10 Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group – update on progress of recommendations
	Appendix A

	11 Re-Letting of Void Properties Task Group
	Appendix A

	12 Quarter 2 2017-18 Performance Overview
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 2 2017-18 Performance Overview

	13 Constitution amendments
	14 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C


